
 
TOWN OF WELLINGTON 

3735 CLEVELAND AVENUE 
P.O. BOX 127 

WELLINGTON, CO 80549 
TOWN HALL (970) 568-3381 

FAX (970) 568-9354 
    

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
April 8, 2008 

LEEPER CENTER – 3800 WILSON AVE. 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING – 7:30 PM 
 

AGENDA 
CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL 
ADDITIONS TO OR DELETIONS FROM THE AGENDA 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
PUBLIC TO BE HEARD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
CORRESPONDENCE 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
• Board of Trustee Minutes for March 25, 2008 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
1. Boxelder Plaza Letter of Credit 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Oath of Office for New Board Members 
3. Resolution 13-2008  - Appointing the Mayor Pro-tem 
4. Award Bid – 4th Street Improvements and 6th Street Sewer Extension
5. Resolution 14-2008 Uranium Mining 
6. Discussion – Planning Commission Appointment 
7. Contract for Fun Fest Inflatables 
8. Bills for Approval  
9. Town Attorney Update 
10. Town Administrator Update 
 
SCHEDULING OF WORK SESSIONS 
OTHER   
ADJOURN 

  



                                                                                                             
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
March 25, 2008 

 
The Regular Board Meeting was called to order at 7:35 p.m. March 25, 2008 at the Leeper Center 3800 Wilson Ave, 
Wellington CO. 
 
TRUSTEES PRESENT:   MIKE STEELY, DAVID NOE, TRAVIS STEVENS, TRAVIS  

VIEIRA, MISHIE DAKNIS and KAREN ZIEGLER 
 
TRUSTEES ABSENT:   NONE 
 
PRESIDING:                      LARRY NOEL, MAYOR  
 
ALSO PRESENT:             LARRY LORENTZEN, TOWN ADMINISTRATOR  
    CYNTHIA SULLIVAN, DEPUTY CLERK  
    BRAD MARCH, TOWN ATTORNEY 
    BILL BODKINS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
    DON SILAR, TOWN ENGINEER 
              
Additions to or deletions from the agenda 
Mr. Lorentzen added a presentations to introduce Sheriff’s Deputy Harvey Hildreth.  
 
Conflicts of Interest 
Trustee Ziegler had a conflict with item #2. 
 
Public to be heard on non-agenda items. 
1. Wendell Nelson, representing the Chamber of Commerce went over the events that they will be sponsoring this 
summer.  

• School Carnival  May 12 
• Circus     June 26 
• Garage Sale   June 7 
• Dog Show    June 28 
• Softball Tournament  June 28 
• Antique Tractor Show   July 4th 

 
Mr. Nelson said that Candy Holtz would be running the Garage Sale. She passed out information on the event to the 
Board. The booths would be placed down on Main Street Markets parking lot. Ms. Sullivan asked when the event would 
be. Ms. Holtz said June 7th. Mr. Nelson said part of the money collected would go toward a playground in Wellington 
Pointe. 
 
Mr. Nelson mentioned the candidates’ forum on Thursday night March 27th at the Leeper Center Boardroom. 
 
2.  Harold Hagen, of County Road 66 West, read a letter that he had sent to Mayor Noel. He wanted the opportunity to 
clarify the status of his water. Mr. Hagen said the water is available for use by this town or other entities. He felt it was 
unfair to comment that his water is costly and tied up in litigation. He invited the Board and anyone from the public to 
visit his property on Saturday March 29, 2008 between 2-4pm to look at his water.  
 
 
 



Regular Board Meeting  
March 25, 2008 
Page 2 
Mayor Noel said his understanding is that the water is not municipally decreed. Mr. Hagen said it is defined as a not 
tributary source. It was decreed and established after surveys and engineering done in 1940. When the Coffin decree 
came about they took wells and a few water sources like his and put them under the protection of the Coffin decree. He 
said his is under contention. The state engineer does not like and will try to keep it from being used. Mr. March said his 
understanding is that other entities would fight against the use. Mr. Hagen said there is still an open court case. Mr. 
March said from their discussion Mr. Hagen would look at reducing the fees to the town if the town helped with charges 
to adjudicate the water. He said the concern was that the town would be spending money for water that might not be 
adjudicated and could not be taken off the purchase price. The main question is how much it would cost to take on the 
fight. Trustee Vieira asked what we need to do to find out how much it would cost.  Mr. March said we first have to 
evaluate the water and where Mr. Hagen is in the process. Then meet with the other entities to ascertain how much 
resistance there is. Then you have to look at historical use and see if there is a basis for using the water off the 
property. If all things would works out then the next question is how to get the water to our filter plant or into our system 
and how much that would cost. 
 
Mr. Hagen stated that due to his age he would like to make decisions about his property and assets soon.  
 
Trustee Ziegler asked how far this property is from town. Mr. Lorentzen said approximately 7 miles.  
 
Willard Wright, president of a small water district, said they have offered to purchase 50 acre feet of Mr. Hagen’s water 
contingent upon getting through any legal hoops. He had two attorneys give legal opinions on this water and they both 
stated that Mr. Hagen has the right to sell the water. Mr. Wright said they have put earnest money down on the water. 
 
The Board asked Mr. March to look at the cost of this process. 
 
3. Candy Holtz, representing Wellington Pointe HOA, asked if a Board member consulting with the Town Attorney 
regarding an issue with an HOA was legal. Mr. March explained that Trustee Daknis had come to him privately 
regarding an HOA vote. He said that he works both for private clients and public entities. He said in this situation once it 
looked like the town could be involved that he told Trustee Daknis that he could no longer consult on this issue. There 
was further discussion regarding the requirement for an HOA to have a quorum in order to take a vote.  
 
4. Marcia Noel, of 6993 Mount Nimbus, commented on the Easter Egg Carnival at Main Street Market. 
 
She asked for direction from the Board with regard to when and where the CAC should meet. Mr. Lorentzen said there 
wasn’t anything in the Ordinance requiring the CAC to meet at a town owned location. It has to be posted so the public 
can attend. Trustee Daknis said she saw a potential problem with using the Housing Authorities facility. Ms. Noel 
requested that the town board set the location. She also asked if the board had been getting minutes from the meetings. 
Ms. Sullivan said no she had not received minutes for several months, but had talked to Vicky Andersen who said she 
would submit the minutes from November to current.  Ms. Noel asked if the minutes were on the website. Ms. Sullivan 
said she only put the approved board minutes on the website. Mr. Lorentzen said that when they are put on the consent 
agenda then they are placed in the board packet on the website.  
 
Ms. Noel said she is having a problem with children playing in the streets of her neighborhood. She said even the 
parents are stopping traffic to let their children play. The Board suggested that she contact the sheriff’s department. Ms. 
Noel said she had and they always get their too late.  Sergeant Feyen said it was not illegal for the kids to play in the 
street as long as they are not obstructing the right-of-way. The Sheriff’s department would issue the summons, as long 
as the complainant testifies at the hearing.   
 
Correspondence  
State Suspension of Main Street Liquor 



Regular Board Meeting  
March 25, 2008 
Page 3 
Presentations 
Sergeant Feyen introduced Deputy Harvey Hildreth. He said the deputy works in the evenings.   
 
Consent Agenda 

 Board of Trustee Minutes for  March 11, 2008 
 Wellington Municipal Court Report for March 5, 2008 
 Larimer County Sheriff’s Report for January 
 Larimer County Sheriff’s Report for February 

 
Mr. March said there was a section in library board meeting regarding the library district that he wanted to clarify. He 
said he would send the corrections to Ms. Sullivan. 
 
TRUSTEE STEELY MOVED AND TRUSTEE VIEIRA SECONDED to approve the consent agenda with corrections. 
Roll call was taken and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
1. Sheriff Department Contract 
Mr. March said he found out that the contact person has changed and he just got a hold of him today.  His main concern 
is the indemnity clause. He suggested that the Board adopt the contract and he would work on the changes for next 
year’s contract.  
 
TRUSTEE NOE MOVED AND TRUSTEE STEVENS SECONDED to authorize the Mayor to sign the contract for 
services from the Larimer County Sheriff’s Office in the amount of $567,999.24 in the form it was submitted. Roll call 
was taken and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
2. Boxelder Plaza Letter of Credit  
Trustee Ziegler left at 8:37pm. due to conflict of interest. 
Mr. March said that the bank that issued the original Letter Of Credit would not be renewing it when it expires, which 
would be in June. He said the town could look at reducing the amount of the letter of credit based on improvements that 
have been completed. The main issue has been the waterline extension.  The easement for the property has been 
signed and now we need to get it recorded.  
 
Mr. Lorentzen said there is also the issue of a walkthrough.  When the developer calls for a walkthrough then we can 
create a punch list, start the warrantee period and will know how much would be needed for a new letter of credit. This 
needs to be done before the end of June when the current letter expires.  
 
TRUSTEE STEELY MOVED AND TRUSTEE VIEIRA SECONDED to table until the April 8th meeting.  Roll call was 
taken and the motion passed. Trustee Ziegler abstained due conflict of interest.   
 
Trustee Ziegler returned at 8:50pm. 
3.  Discussion – Sales Tax on Groceries 
Mayor Noel said a representative from Main Street Market gave a presentation in February about reducing sales taxes 
on food items. The Board had asked that the finance director to put together information on how a reduction from 3% to 
2.25% would affect the towns revenue.  
 
Trustee Ziegler asked how 2.25% was decided on. Mr. Lorentzen said that’s what Fort Collins charges. He said 
information from several other communities, out of 231communities that had sales tax 41 have a reduction in grocery 
taxes. He said the real question is whether the reduction in sales tax would be offset by the increase in grocery sales 
and that the tax payers would not be burdened by the reduction in sales tax revenue. Currently a large percentage of 



Regular Board Meeting  
March 25, 2008 
Page 4 
our tax income is still from grocery items. He said that Mr. Cummins also contacted the convenience stores regarding 
the steps they would have to take to change their equipment and their labeling to differentiate between the food and non 
food items. Mayor Noel asked what would be considered a food item. Mr. Lorentzen said the items are set by state 
statute.  He said the reduction would not be on deli items, because they are made on the property like a restaurant.   
 
Rick Renteria, Regional Retail Manager for Panhandle COOP Association, spoke to the Board about what a tax 
reduction would mean to them. He said if the Board did not like the 2.25% would they consider at 2.5%. 
 
There was a discussion about the process to lower taxes. The comment was made that once a tax is lowered it takes a 
vote from residents to raise it again. The Board asked if it is possible to lower a tax for a certain time limit, just as if we 
raise a tax for a certain amount of years to cover a project. Mr. March said he would look into the lowering of taxes for 
an interim period of time.  
 
No action was taken. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
4.  Resolution 12-2008 – Amending Fee Schedule 
Mr. Lorentzen said there were a few items that were left off the resolution in January. He said there was no changes 
from the original just the addition of the ones that were not on the original.  
 
TRUSTEE STEVENS MOVED AND TRUSTEE DAKNIS SECONDED to adopt Resolution 12-2008 amending fee 
schedule. Roll call was taken and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
5. Library District Lawsuit  
Mr. March said the main issue is when a property is annexed if it would be exempt from the library district tax 
assessment. In his discussions with other library districts and the assessor, we still have not received a clear answer. 
He proposed filing a declaratory judgment. 
 
TRUSTEE NOE MOVED AND TRUSTEE VIEIRA SECONDED to instruct the attorney to file the suit. Roll call was 
taken and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
6. Discussion – Uranium Mine 
Trustee Daknis asked if any of the board members wanted to have a resolution drafted opposing the Uranium Mine.  
 
Lu MacNaughton Terlesky, of 120 ECR 72, asked if each board member would state for the record if they were for or 
against the mining and why.  

• Trustee Daknis said she was opposed to it, because she felt the state laws were not up to snuff. She did not 
feel that we would be protected. 

• Trustee Stevens was opposed to it, because there is no advantage to the community and the health safety. 
• Trustee Vieira said he was opposed because the water sources in this area are too valuable to take a risk of 

contamination. 
• Trustee Noe said he did not feel he had enough information to make a decision either way, but what he has 

heard is scary.  
• Trustee Steely said he was neutral because he knows people that were in the industry, but he is not totally 

convinced one way or the other.  
• Trustee Ziegler did not take a side. She was for individual’s property rights.  
• Mayor Noel said it does not matter what the issue there are always going to be two sides. He also did not feel 

he could make a decision either way.  
 



Regular Board Meeting  
March 25, 2008 
Page 5 
Jeff Edquist, property owner at 11350 WCR 96 Nunn, CO, said he had information from communities around the nation 
that deal with mining accidents and legislation against uranium mining. He asked if the board would like to see this 
information. Trustee Noe asked that he email the information to town staff.  
 
Kent Target, of 7875 Weld CR 110, made a statement about In- Situ operation mining and the catastrophic affect it 
could have not only on his property and possible health but that of the surrounding communities.  He also addressed 
lowered property values from the stigma of uranium contamination potential. He also stated that economic benefit from 
mining would be a fraction of the economic devastation would be. 
 
Don Lyons, a county resident and meteorologist, said Weld County is not the only place in the area that has uranium. 
Residents have to check for radon which is a byproduct of decaying uranium.   
 
Jay Davis, 51229 Weld CR 21, spoke about how water in this area is valuable in this area. He felt that we should protect 
it from possible contamination. He asked why we should allow a company to use our water as a tool to do their mining.  
 
Howard Grams, of Carr, spoke about what would happen if the aquifer was contaminated. He mentioned two places in 
Texas that have had to deal with contamination. The first was Kleberg County Texas their attorney’s name is Lowerre. 
The second is in Goliad Texas the President of the Farm Bureau is Pat Calhoun. 
 
Marcia Noel, of 6993 Mount Nimbus, said she did not understand why Wellington was being pressured into passing a 
resolution. Why aren’t they pressuring the State to ban the mining? How much of an impact is a resolution from 
Wellington going to be.  
 
Morenna Mayer, of 5128 Terry Lake Rd., said ‘This is a no brainer’ if there is even the slightest possibility of 
contamination then it should not be allowed. She and her husband have been working with CARD at the State to put 
together a bill against the mining. She urged the Board to make a statement that they don’t what this mining in their 
area. 
 
Jim Woodward, of 47897 Weld CR 15, said he has opposed this for about a year and has been threatened by Power 
Tech with a law suit. Property rights were mentioned earlier, what about the bill of rights, allowing individuals to speak 
for or against issues. He suggested that the Board have another meeting to allow all sides to present more information 
so you can make a more educated decision and sign a strongly worded resolution against the mining. 
 
Trustee Vieira asked if Mr. March could draft a resolution. Mr. March said he could, but asked how strongly the board 
wanted it worded. Trustee Daknis said similar to the resolution signed in Fort Collins. 
 
The Board asked the attorney to draft a resolution. 
 
7. Purchase Request – Asphalt Paver 
Mr. Bodkins, the purchase request is for the Paver only. He did give the board additional information about additional 
equipment needed to do the paving. He said those items would be brought back later.  
 
Trustee Steely asked if any of the employees had experience. Mr. Bodkins said that couple of the guys worked on one 
last summer. Goltz will come out and do some training on the equipment when we do the pad out at the sewer plant.  
 
Trustee Ziegler asked how long this type of equipment would last. Mr. Bodkins said we should get a few years out of it.  
 
TRUSTEE DAKNIS MOVED AND TRUSTEE NOE SECONDED to approve the purchase of a used asphalt paver from 
Goltz in the amount of $11,000. Roll call was taken and the motion passed unanimously.  



Regular Board Meeting  
March 25, 2008 
Page 6 
8. Bills for Approval 
 
Zep Manufacturing Company      1,023.13 
Dell         1,733.84 
Stantec                             78,654.15 
NAYS                                         1,047.00 
Sport About        5,022.93 
                                $87,481.05 
 
TRUSTEE ZIEGLER MOVED AND TRUSTEE DAKNIS SECONDED to approve the bills in the amount of $87,481.05.  
Roll call was taken and the motion passed unanimously.  
  
9. Town Attorney Update 
Mr. March said just following up on the usual stuff. 
 
10. Town Administrator Update 
Larry updated the Board on the following: 

• Boxelder Drainage – rate study by the end of the month and news letter to be put into May’s bill.  
• Batting Cages moving forward 
• Capital Improvement Projects went out for bid. The bid opening will be on April 1st   
• Stantec putting together a meeting with the railroad to do a crossing diagnostic review. Then we can get a cost 

estimate on the sidewalk crossing and get a contract. Then it would probably be a year before work starts.  
 
Scheduling of Work Session 
No work session was scheduled. 
 
Other 
Trustee Ziegler asked about the dirt pile on 6th and Washington.  
 
TRUSTEE VIEIRA MOVED AND TRUSTEE ZEIGLER SECONDED to adjourn the meeting. Roll call was taken and the 
motion passed unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 10:25pm. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Cynthia Sullivan, CMC 
Deputy Town Clerk  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO 

COUNTY OF LARIMER 

TOWN OF WELLINGTON 

 

 I, _______________________________, do solemnly, sincerely and truly declare 

and affirm that I will support the Constitution of the United States, the Constitution of the 

State of Colorado, and the Ordinances of the Town of Wellington, and faithfully perform 

the duties of the office of _________________________________ upon which I am 

about to enter. 

 

 STATE OF COLORADO 

      _______________________________ 
        Signature 
 COUNTY OF LARIMER  
 

 Subscribed and affirmed before me this ________ day of ___________, 2008 

 

      __________________________________ 
           Officer Administering Affirmation 
  SEAL 
 
      ___________________________________ 
        Title  

 

TRUSTEE 

8th APRIL



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
Town Board Meeting  -  April 8, 2008 

 
ITEM#: 3 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 12-2008 - Appointment of Mayor Pro-tem 
 
The Wellington Municipal  Code in accordance with  C.R.S. §31-4-303 states: 

 

Sec. 2-2-30. Mayor Pro Tem. 

At its first meeting following each biennial election, the Board of Trustees 
shall choose one (1) of the Trustees as Mayor Pro Tem.  In the absence of the 
Mayor from any meeting of the Board of Trustees, during the absence of the 
Mayor from the Town or during the inability of the Mayor to act, the Mayor Pro 
Tem shall perform the duties of the Mayor.  



 
RESOLUTION NO. 13-2008 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF WELLINGTON APPOINTING  

____________________ AS MAYOR PRO TEM  
OF THE TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Wellington’s 2008 Municipal Election was held on April 1, 
2008; and 
 

WHEREAS, as provided for in C.R.S. §31-4-303, the board of trustees, at its first 
meeting, shall choose one of the trustees as mayor pro tem who, in the absence of the mayor 
from any meeting of said board or during the mayor’s absence from the town or his inability to 
act, shall perform the mayor’s duties; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Board of Trustees of the Town of Wellington desires to appoint 

______________________as Mayor Pro Tem.   
   
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. _______________is hereby appointed as the Mayor Pro Tem of the Town 
of Wellington, Colorado. 
 
 Section 2.  The Town Clerk shall administer the oath of office in written form.  
 

INTRODUCED, READ ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Board of Trustees of 
the Town of Wellington, upon a motion duly made, seconded and passed at its meeting held on 
April 8, 2008. 

 
 
      
     Larry Noel, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Larry Lorentzen, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
Town Board Meeting – April 11, 2006 

 
ITEM #:  4 
 
SUBJECT: Award Bid for Fourth Street Improvements and Sixth Street 

Sanitary Sewer Extension.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Award Bid for Fourth Street Improvements and Sixth Street Sanitary 
Sewer Extension to Schmidt Earth Builders Inc., In the amount of 
$627,071.00 

 
SUMMARY: 
 Sealed bids were received and publicly opened on April 1th from five 
contractors for the Fourth Street Improvements and Sixth Street Sanitary Sewer 
Extension.   Schmidt Earth Builders submitted the low bid at $627,071.00.  
Attached is a recommendation from the Town Engineer, Stantec, finding 
Schmidt’s bid to be in order, the company in good standing, and recommending 
the award accordingly. 
 
The Contract generally provides for the removal and replacement of pavement, 
sidewalk and curb & gutter along 4th Street between Cleveland Avenue and 
Kennedy Avenue and the installation of a new 8-inch PVC water line and a 15-
inch storm drain.  The Contract also provides for the installation of a new 15-inch 
sanitary sewer line along 6th Street from Grant Street to Washington Avenue. 
 
The 2008 budget includes $610,000 for the projects out of the Streets, Water, 
Sewer, and Storm Drainage funds.  The low bid is approximately 3% over the 
budgeted amount.  The Street fund also includes a budget of $200,000 for the 
Washington Avenue RR crossing signalization which we will not be able to 
accomplish in this budget year, so we will not be in danger of going over the 
bottom line in the budget. 



_ t=' ....2I»$oI,IiI__ 

fool t-.COIIN' l«IJ 
'.IWOIW!li2H.. !9ICIW-4lIi 

~ 

Stante<: 

ApnI OJ 2008 

Mf Larry Lorentzen - Town Admmlsl ral Of 
TOV'IN OF WE LLINGTON 
J7JS Cleveland Avenue , POBox 127 
Welhngton CO 
80549 USA 

RE: .4'" STREET IMPROVMEENTS AND 6Tt1 STREET SANITARY SEW ER EXTEN SION 

Dea' Larry 

On Tue~ay . ApnI 01 , 2008 five (5) bods were received " the Town Hall by the 2 00 P M 
deadhne IOf the above referenced prOject FoHo.....mg are I summary 01 thll resu~s and our 
recommendallOf1 

The Bldde's and l h' III tola' bods are Included on the allached Bid Tabulallon and summanzed 
b"~ 

BldOer TOIal Base Bid Percent Above Appilrent Low 

North Ridge ConslructlOl1 Co LLC $69J 4J700 '''' 
Connell Resources, Inc $672.J58 50 '" 
SchmlCll Earth BUilders. Inc $627.07 100 

Mountain Constructors Inc $689.977 00 H'" 
MSI Enterpnses, Inc $6JO,445oo '" 



The folloWIng table presen\l a breakdown by Schedule for !he 4" Streel lmprovemen!$ 
(Schedule A) and 6" Street Sanit ary Sewer ExlenslOl'l (Schedule B) 

6,dder Schedule A Schedule 6 Tot al Bid 

North Rodge ConStI'lJCl:IOl'I , Inc 5399,292 00 5294,145 00 $693,43700 

Connell Re~, Inc 5342,147 50 5330.211 00 5672,358 50 

ScI1ml(fl Earth BUIlders , Inc 5316.52100 5310,550 00 5627,07100 

Mountain Con. truc1~, rnc 5340,831 00 5349,146 00 $689977 00 

!,l SI Enterprise, Inc 5343 667 00 5286,778,00 5630.44500 

Based on the bods rece~ , Schml(fl ElII1h Budders , Inc (SEBI) IS the apparent low bIddef 

SEBls qualfflcatoons .t;.tement 0nd,cates that they have been In bUSiness ence 1974 They 
have current woO< of ..mllar na ture to the Town 's work and prOjects raf"IQ'f"IQ III value from 
5190.000 to 52 085,000 The" bonding hmrtal10ns are In the mKl to upper seven f'!lure range 
and they have available credit of 51.000,000 Therefore. 1\ appears they have $utliaent bondlf"IQ 
capacrty and fuods for the prOjecl 

SEBI has no! failed to ccec eie any wor1< . d el au~ ed on a contract. or been terminated by the 
Owner aceordu'lg to their Statement of 8I<ldef1 QuahflCiltoom Adclltlonally , they are no t 
Involved In any e~ lstlng or pend ing lawsuitl 

SEBI Wlll perform fort y (40%) to fifty (50%) of the woO< Fifty (50%) to " xly (60%) percent (65%) 
Will be IUbGonlracled Subcon1ractOl1l ....11 be ut lhzed for a spha~ (Coulson E ~C8vatlng) and 
concrete (Vogel COIlCJ"ete) 

SEal hal ~1t1lCl e'9hty -e'9ht (88) JlIeC" of equlpmenl These appear 10 be . uffocoent II'l oumbef 
and type 10 complete the Town 's prOject 

We have rl!voewed SEBI '. bid and find no outstanding nems and/or ISsues of concern 
AdditIOnally, the Town and grantee have worked with SEBI on several Pl'Oj8Cls In Welhngton 
and SUfT()Undlng communities and have found them to be a re liable and _II qualified company 

In summary, _ have reviewed the document allon lubrmtled by ScI1ml(fl Earth BUilders, Inc 
and find SEBlto meet the requlfemenls of the Contrad Documents and thus appear to be the 
lowesl responsible and re~1V'll bidder , Therefore, _ recommend awa rd of all Schedules of 
the project to SchmKl1 Earth Budders, Inc 

Should you have any qu&S11OOS and/or concerns , please feel Ifee to contact uS 

vQ~\ laTJ t~\CIP.e--. ",.............-......_ .. ,_ ,. ,. . .....
 



AjlriI 03, 200Il 
Pl!9" 3 01 3 

Anact1menl S Bod Tabulatoon, and SEBl's BICl Form, Bid Bond and Statement Ol8+doefs 
Ouahf'C<lhons 

cc Bdl BoclklnS- Town of WelhngtOl'l 

Br~ March - Maren, OlIve and Pharos 

11"" 187310055, 820 



WELLI NGTON
 
4th Street Improvements and 6th Street Sanitary Sewer Extens ion
 

BID TABULATION 
DoI.m ...., 1,1IISd..., . Ami Qt ~DOll ~ DO P ~ 

"c~"'C'''C'.,-_",=ccccccC''.'C''''C.''lI'I:<I['''I-=''IIl-:''·.-':C''''''''''' •••••••• '' •••••••••••••• BIDDER ......"'."'J4".IfOoPPI'P. ___ ,."' ............~:Io·.Jo:to:»O:lo>... ...,.,. ........... ,. :Io. ,. 20,. Jo,. ,. ............ :.10:10:10. 

Nort h Rid ge Co nalrUctJon 
~~llc>n ; Woihl'9la'l TCMO\..... Com lJilny Co n ,,~ 1 1 Ro",urees Schmidt Ell rttI Bu IId. 11I Mountain Conalructo.. MSI Enterprise. Englnoor's E5t1mato 

BID BID BID BID BID 

Schedu le A - 4th Street s 399 .292.00 s 342.147 .50 s 316,521.00 S 340.83 1.00 S 343.667.00 S 308 ,84 1 

ScheduIe B - 6th Street $ 294,145 .00 S 330.211.00 s 310.550.00 s 349,146.00 s 286,778.00 S 348,305 

Total Project Bid Price: $ 693,437.00 $ 672 ,358.50 S 627,071.00 S 669.977.00 s 630 ,445 .00 S 6 57 ,146 

.. n EHDU) ..AMOIll CRY PREBID COHr£ A~ Y. 'f ro Ya 1 ... Y.. 

I .. IIOIICIt",' Yes VM '1' .. 'I'M VOS 

IT Att.....U il OF I!lI DO~ QUAUJ ICA nOfft Y. Yes Ya 'f .. Y.. 

ICttEDtJl.( OF IUIKONTlIACTORS ' (~....., Yn Yh Yeo. 'I'.. Y.. 

IU: "' MW4. EDGI:. " K Il'JP1' II)f AbP f PrOUll NOs 1 '&:t V.. 'I'.. y" v.. Y.,. 
... 'SZJit'Jho,.... ...,........-... ..... --..--...~. 



ATIACHMENT A.2 
Sr.CT1U.... ~ 

1I11l~~ 

TO: Tow.. o( W'lllDlIlo....Colorado (? a~
 
FROJJ:CT : 4- Street Iml' t"O.-rmtn l. aD'\'~ret'l Sonlu ry Stooer [ lIen.ioll·
 

I	 The UIIlknipd Bidder plopt*$ and~ iflhi. Bid i. accepted. Ioenla' in'" an "",""""'1 with 
Owner m 1bc form ttlclwied m 1bc Con1tllct Do<;umm151o pcrt'llfm andfumuh all Work as IpI:IClflCd 
or in<:bcated in !heConIRCt Docurnenll fur IbI: BId f'noo andWIthin t/w; Con1n<"t T imes melle.ted In 

this Bid and III ~ WIth the ceee ICrnIIIlld conditions of !be: Contrae!. DocurnenI5. 

2	 The U/ldcnIpd bidder doeI hereby dedm: and stipulate !hat thiI proposaJ is made In aood filth, 
Wltboul ecu....ion or C<JrIlIIeCt>On WIlli any other perIOll or pcnonI buidmg for !he .-me IIo'(JI'k,. and 
thaI 'I .. made in JIII"SIW'C" of and tubject to .u the tmnI and ocm<hoons of the: Invitallon 10BId 
and lrlIlructions to Bidders, 1bc AiJeemcnt, the dttalled SpeciflCaDons, and \be Plana plfUml/li to 

Ibo! ""'"" to be done. IU ofwhich ha"" b=> cl<Mninocl by the undc:nignod. 

, Acti>i'....'Y"l,IlN bid iI. cemfied or ,ulllcn "hed, cr standard bld bond In !he ~ 
'5 ...l!:au.... t ($) 

LII ~ With the InVlWlOn to B'd and 1nJtrIIctlonsII) 8,cldrn 

• The l.lIldenipled bidderagrees 10 execute the contract and• Perf.." ..1f;C Bond and• Payment 

] Bond fur the amount oftlw: total ofllua bid Wlthm fiftem (l S)ca)endar do.~ from the <!all' when lht 
wn~ nolIet: of the award ofw coatta:t II dehvcred 10 tum II dw: Iddres:sgiven on this bId. The 
name andaddRao of the CUilxu\C! -..ely WIth..tIlch the hldder 1""'1"'+' to fumu.h the lpC'Cified 
bondIllNfoll09"': -r;...... k.... , (oJ......H~ <_,). ~ (~, 

5.	 Alllhr variousp/lalel ofW<.ri:mumenlted in IbcConIJaC1 Documents WIth thea IJIdIVJdual)Obs 
ondovem..d. ~ opec,fK:ally mml>onlld ,"",llldod by unphcatlOn or appurtawll1hcmo. an:to 
be performed by the Contractor under one of 1MIlmllIlisIcd in the Bid. lmopcctJve of ~ 'I II 
named In lAId hll.. 

6	 Payment for work performed will be III ~ WIth the Bid Sllb:lco;t to dllllp Ii provided in 
the Contract Ilocumenu. 

8.	 B'dder agreea thaI the Work shall be su'oslantlallyrompleted and!hall be completed and ready for 
Final Paymmt in ~ ""ib the CondlllOOI of the Contract on or before the dalel or Wlthm 
the nwnbcr of calendar dayslJldlcated In 1hI: A~l 

Bidder K«pll the pl'OVl,ionI of the Agntllltlll u to liqUIdated daJna.p In the evenl of fa,lure to 
~Ittt 1hI: Won: W11hln!he t1mcaopec,ficd '" the Agreemenl. 

9, ""'" fol1Mm11 documcnll ..... IlWchcd to.nd rrwdc. condJ.t>"" oflhl. BId; 
Sel:uon 00410, BId Secur1ty 

J 7. 

.... _ hl"o,ul... ". ""'~_s.tW)' se- !.<""';on BIDfORM 
Im tOOW'tl" no (0)00 • I _ 



• • 

ATTACHMENT A.2 
Stctxm00420. StIlnPI:nt ofBIddm Qllahfi,;abOl'll 

BIDSOIEDUU 
8~ wIlI............,..1tE work lD ....... .-..c wnh!be CoDttxt Doo.&mrnu for URIl ~ Bur Bid 
.nd IDIlIl ~. h-..d bdcrw, 

SCIIEDl" LE A (-Idro STRU:T l\lrRO\'E~I E:'\TS) 

~Tt~l csrrs I SUBTOTALmK""", I 
1.F R-.- mil ~ CurtI A a. )1 t! 924 ' L<f Q'l6 

, ~ and Replace H......"3p Aa:eII / 
EArn • 1"",~ " 

R~ and Re-plac:e S..x--Ik ...l 1.FIe " S It, ZlZ. 

• Ren'ICl\"e and Repla« COIlCif le 0 ....... , .. 
" 

.. 1.F,. " l' Widel ' S :11..• , RmIOYC and Repla« Cl'n=le Croapan 
1.FW Wide) • 

, "'
" 

""" 
" 

Remoyc and Replace Retain,", Wan •1.F" • 2.'00 " 
. .7 ~ and Rrpl...,c Feeee 7Q 1.F IlSc 2.5 • 

• " ~ blSlJn& Tift 2 EArn US<! ' \11..'50 • , ConIwc:1 Cor.... tk Collar Around ," EACHN = L ", Fnmo 31< • USC" 
e-tn.act e-:...... eon. Around Water

10 v... _ " 10 EACH • ~500"3So 
R IIOt F........ Sanilar}' s.-..
 , ,11 ",rnIuLS 10 2.<;."• 
:::::~RqWe AJpb&It md Buo: ..... sv21. ' S fl'fUC'e-.. " 

Il Ranow: .... ~ Area s-m.uet 2 EArn3"';5" • 7'i90 • 

" I"OOOU I SO PVC WA:r Ma:l 1.F" ." 1 zc 'fat ' 3'1 
,s- CL 250 DIP WaJcr M.amIS 1.F4. 

• S /In" 
/, - Gale VaM.MJ, Class 250 16 l EAtlI S12. ';0 ,150 

,, - 90" MJ Bend17 EACH .40~l D 

..- SIIWl Iu4"0••'..... and 6" s~ SoMor)' So-b_ 810 fORM 
117) IOOHlI,llt 1.10 OO)OO.!· 

http:e-tn.act


ATTACHMENT A 2.
 

]
 

EACH1rt. 6- Reducer • lSo I' l sD 
) EACHn rMJTee I 121 5 I ' illS . 

EACH2 -..... 6~S.MlToc 4002Q 600• 
• , I EACH.......1%~ ldo:a:r PIt
 1 ~50~'S" 

New F...., Hydnn! AAU""". ~ , EACH 12 - • w..........
 we 
L~) . b...,"""' F...., Hy<hnl A 1 EACHyW-II w..........
 • =

~and~EJ:... Fn EACH sIzsec- ZS"';H".... " , EACH Connec1 to b,JIl.... M~ '~~" , .EAOlPI", Exwin& Plpt'h~ · • ZSDIlS" 
" EACH sPI... and AMndon b 1Jl1fI1 P,pt'hM 1400 "1S- • 

Shorten and Coolle(;l EJljJtinJ Y.M •

" 6 EACH I -(.,~1D50~u Line 10 N~ Main 
blend and Connect Existing Y,M Service

" J EACH I L... 10 Nc-w M.m 400>1"""  ,C..""e le ThrwI Bloc:b EACH I 30 1..5I'" 
n CoaIwr;J: Twe C CIIrb InIc1 I EACH I 2.100  l 'OO 
JJ ee-truct" T)'pC It CurbIJUct 1 EACH • J1w •' 100 

e-ua IS"' Nyloplast Dr.inap B.sia ,)) EACH 

.. I 

.~..u.S' kdWOa. I'sc" 
e-..as...~o...t.jC

" 1$5,00•.......
 • $Iou 
" I ,- ReP s.on. ~ - U I ,S18 " 3, 
l6 IS'" ADS Sbm Se-er 11J U I- 4ou '3" 

"'-' Type VI. (0- 6) Ripnp...,tIl.)7 SY I•T II (CDOT a- AJ8cddInt N o ' 5<. 
TrU6c 0:m1JOll8 1$1 I5=" 5G<.<J 

" S'le Ra&ontKIQ 1$1· ('?<JO • (,,"" 
J . - Stnoel ~1" O..."."t1 one! ~ s..... Son,Wy s.- h,_ 

111)IOOlSl'I' ''S20 

]
 



.ATTACHMENT A 2.. Mob,hnllOn ~d DemobilizatIOn, Field 

'" 
I LS I , . _. . 

" 
Asphalt Petch > McKinley Avenue well 

of 4* Strttt 
, 60 SV • Iw:) 

c Asphalt Patch - Roooeve lt Avenue 10.1:11 

of ,*Street 3 D- 60 SV I I f<x,' 

4) 
Asphalt PIlCh - R~'Tl t Avenue cUt 
of 4* SlIUt - 60 SY • II:PJ ' .. Asp/lah PIoto;h - Lincoln AvallIC we.t of 
4* SlJcel 3 0 ' 60 SV I I&<.> ' 

I I""'" ' 4) 
Mpbalt PIlCh _ KennnIy Avmllt west 

of"· Strm -30 60 sv 

SC HE DULE B (6th ST REET SANITA RY SE WER EXTENS I O~) 

ITEM 

I 

TASK 

Remove Alphah Pavement 

PRICE 
PB< UNIT 

, 
4 

rrrv UNm 

sv 

SUBTOTAL 

.,825 ' 11;XY; ' , 1nIl&11 Arphall Pavement ze . 4,825 SV S 13 '; /00 · 

3 IS·lnch PVC Sew... P'pe 
oS ' U 60 LF S 101 <400' 

I ,-'• S-lnch PVC !kwer PI"" ", ' " LF 
. , T, e 10 b ,' tlnS Manhole /qSO' I EACH I '4"" 

. 

SN ~ ~• ColIstrucl: .. . D~er Sewer Manhole 
2,,", 

, 7 EACH 

7 Construct a.y Cutoff Wall 
~ 

3:'<", 

7 

a 

EACH 

EACH 

I :\<= " 
I 1000 

, 

I L'1SO
r 

• Construct C<mcrete Cutoff Wan 

, Construct Concme Collar Arow>d 
MlJlbole Frame: :£>0 ' 7 EACII 

10 Wmdsor R.csel'vOIl" Canal CroPm, ')0 ' ss LF • 4-9fio r 

" TrVIi, ConlJOl Scoo" I LS I ,
Xu> 

I · S"... h"po,""n<1IlI one! rt' _ SAn\1Or)' s.- E:<_ 
" D """ 

Iani OOlSo1IS .. ' 20 ooJOCl _I . 



1 

ATIACHMENT A.2
 

12 

Il 

Site Restorallon 

l'.>l ao' 
SYf,l AI 

LS 

LS 

I • 

12. PRICES 
The f0lT80lnll pnces thalllhClude all labor , rm.lo:nll.,lrmIJpo!talio!l, Iohorma. removal, ~tmng, 

o.......t.ead. profit, ~. etc ,. lO OO'o",.lhe ComplC1e work in pia« of the ~ kmds called for 
mme ConlrlCtDocummll , 

Resp«lfully submitted. 

] 

ADDRESS 

(Scal- IfbKi II by I cc.pon.non) 

EI\n OF RID Hl R.\1 

J .- s.r... b...o.a...... 6.. S...... Suilory 'l.twet E>_ 
II 7JlOOSSllll . '20 

J
 



__ 

1 

] 
SECllON 00610 

, 
1lIE~ ol'_obYplk>olll 1boI""'"'- ..~ hoo .................
 
T""n of \\ I'liinpoo 1M • ' ~. BidIIfId bordl:r __ • port 1lior..c1O C!PIw iDIO. CCQlN;:lioD
 
"eo= '- b lht__vf . '" s.- Imp""'''''''''' A f>I!I Sir«< s.n".... s.... .. h,""'"
 

NOW """""'"' (II)	 1l'.... DIDJtaIlbo.., _l .. 

(b)	 1l_1llO.... be , led _ ..,...... ....aeN
 
C ..... h • __ (p.......1) ;1 I .. '
 
b. taiddlal ...... of_O;dna, _ .. '*' ]	 .. r , · • __ • .,.- llboo•• idl,1IId1hd 
~~dw , of.BID, ...... 1lliI ~

doIi_ • C .... .. dol .... oL 
8lD) ... oboU ,.".,...BOND

01. ,...- plO or 
1100 .... 

obollbeOllid> Olb<nrioo dlI' 1lbo.Il ........ 
.. bw..,. ftfoQ, II "-I..; ..., __ , _ ..-_ "'1iobiWy 01.... $mdy '" -r ... 

]
 • cWD.... • .... ;,...~ drc ~ --.aI of 1Illa obIisoQoIl_ bada IbI1lld.
 

TboSbnly, for..- ......."""" ba'SI1..~..nl...- 1lI£~otgjd,....,.onol.BOM) 
... "" ...,. ;q.u.d or on-.d ""..,. vfdoo wblch Ibo 0--... _ ..,.,

]	 BID; :5INy .... .....,. ..--.01..,. lido en "'"
 

IN WInlESS \VI-ID:I!CI', tIM',.b:ipoI_ 1M ScnIy ..... Ioa _ .. Ibdr ~.-I ..mo1tUo'.!!"y 01 
~ 2001.. ...l ..... 0I1ba. .... __ .... ... ""_..t&-I_
lhooir_..._ 

lbo.,..- III beIIipal by ~,..... oIJx:.rI, Ibo~ md r-lInI. b1Io__ 

"""CD''' N_ SdI..odt~ a......... I...	 _ -"C_of Am<fi<&
T'''''''''.." . I<tlC 'l' . 

] 

_ 

.-..-, OncT...... S<l-e 
It.lfotd,CT (61 1) 

] 

] 

]
 (SEAL)
 
bo ou<Ilorized ,.. .....-..ct lIo.du_ III ...s.... o(Colcndo .M 

Di DOF DID OOND 

J 
~ __._ "",, • • _,... .,~ 1.... ,. r..,...... 
1 1 t)I~j:H ' I . I;G 

J
 



1"(..... [R OF AITOIl~n ' 

TRAVELERS J ...........<-,. ... ...... "..-' _.(' 

......... ""-'("__, --.C__
Tro...... c_-,

• 

-'--' _.('-,..--' _.-. 1--.1·_, ....... 1"'_
 ,- ' '_c_, ...........c_ .... _,f_,..,oil
 ~ 

.... 114_ 1__ (·_ ll__,,-,_G_.('_ 

._.\00 ...._ 21N63 ,_~ 001979168 
I ...... ... 4LL \II..'" iV THI_'.: r RfC"" TS """" 50_-,.~,... ....,..._...,._,oJ _ of* _01 V......... " ,...


"", .._--,~,ilI,....--__"....._, .... 11 _-.,_.C__ ...., >od_...... 

..... _et lol_ fa , c-, "-'", n..n.n c-, ... -,.e-.... n....... c.-, Mols-., ~",,--_ _... _ .._"' _"'C_... _~_ F_ ...~~ .. _F _oioIl'~_'"_ 
_ of .._ of M"l'-' """ -,. ~ 1_ ~ 10 • '00 <lull _ 1<01_ of _ of -.I" "*'"t ... 
...-._U.... ,_~... 01011' ..1 _01"",_ _"" ""' "("_ .....C_ .. .......,__ _
 

c.oo- K _~I1 .......,QIMI _.o....~ .......W_ C _ . ...., T ~,_ J.-.O-" F 000 . .... ..
 
V_R 10•• a ""' 11 _ .__ '" -'I'lo,oIlR, l.OoIII, _ _ W_ 

oI .. ar,d~!n _of C~ , ............. _.........,.. •••_ .
J ..__..__ ...,"'-.....,_._- - , '-.......
_._ --~--_ 
__ t "S ,. ,, _"''''c , _0(_ .... -, .. ....-._ ........,.,.
 'af 
.-.... -_ .. _ .... ' M .. """,,_ .. po I , ..._lr!' .... 

". "·'''" ~·:.;·~~ll:;~·~ '~h ':·IOO ---_..... '" ........._-~ ....-_..---:.:::.._- 
:!~ · ':'': :::' !II~\;·1 ~' . 

•• _c , ~"_ .........c_'-.... c·_
 .-,. .... e- , r_ .......... """-> 1_ .-. 1"
..-. _ ,'-""" _.1 .............. 1... ...-h...ah, __, 1"_
 

--..........__'1--
1 _. 

"_, 
'_I·......,__I·_..


"'- ..... •'w. 1--. I:_".... . 1'_,~~_~ '·'" 
1 

. ,;..  ", ,

J e-, . ." a 
1 
] 

J
 

J 10 .. _ .. _ . _ ... .., __-... ....
 __~_e_,j~ 
"' C ....... .... __m_ lOll
 .... c _.__ 

-.s-07_ .. us .. 

J'--_ _ ---====~~""--__-.J
 



__

_ J ... _ 01 AI:O at. -.cl-..o.n ,.,. lOW ~ 

..._~-.... • .- ., ... ~~ ... -... ' ...... ., ..._oI~oIr c-,~.-,

_.-,_c_~_~_·t' •__ -,."_SLI'IolF.w C e
 
1t _~_~. !l _~_c_. r-c-, _ -, c I I r-C-,_....,~ 01 ___ ~__ __.... __.-_"...,._~~ t_ 

••""••m . _ ..n-- .. _ """~ l>a_ , .... _ ~ _"""-. .... v"" -._I -... v•• 
oI_.. ..- - ,_ .----. ------, ._-_..c_·.__ _-..~ _~ • __

__.__ 01~. Ie _ .. ._ e . " .. _ .._

~ ~ .__..._ 01_... .. _ _ - ......
nn1ll. U""IIl'no _ ..c-... _ ....... ...... _ ... _ ......__ .., v. __•
~..,~_._ .. _01..__-...._.. .. '1 .....__ Sl, ••__0I"'~_._...-....._,_.. 
n.-nt'.u"'.Ht> _ ..__ e _.. , ... _cH s ,."_01._ e . ' 1_ .. _ _ _ ..'-_,"..... ., .._ .. """0 .. __ _ ...... _ ..... -- - _.._--_..~_ .....-_ _---_.. 
c~·;_.,._. .• ,_-. ~~.,

~

' ,..__",-_..._ 
......... .. _ e 01-. ... _ ,, •• _'1 .. _ "'.
.. _
 

n.-ntn.p P _ .. _ .... _...__ ..,f._ _ __, I __ 
.._ _ -. _-.._.._ .... c_ _ ""' .,_ "'_ _ 
...... _ _ "••, _ _ _ -'- $0<.__ .. lor _ 0001 _~ 

, 1 e, ,...__._ .._,._.._ . __-.._r__.-__.. 
__--._ .. c__..__._.._., ..__ ..... _ .. 
~." " _ ' c _ _ . .. " . e _ 

... n-.....-...... · _ · ·..- , - _ .... - _ _ .._oI_~.. -lIL .... ---.AI1J:i l .OI 

~--

1. """"l" •::: ::.:: : ::::. _ .."-- _ , _ . _ •• n .- ""-_; , . -..h<l_.... ,..... -.._....._.._.._.: 

http:n.-ntn.p


1 

SECTION00420 

STATEMH<T ot-IlU>DER'S QUAllFICATlO:>iS 

AllqUC$l""," musl toe . ..."'em;! and the da ta lP,en must toe dear aM cornpTdlensi ~_ This S1atcment II1USl 
toe notarized If neo.-asary. que>tions may toe answered 00 ocplIl1lte .tlll,;hcd shceIs_ lbe Bidder may submJl 

any add't""",1informah' ''' they <l"" , ~_ 

I 

2. 

i'il1	 _
J.	 \\lien orpnilcd: 

, If a <:oq>OI1ItlOn, '"'~ irlCUfl'Ol'llod.:	 !JLl1J"""-'t~,,'__""""''''' 

110'"' many )'au"I1Ia\'C you been cnpgcd in tbo: COl\lJ1III;ti"ll buslllCU uodc:r your praenl finn Of 

trade """"'? lJt 

6	 C'ontf8CU 01\ hand: tSd1edule theoe. r./towinl IITJ:JUfIl o f each oonlnd and tbo: anlietJ*cd dales of 
~ldion.) l iS! the 1ocaIion and typo' of conotndion. name of)'OUl" supe'lnldldml 011 the projcd, 
Owner and I'.nginoer for c.:h projo;t ,,"'ilb a>rU<1 pm.ons r.... c.:h the Owrer and tbo: E"Il'l>eCfJ	 ,,-ith thelr Id q>/>onl: nwnbcn " here c.:h may toe cnnla'Icd 

j 

J
 
J
 

~ sm..., t........" " ..._ ....J" SI_ Son;,...,. .......~ h t•.".... IlIDOt 1l"'5 QUAl tfl("ATIO"S 
1.1J lOItlH ,t,,, aN 00<29 • I • 



If'''. ...hen: arxl ,.·hy?' _ 

, 
lf so,whm:andwhy?' _ 

Ifll<J.wh=: and,.·hy1, _ 

li<l lhe ......, ""porta'" proJ""'. rocently compl"'cd b)' your OOffiJ"Iny, llaunS ,t.. appl'O~;maIC "'* ofeach. 
lhe mornh llIld y= wmp ll1cd, local,on.nd t~'f'I: of 00I'IS11\11.1ion.IllIIIY of your supmnI~ "" 
the pR>J'""', ........,. and enp"""," f", each ""'J""1.."II ,t.. ,c\qJhone nwnhc:n ,.-hr:rc c.cb lTlIIy be 
ront....1o:d. Do IlOl li<l projco;ta ,101, ~ h.l00 Wll!cr b abovc_ 

I I. I ," your !!!!lli!f "'l U'pmen! naiJal>lc for llus COlIU1lC1_ 

~4 ......'" I........~. ... ~,~...... '!.on;,.." .....,.,~ F..,"~,.. Illllrn R"; QI \1 I ftc HIO'<.~
 

II ?J u.,~~ ~ '" '" ~ :!Il '.":'11 . l . 



flve yean hSlllhe same infonnalioo a i. requested to- item 10 abo;n.~ 

I] Ra..-kjp'Ollfld ILIId C'<pcncTO;:'C of the rrincipal mcml>t-nof )'Ollf o.pmutlon. inc1udm8 o fTlCcn, 

I,CoW	 gw 

Bank rcf~. Lill the Bank name, Con1a.1 pc:non.lLIId tc\cpl'lonc lUTIll«" ---..WJ.">IJ!...... .5f.,,~ &........."
 

] re Will ~ upon request, fIll oul. dcuiled flnUll:ialllal~and fwniih any Olhcr infonnWon l/W 
m.y bt required by the ()O'O" ner?_ --l, , ,~_ 'l(o.>	 _ 

17.	 ""')UU I~ .,.an ~\'....... plpcllne ronalNClor (lI" .ny ocher ",'''?If )'U, in ...hat c;ry, 
county , or sta'c? 

] 

j 
WMl d aa. liccnac.nd numhcn ? _ 

J 
I ~ Arc )\lU IIwohcd m any 1."' OUll. <I, arc any 1. "" ....11. pend'...t rhe ~r 

hrrw~ N' ~ 

If Y". lIl "" rhed....at l. 

_ 
_ 

~ " 

\""II<,t arc ItIc 1"'111 . or Y'..... publ IC hablllry"' 

~~ S"'~1 1"",",,_ ...., 0" S""" s.n~..., .......... f"""""" B1DO[R'SQt-'MIn l"" r1(""" - 
I." ""_, " 'I .\ ....'0 ," ~10 . J _ 



21 . Wh.l ~ your COrtlJlIlrIy'1 bondinglimi..ho.....? _ 

22, Name (If J"I'l"P05Cd Supmnlmdml for Illi s proja:t, S.id pen<!n shall he mjll,ral in .he P""l""1 
WlIn".jo:I"CCd upon OIhmooiloC m wriling by Owner. 

11le undcni~ hm:by .11111"ri_.nd mj_~Y penon. rtrmor ~"rp"""ion.o furnish any infonna. ioo 
~cd by ,he 0... ncr In ,enlk.llon of the m:,w ~"lI ilus Sla'eme", of Bidden QuaJ,rocallOnl, 
The lll>lkrsigrlCd fulthcr.~ l1181 l~ w,lI no! bring swl in .wwt of l. w for an)' informal"'" llIal " 
fwmohcd '0 Owner ,n II'XQ f.i, ll by roaid p;il1ics or penuRll'aflOIIdini 10Clwn<:o'. l'ajlle.U for mfontlllllOll 
concc:miml Bidder', qual'flCalioni 

/ " . 200fL.. 

..:r.. fr..,._, 
NameofBidder 

", CC".,. 
D 

T~I..: 

Sl.o'e of --Lc {" of, tl C 

C<'lUnly <>f ( ~ '" : JS.+,-:\) 

_ 
, 

.:>LL _ 

H"DOF SECT[O~ 

~. r s,,,... ,__....i _ s.......,. 'io.... ,~ f."...., ....,
 
111001 R"§ Ql:"Uf lr" TIO",S 

I",J InnS" . 1• " >10 'l,lol:!lJ . ~ . 

http:bondinglimi..ho


J 

-•-t 

I I 1 f I i II I
 
! I ! ! I I I I I I ;
 

I ij l ! I ' ! I I l ! I 
i A E t ~ Aft. A ~ 

III ( ~ l l l l l l , 

I
 
I! I I I r 1 I r I I 1 1
r r r r t v: iJA 

II 
! 
I j I I I I I I II I
 
4 I I f ~ 141 I I !
 

I I I ! ! I I I I I I I
 
I I I I I I I I I I I
 

> t • I ! I I I I ! I 1II I	 
- . 

,
 
I I t I ' I
 
I I I ! I, I I	 !
 

I
I,:!! t.1uuu.nn



Sd'rnoclt EBrth Bulld_, InC EQUlPO'fti'll L>51 ,,"'''' 
..........1 UN " """" """ " """" 

'" Co< 621E

" CoH"1 ." .. '0 "" " .., Co< 
02 .o .",""" ".'" " "" 

OJO eo,"" cos CoO ,,'" " 00 
Co< "" 

CoO CP033e eo, earn
1 coo " "" 

coo " .... >Joe '" m "90 ..... 
CP,U3C 93.." T_ 

CoO T" ".. CoO n. "- """'" "e" 
e""," m " "- F.... n1 

e" ..... '''' 00 
T_ 

e" 
00 ... >Joe tse ,." ,C" " .. w_nT29CoO cecsc .....e" .. 

T30 
" " ~ e" CoOct w_"DO> .. CoO """'" OOClllXL 

U2 
" rt, 

"""'" w_ " TrIl.. CoO '" " " 
TU 00 W_ T'"..."'" 00 

CoO 
""'" " ..." W",.Trk'"" ""'"CoO ""'". '" n, W_ Trio.] "" .." ~ EX$!IOl.C ras " ..'" 

CoO 
"",n03 H" " w. "" ".. ~ 

".. w. "" 
33DBl."0 00 " J '" CoO """'3 ,......, "" .... """'" .. CoO "'0 " "'" .... """'" ..,.

00 ~ .. ...,'" ""'" EX.5(J " cu, .... """'" '" =0. "" ..,] ,'".. " ~ ZU50lC "" .." ,..... '-.." CoO "" ,.....GO> 

CoO 

.", .. ...... .....""'H TO ...GOO CoO HJO 
W_l_G" .. CoO " " ] G" cs CoO ,-'''''' "" " 00 

<DO CoO t,., ..... '-""H33 .. " "'" """'" .." v_ ""LOoe 

'" .. CoOJ '" .. 
"3 ... "" v_ .,"'"
'" "2OC 

CoO nOD 
00 CoO .360J ".'" " 
OJ v_ "oo.. ..,.'" CoOoe 

to>< 
v_ t30lJ '"'30 .." ... .. v_ 

."e..,,, CoO 

.0 aroe] ...... "" 
CoO 

HJ1250R .." " - 0'" 

.." ".. v_ 
CoO "'" 

21ClLE] .." 00 .'".... 02 " CoO "00 
CoO '300.." oe 
ow RT"J .." '" ..... BTRCH .18"" '" 

os 2101.£

J ..""" " v_ "'" " .." eo, """ " "'" 
.." cs Vael''''' 

J 
,n co' 81SCII,.. .."" 

eo,

eo, 
"" 
6HICII 
-

se eo, 623F 

'" Co' 623F '" .. 
J 



iIf! I I I I I I I f I I I Iff I I f 1 I

I u uu n n u Iliillill
 

I ~ ~ ~ I ~ I ~ ~ ! ! ! ! I I ~ I ~ i ~ I I ~ :
 
1(( ( ( ( ( ( ~ ( ( I ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (~ (
 
,I I
,! I I J I I i I ! I I J I ! ! i I I I J ! ! I ! I
 r r i r i t i i t r r r r r r r r r r t r r r r 

j 

I I I I gIg I I I i J l ! f ! g I III I I g 

I J ! J ! 1I I I 1I I J I I I II! I I I I I t 
III I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
 

• l ft Ii! • f ~ ~ ! iii ~ iiI i A I ~ ~ ~ 
p pp - _... - .. 

II iii i I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I Iii 
II I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I i I I I Iii 

j I . i I 

I J.I 1 I ,jj tJ
 
I J Jllll.l ,.rI·1 jl,1iol

II II J 1J I! f !1iiI f j I j i j i IIi 



1 II 
~ ~ 

1 I
 
1 I I I I I 1 I I I ill 1
 
l I iii ! I J . I I I I I J
 

! '. I. I. • ! I ! ~ ~ I I'" 1
, ! , ~ ~ i , ! i ~ ~! j I ! ~ ~ 
J ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ a ~ ~ ~ ~ 

1
 

J j II ! II t f !!I I I I f I!
 
J 

! I I
i j
 
~. I
 

J t I I I t I J I J Itt t I j I I I t I
 
J I ! ! I I f I ! ~ ; : I I I ~ I ~ I ~ ! ;
 
J I I I iii iii I I I I I I I I I I I I
 
J I i I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I !
 

J
 
J j

r' 

J "I "j I f J 'j
J I 

I
J . fl ' 
I i I I! ! ! I I f II
 

I '" J t I • 

I

I - i I
 
l II!
J. J

"I· 

I I I I
... . ... ..
 
I I I I
 
! ! ! !
 
:t :t ~ !.. .. .. ..
 

! ! J!
 
I I , 1
 ... .. .. ... 

I I I I
 
i I I I
 

!•
 

I I I

II! d! 

, 

lt ill f
 



•"
t " 

] I I I I I I I I I I I I
 
J I I I I I I I I I I I I
 

J
 2 ,
 
J I ! I f I I J I ! I I
 
J f : 11 ! 1 I I i ' I
 
J I I } I ! ! I I ! ! I I 

•
I




I 

II I i II 
( ~ ~ ( ( ~H!II 

! ! ! ! ! ! ! 
! ! ! ! ! ! ! 
~ t t t t t tIii f I	 f l I l 

I • ! ! III ! ! ! ! I ! ! ij ! I
• • I i ~ • Ii, , f • i ~ , i II I II II 
I ; ; ~ ; ; ( ( ( ( ( ~ ( ~ ( ~ ~ ; ( ( ; ( ( ; 

!
 
I! I I ! t i JI I i I I ! r l I I I I I I I I I I


I I I I I I I
 I I I ! ! • ! I § ! ; • I I I I 1 1 1
 

J , \ ! • I !. \ \ ! \ ! I I ! A ! A A A A A 
:1	 ! I I I I I I I I I
 
J II	 I I I j I ! ! ! I ! f ! 

J j I I I IJ I I II I I I I I ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
 
I I I I I I I 

! 1 • • I ! ill 1 . 1 i ! ! •	 IIIIIII
 
! ! ! ! ! ! !
] IJ! I! I I ! ! !1! I , 1I 1111111
 
I I I I I I IJ !l! ~ : ~ : ~ ~ f ~ I I ! ! ~ ~ I : ; J a ~ ~ • ! 

J !! l l l l l l I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
 
J II MMI I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
 

I I I} I 'I I, 
J 

LI '
 
1,1 I 'I!, I! l! 1 I ~ I j ~ I I i I
 

J I I I I I { , ! I ! I I I ! I if: f , • • • II
 

]
 

J r ! I ! Iii ! ~ I ! I j i ! ~ i I I I I I I I
 
J 



I ~ 

1 I I I I I I I I I I "
"•
I 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ( ~ ( ( ( 

1 ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! 
I I I I I I I I I I 
e 6 t 6 8 6 6 6 6 t1 I I I I I I I I I I 

1 I I I I I I I I I I 
I I I I I I I I I I 

' I I i I I I I I i 
( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( 

] 

] ! ! ! I ! ! ! ! ! ! 
] I I I I I I I I I I 
J I I I I I I I I I I 

I ! ! ! ! ! ! I ! ! 
J I I I I I I I I I I

I I I I I I I I I I
 
J I ! I ! ! ! ! ! ! !
 
J iii

I I I I I I I I I I 
iii iii i

! I ~ t I ~ : § I J 

J I I I i I ; iii i 

J I I i I I i I I i I 

J , 
J ! I I 1 I i j

I 

l I ~ j j ! ! I J 
I~ .! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
•I



l 

1• 

Key Personnel 

W~'J ". 
Sonce Boog'~""ical InIomInon 

1 
1979 

1
 
]
 

]
 

] 
Jell Sm,!t> 1977 2005

] Voce Pr.Sldent 

] 

J 1992 

J
 
J
 

Chns!",a K.ng 1975 1988] Coo"", 

] 
Marl< V"" Ronk 1982 1998 

Pro!ecl Man8gDf 

J
 
J
 

ZOO<l 

J 
J
 

Je<ry hal worl<ed ., the construct>on if\Ou$lry 
el an : 

tKluopmenldealer , 
IllCltry ........ mllnlOQlt<,
 

IllCtety saOesman, 
p+pej..,., $Ul>8'1ntendent, 

construe1ion . stm ator. 
projed man8gDf, 
getle<a1 wperllllendeot. 
0fl0lll'8I manag<lr , and
 
p.............,
 

He os II Viet Nam ~eta<a'l lItId IONed "' !he 
U"'1ed Stales"'" Force , 

Jell ......:n"" lor ADS Inc as a Ma-Ilet 
Oe'oelopfllllnt SpecIaI..!llOd sales Engree< 
He was ",s t' u..-.ta1 II> Oftvllklplllg .......
 

bulinlll! ~'tiEl6 ,n lI'lII m~ lIfld
 

_tom <egiona He has II ~ Jl
 

Marl<elO'lQlorm tllfl UnivefsJly 01 M,s:;oon,
 """"',. 
Darryl has worI<ed W11h OU' company In the 
capecrliea 01 Ia.per operlllcf . earthmOVIng 
foreman. ltShmlllOl' . project menage< and 
aaflltyofflC8f He .. . US 1,1..... Corpt. 
""t...... who set'Ved during 0pe.eI1OI1 D.I&I1 
Sto<m 8nd woth US Eml)aM"" and 
Coow atM 

Chrillna .. respoos ibkl for !he corporele 
aa:ounh"ll, f,nuncial fflIXlr\ng and lax 
re!J¥n1 She hal II e..ct>eklt01 Soeno& ... 
Accoun tl"ll from Colorado Slatlll.Jnivlmllly 

Marl< has IIxlensivllllJ<ponllnce in ••hmabng 
..., project m~, He I. II ",*,0018 
of Colorado Stale Un....er. ,ty""lh IIdegree in 
ConstrvcbOn M8rlagemenl 

DII'ofid has t>een II m,nll manage<, ••tlmator 
and projeel manager A gt1Iduet. 0/ Colorado 



l
 
1
 
1
 
] 

] 

] 

] 

] 

] 

] 

J 
J 
J 
J 
] 

J 
J 
J 

Joe Huss 1972 
Ut.hl_ Supenr>lendent 

Gene Pfed 1972 
E8lthwor1< Supenntllmlenl 

S18Vf1 T"'tes , 961 
Lead Eerthw<J<l< Foreman 

O\lane OveI'beck 1962 
Lead Ut,rIy Foreman 

larryV;g~ 1967 
Eantlwork Foreman 

Stale Uruverslty. he has \I del1ee in 
Con$trucloon Management !"Ie II ..... \I 

V",l Nam ve teran 81 \I Commandvr WIth \1'111 

US NaYf' 

2005	 GaYs e..,enence ~ geolectlllOClll 
eng.-..g. tes ting . asphalt paving. es,,",!llng 

and P"Olect m~1 He has W(lI'klld 
in \he Cityol Fort ColI.... E~ 

[)eparUTIent 81 II prOjeCl and constJvCtoon 
m.naoe<- Gary I\aa. 6ad>eIof of SCillnce 
in EllllneerYIQ ,,"om ee Un~'tv of 
W i$COnU l , 

1979	 Joe IS llllllX\remll'ly IIl<P81'oenced heavy 
equ.pmenl mechanic and Ol""lllOl' , He I\aa 
8 1$0 been 81or"",1II" and IS !'lOW !he U'~ lbes 

luperint"n<lent rlls.ponl lble I", a ll l iZ" end 
types of unde<ll"oond utility construction 
Joe coord.....t'" II" ul~' ty projects lor the 
company as wej l as all uI,lIty pe~ He 
atten<led N<)O'thea sle m JuniOr Colleogll and 

COlotaoo Stale UnlVersrty 

1990	 Gaoe IS en expenenced hea")' equIpment 
operato<. pipeline foreman . earthworl< 
foreman and supertintanoent. He IXIO<d inetM 
all earthwork prOject. lor the lXlITIpany BI we ll 
as all earthwork pa<sonnlll 

1982	 StllVfl has u ten s i",e flanhm<>\l'ng IIxpeflllnce . 
as an equipment operator. mechanIC. weide(, 
lomm an, tuperinlendenl and .,t" m8n"ll"' , 
He >s 8 U.S Arm y Corps Of Engineers Voel 
Nam ~ele ran _ 

1989	 Quane is a pipehne crew fOfeme'" w llh many 
\'Oa... as being a heavy equipmerol operalor 
He has been our lead Ulil '!y foreman since 
1992 WIth the ..... poro.bO ,!y 01 opera t"'ll the 
most <Xnlplflx projllC1 S 

, 999	 Larry IS iI \'lI ry adept equ'pmenl opttrelOf 
arIll pa~"'l$h crew fOfem an who IIOJDy! Itle 
highest regard in all 01 NOl1hem Colorado 



--
1
 

J
 

1
 
1
 
1
 
1
 
] 

] 

] 

] 

J 

J 

J 
J 

City 01Greeley 

T... 
.......N_
 
Ref--.ee tunbef 

Eopotatoon Dillie 

City 01G"'" 
T... 
E.po ....,~ 

City of Fon Col_ 
T,,,. .......
 
- """
 E' p" illIl,h o.. 

Cily of Fon QIIlons 

T... .......
 ....."""
 
E. pr,JbOl l o.. 

City 01Fori Co~ ,,,, 

T... 
E.po;bOl1DaI 

OIy 0/ Fort ColI... 

T... 
E.porallOfl Dale 

T-. o/W_ ..... ' 
T... .......
 
,...... 0 ... 

E. poration DOlle 

lJcensesl8cJ'ldlng 

~ Ccnraclor liceI'H 

"""""'" BL07RENEWAl 
o 117" '2OOfI 

,"""""" 

"""*'""""*".... 
12131I2OOl!! 

~a1l,ledCon!.itClor • D.....oh.JOn 

[)U. 14M 

(l;W I!2007 

o:w 1r:.!I:lO& 

Con$lructlOn Superv,sor· DemollbOn 

".. 
~IJ2OD7 ...,,,.,. 

Ul,hlly Coroaaor Bon:l 
o11011'200& 

RllIhI: 01 Wa'1 COrftac1Ql' Bond 
o,iO1I200ll 

""""""'" C ' ".(l7 
oM) , r.!OOll 

, V3 ,I2OCIl3 

J 
Pagel or, 



•• 
Insurance InformatlOfl 

1 
l Agent Van G~der In.....at'IC<I Corp 

700 Broadway 

Suite 1000 

l 0.-. CO 80203 

""""'"..... 
1 

(800/ 113-3500 

1 
c.ner Zunch AmeoOClll ' ~Company 

limItS o..n.r. Aggf~ le 2.000.000 
Products - CompiOp Aoore<;l81e 2.000.000 
E8d1 Occurrence 1,000,000 

1 
] L.n:h ,,",...0CIi11nl<.r'anc:e ~1 

Coo'ofJo oed SongIe Ul'I~ - EIod.. Accoden l 1.000.000M,,,,,, 
] Hnd Autos 

Non ·OwntKl Autos 

Ca""" Zunth Amencan Ins..er>ce Company 

J l mllS : Elldl AccdenI 1.000.000 
o.-e·E_E~ 1.000.000 

J 
Oe e • Policy L.n4 1.000.000 

" .000 ,000 

4.000 .000 

El<CeSSiIJmbreua LIIIIIIolIty] 

] 

] 

J 
J 
J 

Flood ancI p" tll(~ lnaurarx:e Inc 

482 1 Wheaton Or... 

Fort CoIIOIl$. CO 80521 

""'*""'
1910) 266-el10 

T...-s ~ -.:I So.ret)o ~I" 

J 

P8Q81 01 ' 
] 



• 

SECllON00430 

SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS,MAJOR EQUIPMENT ITEMS 

Com D) :\._ 

]
 

]
 

]
 

J
 

J
 

J 
St eco-, lIlAC10llS S(, I'I' llEItS 

...... .\U · I· 

1 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
Town Board Meeting –April 8, 2008 

 
ITEM #:  5 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 14-2008 – Uranium Mining 
 

SUMMARY: 
 
Brad prepared two versions of a resolution concerning the Uranium Mining 
Proposal.  The first version mirrors Fort Collins Resolution in opposing the mining 
of uranium in northern Colorado.  The second version does not oppose mining 
but supports the efforts in the State Legislature to strengthen mining standards to 
better protect the public and environment from the potential adverse effects of 
uranium mining.   
 
The fifth Whereas in both versions claims in-situ mining has never been done in 
Colorado, but the Larimer County Environmental Advisory Board reports that in-
situ extraction was conducted in northern Colorado near Grover by Wyoming 
Mineral Corporation in the 1980s with the operation was halted due to the low 
price of uranium at the time.  This Whereas should be cut from either version if 
adopted. 
 
Following are the two versions, Senate Bills, information Jeff Edquist stated 
he would forward at the last meeting, the Fort Collins Resolution and the 
Advisory Board’s report. 



RESOLUTION NO. 14-2008 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF WELLINGTON, 
COLORADO, EXPRESSING OPPOSITION TO THE MINING OF URANIUM IN THE 
VICINITY OF NUNN, COLORADO 
 
 WHEREAS, Canadian company PowerTech Uranium Corporation (“PowerTech”) is 
considering a uranium mining operation across nearly 6000 acres of land in the vicinity of Nunn, 
Colorado, about 11 miles northeast of Fort Collins, known as the Centennial Project (the 
“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, PowerTech has indicated that it will start the permitting process for the 
Project in mid-2008; and 
 
 WHEREAS, PowerTech proposes to extract the uranium in-situ, meaning that uranium 
will be dissolved out of porous sands located deep underground and brought to the surface for 
processing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, PowerTech has not ruled out extracting some uranium using open-pit 
mining techniques; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project would be the first in-situ uranium mining operation in Colorado; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, in-situ uranium mining is a newer method of mining uranium and the 
environmental impacts and threats to public health and safety posed by the process are largely 
unknown; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in-situ leaching mining technology holds inherent risks, including possible 
contamination of groundwater and degradation of natural groundwater conditions through the 
groundwater restoration process utilized after completion of the leaching operations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, because the mining operations involved in the in-situ process and the 
potential damage caused by such process occur below the surface, early detection of such 
problems may not be possible; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project will be located in an area near Wellington which is experiencing 
rapid population growth; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Board believes that the Colorado North Front Range and, in 
particular, the site presently under consideration by PowerTech, is not a suitable location for 
uranium mining, both because the level of risk to the health and safety of area residents 
presented by uranium mining cannot be determined with any degree of certainty and because the 
presence of such an operation in the proposed location will almost certainly have a detrimental 
effect on the image and economic well-being of the City; and 

Page 1 of 2 
(MO&P 03/26/08) 



 
 WHEREAS, for those reasons, the Town Board is strongly opposed to the Project and 
wishes to convey its concerns and position of opposition to those county, state and federal 
agencies that may review the Project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF THE 
TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO, as follows: 
 
 Section 1. That the Town Board hereby expresses its strong opposition to the Project 
and urges all county, state and federal agencies involved in the permitting process for the Project 
to recognize that locating the Project along the North Front Range and in close proximity to the 
Town of Wellington is ill advised because it may well be injurious to the health, safety and/or 
welfare of the residents in the area and do irreparable harm to the economic well-being of the 
Town of Wellington. 
 
 Section 2. That, for the foregoing reasons, the Town Board further urges such 
agencies to deny any and all permit applications for the Project. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN BOARD OF 
THE TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO, THIS ______ DAY OF ___________, 2008. 
 
      TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO 
 
 
              
      Larry Noel, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Larry Lorentzen, Town Administrator/Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N:\WPC\JBM\WELLINGTON\Resolutions\OPPOSITION to URANIUM MINING.doc 

Page 2 of 2 
(MO&P 03/26/08) 



RESOLUTION NO. 14-2008 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF WELLINGTON, 
COLORADO, IN SUPPORT OF STATE LEGISLATION STRENGTHENING 

STANDARDS FOR URANIUM MINING 
 
 WHEREAS, Canadian company PowerTech Uranium Corporation (“PowerTech”) is 
considering a uranium mining operation across nearly 6000 acres of land in the vicinity of Nunn, 
Colorado, about 11 miles northeast of Fort Collins, known as the Centennial Project (the 
“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, PowerTech has indicated that it will start the permitting process for the 
Project in mid-2008; and 
 
 WHEREAS, PowerTech proposes to extract the uranium in-situ, meaning that uranium 
will be dissolved out of porous sands located deep underground and brought to the surface for 
processing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, PowerTech has not ruled out extracting some uranium using open-pit 
mining techniques; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project would be the first in-situ uranium mining operation in Colorado; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, in-situ uranium mining is a newer method of mining uranium and the 
environmental impacts and threats to public health and safety posed by the process are largely 
unknown; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in-situ leaching mining technology holds inherent risks, including possible 
contamination of groundwater and degradation of natural groundwater conditions through the 
groundwater restoration process utilized after completion of the leaching operations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, because the mining operations involved in the in-situ process and the 
potential damage caused by such process occur below the surface, early detection of such 
problems may not be possible; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project will be located in an area near Wellington which is experiencing 
rapid population growth; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Board believes that it would be prudent for the Colorado 
Legislature to take proactive steps to address the adequacy of mining requirements in the State, 
particularly in light of current mining proposals. 

Page 1 of 2 
(MO&P 03/26/08) 



 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF THE 
TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO, as follows: 
 
 Section 1. That the Town Board hereby expresses its support of the adoption of 
legislation strengthening mining standards in the State including proposed House Bills 1161 and 
1169 currently before the Colorado Legislature.   
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN BOARD 
OF THE TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO, THIS ______ DAY OF April, 2008. 
 
      TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO 
 
 
              
      Larry Noel, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Larry Lorentzen, Town Administrator/Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N:\WPC\JBM\WELLINGTON\Resolutions\OPPOSITION to URANIUM MINING.doc 

Page 2 of 2 
(MO&P 03/26/08) 



Shading denotes HOUSE amendment.  Double underlining denotes SENATE amendment.
Capital letters indicate new material to be added to existing statute.
Dashes through the words indicate deletions from existing statute.

Second Regular Session
Sixty-sixth General Assembly
STATE OF COLORADO

INTRODUCED
 
 

LLS NO. 08-0574.01 Thomas Morris HOUSE BILL 08-1161

House Committees Senate Committees
Agriculture, Livestock, & Natural Resources

A BILL FOR AN ACT
CONCERNING AN INCREASE IN THE REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF THE101

MINED LAND RECLAMATION BOARD OVER MINING, AND, IN102
CONNECTION THEREWITH, ENSURING THE PROTECTION OF103
GROUND WATER AND PUBLIC HEALTH.104

Bill Summary

(Note:  This summary applies to this bill as introduced and does
not necessarily reflect any amendments that may be subsequently
adopted.)

Defines "in situ mining" and "in situ leach mining".  Requires the
reclamation of lands affected by in situ leach mining.  Specifies that
uranium mining is a type of designated mining operation.  Requires all in
situ leach mining of uranium to restore all affected ground water to its

HOUSE SPONSORSHIP
Kefalas and Fischer,  Butcher, Carroll M., Frangas, Gagliardi, Green, Levy, McFadyen,
McKinley, Primavera, Riesberg, Solano, Soper, and Weissmann

SENATE SPONSORSHIP
Johnson,  and Bacon



HB08-1161-2-

premining quality for all constituents.  In the case of in situ leach mining,
requires restoration of ground water to begin immediately upon any
cessation of extraction or production.  Requires all operators to reclaim
all affected surface and ground water.  Requires applicants for in situ
leach mining permits to notify the owners of record of lands within 3
miles of the affected land.

Requires the mined land reclamation board (board) to:
! Require, as a condition of permit issuance, that the

applicant for an in situ leach mining operation pay for an
initial site characterization and ongoing monitoring of the
affected land and affected surface and ground water;

! Deny a permit if the applicant fails to demonstrate that
reclamation can and will be accomplished; and

! Deny a permit for in situ leach mining unless the applicant
submits competent evidence of at least 5 similar mining
operations that did not result in ground water
contamination.

Authorizes the board to deny a permit:
! Based on uncertainty about the feasibility of reclamation;
! If the existing or reasonably foreseeable potential future

uses of the affected ground water include domestic or
agricultural uses;

! If the applicant has previously violated the reclamation
laws and any violation remains unabated; or

! If the applicant has demonstrated a pattern of willful
violations of environmental protection requirements.

Requires notification to the office of mined land reclamation of
any failure or imminent failure of certain listed mining structures within
24 hours after such failure or the discovery of an imminent failure.
Expands the list of such mining structures.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Colorado:1

SECTION 1.  34-32-103 (3.5) and (8), Colorado Revised Statutes,2

are amended, and the said 34-32-103 is further amended BY THE3

ADDITION OF THE FOLLOWING NEW SUBSECTIONS, to read:4

34-32-103.  Definitions.  As used in this article, unless the context5

otherwise requires:6

(3.5) (a)  "Designated mining operation" means a mining operation7

at which:8



HB08-1161-3-

(I)  Toxic or acidic chemicals used in extractive metallurgical1

processing are present on site; or2

(II)  Acid- or toxic-forming materials will be exposed or disturbed3

as a result of mining operations; OR4

(III)  URANIUM IS PRODUCED OR EXTRACTED, EITHER BY IN SITU5

LEACH MINING OR BY CONVENTIONAL UNDERGROUND OR OPEN PIT MINING6

TECHNIQUES.7

(b)  The various types of designated mining operations are8

identified in section 34-32-112.5. Such mining operations exclude9

operations which do not use toxic or acidic chemicals in processing for10

purposes of extractive metallurgy and which will not cause acid mine11

drainage.12

(5.7)  "IN SITU LEACH MINING" MEANS IN SITU MINING THROUGH13

THE IN-PLACE DISSOLUTION OF MINERAL COMPONENTS OF AN ORE DEPOSIT14

BY CAUSING A CHEMICAL LEACHING SOLUTION, USUALLY AQUEOUS, TO15

TRICKLE DOWNWARD OR TO BE PUMPED DOWN WELLS THROUGH THE ORE16

BODY AND THEN REMOVING THE MINERAL-CONTAINING SOLUTION FOR17

RECOVERY OF THE MINERAL VALUES; EXCEPT THAT IN SITU LEACH MINING18

DOES NOT INCLUDE IN SITU MINING FOR SODIUM MINERALS OR OIL SHALE.19

(5.8)  "IN SITU MINING" MEANS THE IN-PLACE RECOVERY OF A20

MINERAL BY MEANS OTHER THAN OPEN MINING OR UNDERGROUND MINING.21

(8)  "Mining operation" means the development or extraction of a22

mineral from its natural occurrences on affected land.  The term "MINING23

OPERATION" includes, but is not limited to, open mining, and IN SITU24

MINING, IN SITU LEACH MINING, surface operation OPERATIONS, and the25

disposal of refuse from underground and in situ mining.  The term26

"MINING OPERATION" ALSO includes the following operations on affected27



HB08-1161-4-

lands:  Transportation; concentrating; milling; evaporation; and other1

processing.  The term "MINING OPERATION" does not include:  The2

exploration and extraction of natural petroleum in a liquid or gaseous3

state by means of wells or pipe; the development or extraction of coal; the4

extraction of geothermal resources; OR smelting, refining, cleaning,5

preparation, transportation, and other off-site operations not conducted on6

affected land.7

SECTION 2.  The introductory portion to 34-32-110 (2) (a),8

Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:9

34-32-110.  Limited impact operations - expedited process.10

(2) (a)  Any person desiring to conduct mining operations on less than ten11

acres, which mining operations will result in the extraction of less than12

seventy thousand tons of mineral or overburden per calendar year, prior13

to commencement of mining, shall file with the office, on a form14

approved by the board, an application for a permit to conduct mining15

operations; EXCEPT THAT APPLICATIONS FOR IN SITU LEACH MINING SHALL16

BE FILED PURSUANT TO SECTION 34-32-112.5 (3) (d).  This application17

shall contain the following:18

SECTION 3.  The introductory portion to 34-32-112 (3),19

34-32-112 (3) (a), the introductory portion to 34-32-112 (3) (e), and20

34-32-112 (10) (c), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:21

34-32-112.  Application for reclamation permit - changes in22

permits - fees - notice.  (3)  The reclamation plan shall include23

provisions for, or satisfactory explanation of, all general requirements for24

the type of reclamation proposed to be implemented by the operator.25

Reclamation shall be required on FOR all the affected land AND ALL26

AFFECTED SURFACE AND GROUND WATER.  The reclamation plan shall27



HB08-1161-5-

include:1

(a)  A description of the types of reclamation the operator proposes2

to achieve in the reclamation of the affected land, AFFECTED SURFACE3

WATER, AND AFFECTED GROUND WATER, why each was chosen, and the4

amount of acreage accorded to each;5

(e)  A map of all of the proposed affected land AND AFFECTED6

SURFACE AND GROUND WATER by all phases of the total scope of the7

mining operation.  It shall indicate the following:8

(10) (c)  In addition, the applicant shall mail a copy of such notice9

immediately after first publication to all owners of record of the surface10

rights of the affected land, to the owners of record of immediately11

adjacent lands, TO THE OWNERS OF RECORD OF LANDS WITHIN THREE MILES12

OF AFFECTED LAND IN THE CASE OF A PROPOSED IN SITU LEACH MINING13

OPERATION, and to any other persons who are owners of record that may14

be designated by the board that might be affected by the proposed mining15

operation.  Proof of such notice and mailing, such as certified mail with16

return receipt requested where possible, shall be provided to the board or17

the office and become part of the application.18

SECTION 4.  34-32-112.5 (3) (d), Colorado Revised Statutes, is19

amended, and the said 34-32-112.5 is further amended BY THE20

ADDITION OF A NEW SUBSECTION, to read:21

34-32-112.5.  Designated mining operation - rules.  (3)  When22

promulgating rules governing designated mining operations, the board23

shall consider the economic reasonableness, the technical feasibility, and24

the level or degree of any environmental concerns which may result from:25

(d)  Any other designated mining operation, INCLUDING ANY IN26

SITU LEACH MINING AND URANIUM MINING OPERATIONS, which shall be27



HB08-1161-6-

referred to AS "112d-3" permits.1

(5) (a)  THE BOARD SHALL REQUIRE AS A CONDITION OF PERMIT2

ISSUANCE THAT THE APPLICANT FOR AN IN SITU LEACH MINING OPERATION3

SUBMIT A PLAN FOR AN INITIAL SITE CHARACTERIZATION AND ONGOING4

MONITORING OF THE AFFECTED LAND AND AFFECTED SURFACE AND5

GROUND WATER.  THE BOARD OR THE OFFICE SHALL SELECT THE6

CONTRACTOR TO CONDUCT THE CHARACTERIZATION AND ONGOING7

MONITORING, AND THE APPLICANT SHALL PAY FOR THE COSTS8

REASONABLY INCURRED BY THE CONTRACTOR IN CONDUCTING THE9

CHARACTERIZATION AND ONGOING MONITORING.  THE CONTRACTOR10

SHALL BE SELECTED THROUGH A QUALIFICATIONS-BASED SELECTION11

PROCESS DESIGNED TO ENSURE A LACK OF ANY BIAS AND TO ENSURE12

SUBSTANTIAL EXPERIENCE IN THE DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION OF13

SCIENTIFICALLY DEFENSIBLE GROUND WATER, SURFACE WATER, AND14

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING PROJECTS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL15

EXERCISE ITS PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT INDEPENDENTLY OF THE BOARD16

AND THE OFFICE.  THE BOARD'S AND THE OFFICE'S EXERCISING OF THEIR17

DUTIES UNDER THIS SUBSECTION (5) SHALL NOT BE CONSTRUED TO:18

(I)  SUBJECT A CONTRACTOR TO THE CONTROL OF THE BOARD OR19

OFFICE;20

(II)  CREATE ANY PARTNERSHIP, JOINT VENTURE, OR OTHER21

AGENCY RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN A CONTRACTOR AND THE BOARD OR22

OFFICE; OR23

(III)  GIVE OR ALLOW ANY CLAIM OR RIGHT OF ACTION24

WHATSOEVER BY ANY THIRD PERSON.25

(b)  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DESIGN AND CONDUCT A26

SCIENTIFICALLY DEFENSIBLE GROUND WATER, SURFACE WATER, AND27



HB08-1161-7-

ENVIRONMENTAL BASELINE CHARACTERIZATION AND MONITORING PLAN1

FOR THE PROPOSED MINING OPERATION.  THIS PLAN SHALL BE DESIGNED IN2

SUCH A MANNER AS TO:3

(I)  THOROUGHLY AND COMPLETELY CHARACTERIZE PREMINING4

SITE CONDITIONS;5

(II)  DETECT ANY SUBSURFACE EXCURSIONS OF CHEMICALS USED6

IN OR MOBILIZED BY IN SITU LEACH MINING DURING THE MINING7

OPERATIONS; AND8

(III)  EVALUATE THE EFFECTIVENESS OF POSTMINING RECLAMATION9

AND GROUND WATER RESTORATION PLANS.10

(c)  THE DESIGN AND OPERATION OF THE BASELINE11

CHARACTERIZATION AND MONITORING PLAN, TOGETHER WITH ALL12

INFORMATION COLLECTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLAN, SHALL BE A13

MATTER OF PUBLIC RECORD.14

(d)  IN THE CASE OF IN SITU LEACH MINING, RESTORATION OF15

GROUND WATER SHALL BEGIN IMMEDIATELY UPON CESSATION, WHETHER16

TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT, OF EXTRACTION OR PRODUCTION.17

SECTION 5.  34-32-115, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended18

BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SUBSECTION to read:19

34-32-115.  Action by board - appeals.  (5) (a)  THE BOARD OR20

THE OFFICE MAY DENY A PERMIT BASED ON UNCERTAINTY ABOUT THE21

FEASIBILITY OF RECLAMATION AND SHALL DENY A PERMIT IF THE22

APPLICANT FAILS TO DEMONSTRATE THAT RECLAMATION CAN AND WILL23

BE ACCOMPLISHED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THIS ARTICLE, INCLUDING THE24

PROTECTION OF GROUND WATER AND OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES25

AND HUMAN HEALTH.26

(b)  THE BOARD OR THE OFFICE SHALL DENY A PERMIT FOR IN SITU27



HB08-1161-8-

LEACH MINING:1

(I)  UNLESS THE APPLICANT SUBMITS SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE OF2

AT LEAST FIVE IN SITU LEACH MINING OPERATIONS THAT HAVE OPERATED3

FOR AT LEAST FIVE YEARS, THAT HAVE CEASED OPERATIONS FOR AT LEAST4

FIVE YEARS, AND THAT DID NOT RESULT IN ANY LEAKAGE, VERTICAL OR5

LATERAL MIGRATION, OR EXCURSION OF ANY LEACHING SOLUTIONS OR6

GROUND-WATER-CONTAINING MINERALS, RADIONUCLIDES, OR OTHER7

CONSTITUENTS MOBILIZED, LIBERATED, OR INTRODUCED BY THE IN SITU8

LEACH MINING PROCESS INTO ANY GROUND WATER OUTSIDE OF THE9

INTENDED IN SITU LEACH MINING AREA; OR10

(II)  IF THE APPLICANT FAILS TO DEMONSTRATE BY SUBSTANTIAL11

EVIDENCE THAT IT WILL RESTORE ALL AFFECTED GROUND WATER TO ITS12

PREMINING QUALITY FOR ALL CONSTITUENTS.13

(c)  THE BOARD OR THE OFFICE MAY DENY OR REVOKE A PERMIT IF:14

(I)  THE APPLICANT, AN AFFILIATE, OFFICER, OR DIRECTOR OF THE15

APPLICANT, THE OPERATOR, OR CLAIM HOLDER HAS DEMONSTRATED A16

PATTERN OF WILLFUL VIOLATIONS OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION17

REQUIREMENTS OF THIS ARTICLE, RULES PROMULGATED PURSUANT TO THIS18

ARTICLE, A PERMIT ISSUED PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE, OR AN ANALOGOUS19

LAW, RULE, OR PERMIT ISSUED BY ANOTHER STATE, THE UNITED STATES,20

OR A FOREIGN JURISDICTION;21

(II)  THE EXISTING OR REASONABLY FORESEEABLE POTENTIAL22

FUTURE USES FOR ANY POTENTIALLY AFFECTED GROUND WATER,23

WHETHER CLASSIFIED OR UNCLASSIFIED PURSUANT TO SECTION 25-8-203,24

C.R.S., INCLUDES DOMESTIC OR AGRICULTURAL USES; OR25

(III) (A)  EXCEPT AS SPECIFIED IN SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (B) OF THIS26

SUBPARAGRAPH (III), THE APPLICANT OR ANY AFFILIATE, OFFICER, OR27



HB08-1161-9-

DIRECTOR OF THE APPLICANT HAS PREVIOUSLY VIOLATED THIS ARTICLE,1

RULES PROMULGATED PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE, A PERMIT ISSUED2

PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE, OR AN ANALOGOUS LAW, RULE, OR PERMIT3

ISSUED BY ANOTHER STATE, THE UNITED STATES, OR A FOREIGN4

JURISDICTION.5

(B)  THE BOARD OR OFFICE MAY CONDITIONALLY ISSUE OR6

REINSTATE A PERMIT IF THE APPLICANT SUBMITS PROOF THAT THE7

VIOLATION REFERRED TO IN SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (A) OF THIS8

SUBPARAGRAPH (III) HAS BEEN CORRECTED OR IS IN THE PROCESS OF9

BEING CORRECTED TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE BOARD OR IF THE10

APPLICANT SUBMITS PROOF THAT THE APPLICANT HAS FILED AND IS11

PRESENTLY PURSUING A DIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE OR JUDICIAL APPEAL TO12

CONTEST THE VALIDITY OF THE ALLEGED VIOLATION.  FOR PURPOSES OF13

THIS SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (B), A DIRECT ADMINISTRATIVE OR JUDICIAL14

APPEAL TO CONTEST THE VALIDITY OF THE ALLEGED VIOLATION SHALL15

NOT INCLUDE AN APPEAL OF AN APPLICANT'S RELATIONSHIP TO AN16

AFFILIATE.  IF THE VIOLATION IS NOT SUCCESSFULLY ABATED OR IF THE17

VIOLATION IS UPHELD ON APPEAL, THE BOARD OR OFFICE SHALL REVOKE18

OR DENY THE CONDITIONAL PERMIT ISSUED OR REINSTATED PURSUANT TO19

THIS SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (B).20

SECTION 6.  The introductory portion to 34-32-116 (7) (q) and21

34-32-116 (7) (q) (III), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended, and the22

said 34-32-116 is further amended BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW23

SUBSECTION, to read:24

34-32-116.  Duties of operators - reclamation plans.25

(7)  Reclamation plans and the implementation thereof shall conform to26

the following general requirements:27



HB08-1161-10-

(q)  All reclamation provided for in this section shall be carried to1

completion by the operator with all reasonable diligence and shall be2

conducted concurrently with mining operations to the extent practicable,3

taking into consideration the mine plan, mine safety, economics, the4

availability of equipment and material, and other site-specific conditions5

relevant and unique to the affected land and to the postmining land use.6

Upon termination of the entire mining operation and in accordance with7

the reclamation plan, each phase of final reclamation shall be completed8

prior to the expiration of WITHIN five years after the date on which the9

operator advises the board that such phase has commenced, unless such10

period is extended by the board pursuant to section 34-32-112 (7); except11

that:12

(III) (A)  With the approval of the board and the owner of the land13

to be reclaimed, the operator may substitute land previously mined and14

owned by the operator not otherwise subject to reclamation under this15

article or, in the alternative, with the approval of the board and the owner16

of the land, reclamation of an equal number of acres of any lands17

previously mined but not owned by the operator if the operator has not18

previously abandoned unreclaimed mining lands.  The board also has19

authority to grant, in the alternative, the reclamation of lesser or greater20

acreage so long as the cost of reclaiming such acreage is at least21

equivalent to the cost of reclaiming the original permit lands.  If any area22

is so substituted, the operator shall submit a map of the substituted area,23

which map shall conform to all of the requirements with respect to other24

maps required by this article.  Upon completion of reclamation of the25

substituted land, the operator shall be relieved of all obligations under this26

article with respect to the land for which substitution has been permitted.27



HB08-1161-11-

(B)  SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (A) OF THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (III) SHALL1

NOT APPLY TO IN SITU LEACH MINING.2

(8)  ALL URANIUM EXTRACTION OPERATIONS USING IN SITU LEACH3

MINING OR RECOVERY METHODS, INCLUDING ANY INJECTION OF ANY4

CHEMICALS DESIGNED TO MOBILIZE URANIUM RESOURCES, SHALL RESTORE5

ALL AFFECTED GROUND WATER TO ITS PREMINING QUALITY FOR ALL6

CONSTITUENTS.  IN ESTABLISHING, DESIGNING, AND IMPLEMENTING A7

GROUND WATER RESTORATION PLAN, THE MINE OPERATOR SHALL USE BEST8

AVAILABLE TECHNOLOGY.9

SECTION 7.  34-32-121.5, Colorado Revised Statutes, is10

amended to read:11

34-32-121.5.  Reporting certain conditions.  Any person engaged12

in any A mining operation shall notify the office of any failure or13

imminent failure as soon as reasonably practicable after such person has14

knowledge of such condition, BUT IN NO EVENT MORE THAN15

TWENTY-FOUR HOURS AFTER SUCH FAILURE OR THE DISCOVERY OF AN16

IMMINENT FAILURE, of:  Any impoundment, embankment, or slope that17

poses a reasonable potential for danger to any persons or property or to18

the environment; ANY STRUCTURE DESIGNED TO DETECT, PREVENT,19

MINIMIZE, OR MITIGATE ADVERSE IMPACTS ON GROUND WATER; ANY20

STRUCTURE USED IN CONNECTION WITH IN SITU LEACH MINING DESIGNED21

TO DETECT, PREVENT, MINIMIZE, OR MITIGATE ADVERSE IMPACTS ON22

HUMAN HEALTH, WILDLIFE, OR THE ENVIRONMENT; or any environmental23

protection facility designed to contain or control chemicals or waste24

which THAT are acid- or toxic-forming, as identified in the permit.25

SECTION 8.  Applicability.  This act shall apply to mining26

applications filed and mining operations occurring on or after the27



HB08-1161-12-

effective date of this act.1

SECTION 9.  Safety clause.  The general assembly hereby finds,2

determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate3

preservation of the public peace, health, and safety.4



Shading denotes HOUSE amendment.  Double underlining denotes SENATE amendment.
Capital letters indicate new material to be added to existing statute.
Dashes through the words indicate deletions from existing statute.

Second Regular Session
Sixty-sixth General Assembly
STATE OF COLORADO

INTRODUCED
 
 

LLS NO. 08-0298.01 Thomas Morris HOUSE BILL 08-1165

House Committees Senate Committees
Agriculture, Livestock, & Natural Resources

A BILL FOR AN ACT
CONCERNING AN INCREASE IN THE REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF THE101

MINED LAND RECLAMATION BOARD OVER MINING.102

Bill Summary

(Note:  This summary applies to this bill as introduced and does
not necessarily reflect any amendments that may be subsequently
adopted.)

Requires the mined land reclamation board (board) to:
! Take human health and environmental risks into

consideration in the permitting process;
! Regulate mining operations so as to prevent and mitigate

significant adverse environmental impacts;
! Recognize the established principle of reasonable

accommodation; and

HOUSE SPONSORSHIP
Fischer and Kefalas,  Butcher, Frangas, Levy, Looper, McFadyen, and Solano

SENATE SPONSORSHIP
Shaffer,  and Bacon



HB08-1165-2-

! Protect public health, safety, and welfare, including
protection of the environment and wildlife resources.

Increases the board to 9 members, including the executive director
of the department of public health and environment (department) and one
member representing local governments.  Gives the department an
opportunity to comment during the board's decision-making process.

Specifies that construction materials mining operations that also
extract other minerals are subject to the board's jurisdiction.  Makes all
information submitted to the board a public record other than information
relating to the location, size, or nature of an ore deposit.  Increases the
time to object to or support an application for a permit to 45 days, and
increases the time for filing of an appeal to 60 days.

Establishes that the funding to ensure that reclamation is achieved
should be established as a requirement for permit approval and should be
borne by the operator.  Requires reclamation costs to be calculated based
on when the reclamation is anticipated to occur rather than current costs.
Limits the types of proof of financial responsibility that a foreign entity
formed under a statute or common law of a jurisdiction outside of the
United States may provide.

Defines and establishes fees for in situ leach mining.  Authorizes
the board to take emergency action when an operator fails or refuses to
respond to a board order requiring corrective actions for any measure
used for in situ leach mining designed to detect, prevent, minimize, or
mitigate any adverse impacts on human health, wildlife, or the
environment.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Colorado:1

SECTION 1.  34-32-102 (1), (2), and (3) (c), Colorado Revised2

Statutes, are amended to read:3

34-32-102.  Legislative declaration.  (1)  It is declared to be the4

policy of this state that the extraction of minerals and the reclamation of5

land affected by such extraction are both necessary and proper activities.6

It is further declared to be the policy of this state that both such activities7

should be and are compatible.  It is the intent of the general assembly by8

the enactment of this article to foster and encourage the development of9

an economically sound and stable mining and minerals industry and to10

encourage the orderly, SUSTAINABLE development of the state's natural11



HB08-1165-3-

resources while PROTECTING SURFACE OWNERS' RIGHTS BY RECOGNIZING1

THE ESTABLISHED PRINCIPLE OF REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION,2

MAINTAINING LOCAL CONTROL OVER MINING ACTIVITIES, AND requiring3

those persons involved in mining operations to reclaim land affected by4

such operations so that the affected land may be put to a use beneficial to5

the people of this state.  It is the further intent of the general assembly by6

the enactment of this article to PROTECT THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND7

WELFARE OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE, TO conserve natural resources, to8

aid in the protection of wildlife and aquatic resources, AND to establish9

agricultural, recreational, residential, and industrial sites. and to protect10

and promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the people of this11

state.12

(2)  The general assembly further declares that it is the intent of13

this article to require the development of a mined land reclamation14

regulatory program in which the economic costs of reclamation measures15

utilized ARE BORNE BY OPERATORS AND bear a reasonable relationship to16

the environmental benefits derived from such measures.  The mined land17

reclamation board or the office, when considering the requirements of18

reclamation measures, shall evaluate the benefits expected to result from19

the use of such measures.  It is also the intent of the general assembly that20

consideration be given to the economic reasonableness of the action of21

the mined land reclamation board or the office.  In considering economic22

reasonableness, the financial condition of an operator shall not be a23

factor.24

(3)  The general assembly further finds, determines, and declares25

that:26

(c)  The funding to ensure that reclamation is achieved should be27



HB08-1165-4-

ESTABLISHED AS A REQUIREMENT FOR PERMIT APPROVAL AND SHOULD BE1

 borne equitably by both the public and private sectors THE OPERATOR;2

SECTION 2.  34-32-103 (8), Colorado Revised Statutes, is3

amended, and the said 34-32-103 is further amended BY THE4

ADDITION OF THE FOLLOWING NEW SUBSECTIONS, to read:5

34-32-103.  Definitions.  As used in this article, unless the context6

otherwise requires:7

(5.7)  "IN SITU LEACH MINING" MEANS IN SITU MINING THROUGH8

THE IN-PLACE DISSOLUTION OF MINERAL COMPONENTS OF AN ORE DEPOSIT9

BY CAUSING A CHEMICAL LEACHING SOLUTION, USUALLY AQUEOUS, TO10

TRICKLE DOWNWARD OR TO BE PUMPED DOWN WELLS THROUGH THE ORE11

BODY AND THEN REMOVING THE MINERAL-CONTAINING SOLUTION FOR12

RECOVERY OF THE MINERAL VALUES; EXCEPT THAT IN SITU LEACH MINING13

DOES NOT INCLUDE IN SITU MINING FOR SODIUM MINERALS OR OIL SHALE.14

(5.8)  "IN SITU MINING" MEANS THE IN-PLACE RECOVERY OF A15

MINERAL BY MEANS OTHER THAN OPEN MINING OR UNDERGROUND MINING.16

(8)  "Mining operation" means the development or extraction of a17

mineral from its natural occurrences on affected land.  The term "MINING18

OPERATION" includes, but is not limited to, open mining, and IN SITU19

MINING, IN SITU LEACH MINING, surface operation OPERATIONS, and the20

disposal of refuse from underground and in situ mining. The term21

"MINING OPERATION" includes the following operations on affected lands:22

Transportation; concentrating; milling; evaporation; and other processing.23

The term "MINING OPERATION" does not include:  The exploration and24

extraction of natural petroleum in a liquid or gaseous state by means of25

wells or pipe; the development or extraction of coal; the extraction of26

geothermal resources; OR smelting, refining, cleaning, preparation,27



HB08-1165-5-

transportation, and other off-site operations not conducted on affected1

land.2

SECTION 3.  34-32-105 (2), Colorado Revised Statutes, is3

amended to read:4

34-32-105.  Office of mined land reclamation - mined land5

reclamation board - created.  (2)  The board shall consist of seven NINE6

members:  The executive director, who shall serve as secretary to the7

board; THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH8

AND ENVIRONMENT OR HIS OR HER DESIGNEE; a member of the state9

conservation board appointed by such board; and five SIX persons10

appointed by the governor with the consent of the senate.  Such appointed11

members shall be:  Three individuals with substantial experience in12

agriculture or conservation, no more than two of whom shall have had13

experience in agriculture or conservation; and two individuals with14

substantial experience in the mining industry;  Effective July 1, 1976, the15

terms of office of the existing members of the mined land reclamation16

board shall terminate, and, prior thereto, the governor shall appoint two17

members of the board, effective July 1, 1976, whose terms of office shall18

expire March 1, 1977, and three members of the board, effective July 1,19

1976, whose terms of office shall expire March 1, 1979.  Subsequent20

AND ONE MEMBER REPRESENTING LOCAL GOVERNMENT INTERESTS.21

Appointments shall be made for a term of four years.  Vacancies shall be22

filled in the same manner as original appointments for the balance of the23

unexpired term.  All members of the board shall be residents of the state24

of Colorado.  All members of the board except for the executive director25

DIRECTORS shall receive compensation for their service on the board at26

the rate of fifty dollars per diem and shall be reimbursed for necessary27



HB08-1165-6-

expenses incurred in the performance of their duties on the board.  The1

board shall, by majority vote of all members, elect its chairperson from2

among the appointed members at its first meeting in July, 1976, and the3

board shall elect its chairperson from among the appointed members4

biannually. thereafter.5

SECTION 4.  34-32-106 (1) (c), Colorado Revised Statutes, is6

amended to read:7

34-32-106.  Duties of the board.  (1)  The board shall:8

(c)  TAKE HUMAN HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS INTO9

CONSIDERATION IN THE PERMITTING PROCESS AND develop and10

promulgate standards for land reclamation plans and substitution of11

affected lands as provided in section 34-32-116;12

SECTION 5.  34-32-106 (2), Colorado Revised Statutes, is13

amended to read:14

34-32-106.  Duties of the board.  (2)  It is the duty of the15

department of agriculture, the department of higher education, the state16

conservation board, the Colorado geological survey, the division of parks17

and outdoor recreation, the division of wildlife, the division of water18

resources, the university of Colorado, Colorado state university, Colorado19

school of mines, and the state forester to furnish the board and its20

designees, as far as practicable, whatever data and technical assistance the21

board may request and deem necessary for the performance of total22

reclamation and enforcement duties.  THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC23

HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT SHALL BE GIVEN AN OPPORTUNITY TO24

PROVIDE COMMENTS, PURSUANT TO A TIMELY AND EFFICIENT PROCEDURE,25

DURING THE BOARD'S DECISION-MAKING PROCESS REGARDING THE26

PROTECTION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE, INCLUDING27



HB08-1165-7-

PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT.1

SECTION 6.  34-32-107, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended2

BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SUBSECTION to read:3

34-32-107.  Powers of board.  (3)  THE BOARD SHALL REGULATE4

MINING OPERATIONS SO AS TO:5

(a)  PREVENT AND MITIGATE SIGNIFICANT ADVERSE6

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS ON ANY AIR, WATER, SOIL, OR BIOLOGICAL7

RESOURCE RESULTING FROM MINING OPERATIONS;8

(b)  RECOGNIZE THE ESTABLISHED PRINCIPLE OF REASONABLE9

ACCOMMODATION; AND10

(c)  PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE, INCLUDING11

PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND WILDLIFE RESOURCES.12

SECTION 7.  34-32-109 (6) and (9), Colorado Revised Statutes,13

are amended to read:14

34-32-109.  Necessity of reclamation permit - application to15

existing permits.  (6)  No governmental office of the state, other than the16

board, nor any political subdivision of the state shall have the authority17

to issue a reclamation permit pursuant to this article, to require18

reclamation standards different than those established in this article, or to19

require any performance or financial warranty of any kind for mining20

operations.  The operator shall be responsible for assuring that the mining21

operation and the postmining land use comply with city, town, county, or22

city and county land use regulations and any master plan for extraction23

adopted pursuant to section 34-1-304 unless a prior declaration of intent24

to change or waive the prohibition is obtained by the applicant from the25

affected political subdivisions.  Any mining operator subject to this article26

shall also be subject to zoning, and land use, AND ENVIRONMENTAL27



HB08-1165-8-

PROTECTION authority and regulation by political subdivisions as provided1

by law.  NOTHING IN THIS ARTICLE SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO LIMIT OR2

PREEMPT THE AUTHORITY OF ANY CITY, TOWN, COUNTY, CITY AND3

COUNTY, OR OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION TO CONDITION OR PROHIBIT4

ANY MINING ACTIVITY, OPERATION, OR PROCESS.5

(9)  All mining operations for construction materials, as defined in6

section 34-32.5-103 (3), shall be subject to the provisions of article 32.57

of this title and not this article; EXCEPT THAT, IF SUCH MINING OPERATIONS8

ARE FOR THE PURPOSE OF OR RESULT IN THE DEVELOPMENT OR9

EXTRACTION OF A MINERAL THAT INCLUDES MINERALS OTHER THAN10

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS, THE MINING OPERATION SHALL BE SUBJECT TO11

THIS ARTICLE.  Construction materials mining operations operating under12

permits issued prior to July 1, 1995, under the provisions of this article13

shall continue to operate under such permits, and such permits shall be14

deemed to be permits issued under the provisions of article 32.5 of this15

title.16

SECTION 8.  34-32-113 (3) and (5.5) (f), Colorado Revised17

Statutes, are amended to read:18

34-32-113.  Prospecting notice - reclamation requirements.19

(3)  All information provided TO the board in a notice of intent to conduct20

prospecting IS A MATTER OF PUBLIC RECORD SUBJECT TO THE OPEN21

RECORDS ACT, PART 2 OF ARTICLE 72 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S.; EXCEPT THAT22

INFORMATION RELATING TO THE LOCATION, SIZE, OR NATURE OF THE ORE23

DEPOSIT shall be protected as confidential information by the board and24

SHALL not be a matter of public record in the absence of a written release25

from the operator or until a finding by the board that reclamation is26

satisfactory.27



HB08-1165-9-

(5.5) (f)  The head of the office may NOT waive any of the1

administrative provisions of this subsection (5.5). which pertain to2

aquifers upon written application filed with the director.3

SECTION 9.  34-32-114, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended4

to read:5

34-32-114.  Protests and petitions for a hearing.  Any person has6

the right to file written objections to or statements in support of an7

application for a permit with the board.  Such protests or petitions for a8

hearing shall be timely filed with the board not more than twenty9

FORTY-FIVE days after the date of last publication of notice pursuant to10

section 34-32-112 (10).  For good cause shown in the protest or petition11

documents, the board, in its discretion, may hold a hearing pursuant to12

section 34-32-115 on the question of whether the permit should be13

granted.  The applicant shall be notified within ten days of any objections14

to his THE application and SHALL be supplied with a copy of the written15

objections.16

SECTION 10.  34-32-115 (3) and the introductory portion to17

34-32-115 (4), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:18

34-32-115.  Action by board - appeals - rules.  (3)  If action upon19

the application is not completed within the period specified in subsection20

(2) of this section, the permit shall be considered to be DEEMED approved21

and shall be promptly issued upon presentation by the applicant of a22

financial warranty in the amount of two thousand dollars per acre affected23

or such other amount as determined by the board.  NOTWITHSTANDING24

SECTION 24-4-106 (4), C.R.S., A PERSON AGGRIEVED BY THE BOARD'S25

FINAL AGENCY ACTION MAY FILE AN APPEAL WITH THE DISTRICT COURT26

WITHIN SIXTY DAYS AFTER SUCH ACTION.27



HB08-1165-10-

(4)  The board or the office shall grant a permit to an operator if1

the application complies with the requirements of this article.  EXCEPT AS2

SPECIFIED IN SUBSECTION (5) OF THIS SECTION, the board or the office3

shall not deny a permit if the operator demonstrates compliance with the4

following:5

SECTION 11.  34-32-116.5 (6), Colorado Revised Statutes, is6

amended to read:7

34-32-116.5.  Environmental protection plan - designated8

mining operation - rules.  (6)  THE BOARD SHALL REFER all applicants9

APPLICATIONS for new permits shall contact TO the division of wildlife for10

appropriate wildlife protection recommendations AND TO THE11

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT FOR APPROPRIATE12

RECOMMENDATIONS CONCERNING HUMAN HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL13

RISKS, which RECOMMENDATIONS THE BOARD shall be reviewed REVIEW14

as part of the application process. If protecting wildlife is determined to15

be necessary by the board,  The office may SHALL incorporate such16

wildlife protection recommendations into the new permit as a condition17

for such permit IF IT DETERMINES THAT DOING SO IS NECESSARY TO18

PROTECT HUMAN HEALTH, WILDLIFE, OR THE ENVIRONMENT.19

SECTION 12.  The introductory portion to 34-32-117 (3) (f) and20

34-32-117 (4) (b) (I), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:21

34-32-117.  Warranties of performance - warranties of22

financial responsibility - release of warranties - applicability.23

(3) (f)  Proof of financial responsibility may consist of any one or more24

of the following, subject to approval by the board; EXCEPT THAT A25

FOREIGN ENTITY, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 7-90-102, C.R.S., THAT IS26

FORMED UNDER A STATUTE OR COMMON LAW OF A JURISDICTION OUTSIDE27



HB08-1165-11-

OF THE UNITED STATES MAY NOT PROVIDE PROOF OF FINANCIAL1

RESPONSIBILITY PURSUANT TO SUBPARAGRAPHS (VI) OR (VII) OF THIS2

PARAGRAPH (f):3

(4) (b) (I)  In any single year during the life of a permit, the amount4

of required financial warranties shall not exceed the estimated cost of5

fully reclaiming all lands to be affected in said year, plus all lands6

affected in previous permit years and not yet fully reclaimed.  For the7

purpose of this paragraph (b), reclamation costs shall be computed with8

reference to current THE REASONABLY PREDICTED reclamation costs AS OF9

THE TIME THE RECLAMATION IS ANTICIPATED TO OCCUR.  The amount of10

the financial warranty shall be sufficient to assure the completion of11

reclamation of affected lands if the office has to complete such12

reclamation due to forfeiture.  Such financial warranty shall include an13

additional amount, equal to five percent of the amount of the financial14

warranty, to defray the administrative costs incurred by the office in15

conducting the reclamation.16

SECTION 13.  The introductory portion to 34-32-124.5 (1) and17

34-32-124.5 (1) (b) (III), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended, and18

the said 34-32-124.5 (1) (b) is further amended BY THE ADDITION OF19

A NEW SUBPARAGRAPH, to read:20

34-32-124.5.  Emergencies endangering public health or the21

environment.  (1)  Following an investigation, an emergency response22

shall be IS justified pursuant to section 34-32-122 (3) if the board or23

office determines that any person is:24

(b)  An operator with a permit who is failing or refusing to respond25

to a board order requiring corrective actions for:26

(III)  Any other measure identified in such permit or as provided27



HB08-1165-12-

for in this article or any rule promulgated pursuant to this article which1

THAT is intended to protect human health, or property, or the2

environment; OR3

(IV)  ANY MEASURES TAKEN IN CONNECTION WITH IN SITU LEACH4

MINING AND DESIGNED TO DETECT, PREVENT, MINIMIZE, OR MITIGATE5

ADVERSE IMPACTS ON HUMAN HEALTH, WILDLIFE, OR THE ENVIRONMENT.6

SECTION 14.  34-32-127 (2) (a) (I) (N) and (2) (a) (IV) (E),7

Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended, and the said 34-32-127 (2) (a)8

(IV) is further amended BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW9

SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH, to read:10

34-32-127.  Mined land reclamation fund - created - fees - fee11

adjustments - rules.  (2) (a)  Fees for fiscal year 2007-08 and for each12

subsequent year of operation shall be collected by the office for13

operations according to the following schedule:14

(I)  Applications pursuant to:15

(N)  ANY PROVISION GOVERNING AN oil shale OR IN SITU LEACH16

MINING application and amendment fee:  If the costs to review and17

process an oil shale OR IN SITU LEACH MINING application or amendment18

exceeds twice the value of the fee for a new application or amendment19

pursuant to sub-subparagraph (H) or (M) of this subparagraph (I), the20

applicant shall pay the additional costs.  The costs shall include those of21

the division, another division of the department involved in the review,22

and any consultants or other nongovernmental agents that have specific23

expertise on the issue in question acting at the request of the division in24

the review of the oil shale OR IN SITU LEACH MINING permit application.25

The division shall inform the applicant that the actual fee may exceed26

twice the value of the listed fee and shall provide the applicant with an27



HB08-1165-13-

estimate of the actual charges for the review of the application or1

amendment within ten days after receipt of the application.  An appeal of2

this estimate shall be made to the board within ten days after the3

applicant's receipt of the estimate.4

(IV)  Annual fees for fiscal year 2007-08 and for each subsequent5

year for operations pursuant to:6

(E)  Section 34-32-112 (for designated mining operations OTHER7

THAN IN SITU LEACH MINING) $ 1,1508

(E.5)  SECTION 34-32-112 (FOR IN SITU LEACH MINING) $ 2,5009

SECTION 15.  Applicability.  This act shall apply to mining10

applications filed and mining operations occurring on or after the11

effective date of this act.12

SECTION 16.  Safety clause.  The general assembly hereby finds,13

determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate14

preservation of the public peace, health, and safety.15



This unofficial copy was downloaded from CityDocs at http://prometheus.fcgov.com
For additional information or an official copy, please contact City Clerk's office at (970) 221-6515



This unofficial copy was downloaded from CityDocs at http://prometheus.fcgov.com
For additional information or an official copy, please contact City Clerk's office at (970) 221-6515



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report on In Situ Leach and Open-Pit Mining 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for the Larimer County Commissioners 
By 

The Larimer County Environmental Advisory Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 12, 2008 
 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 

The Larimer County Environmental Advisory Board was tasked by the County 
Commissioners to investigate the use of in-situ and open-pit mining operations for the 
extraction of uranium. Concern has been raised about the potential for such operations 
occurring near the county. To date, no applications have been submitted and no 
permitting processes have begun regarding the Centennial Project, although Powertech 
has submitted various documents to both Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) to be able to drill 
monitoring wells and overhaul some of the previous test bores on the Centennial site. No 
specific plans or precise information has been made available by the parties that have 
expressed interest in potential mining operations. Due to the early nature of the project 
and the request for a review prior to specific information becoming available, the EAB 
report focuses on uranium mining in a general sense and the risks that are associated with 
both in-situ and open pit mining. 

Uranium mining has been conducted in Colorado for an extended period and active 
uranium mines are currently extracting ore in other counties. Larimer County had an 
active uranium mine, the Copper King mine, up from 1951 to 1953. The centennial mine 
would not be the first In situ leach (ISL) operation in northern Colorado, as Wyoming 
Mineral Corporation briefly conducted ISL operations in Weld County in the 1980s.  

Uranium is not a highly radioactive mineral. The isotope used for energy production, 
U235, occurs at a rate of about 0.7% in uranium ore extracted from the earth.  Uranium, 
like other heavy metals is toxic at sufficiently high doses, but unlike many other 
elements, the dosage for toxicity is rather large – on the order of grams.  

The radioactive elements of radium and radon are both found in conjunction with 
uranium (both are the products of the radioactive decay of uranium). These elements are 
more radioactive than uranium. Radon occurs naturally as a gas and is easily wind 
dispersed. Radium occurs in very small quantities but is a serious environmental and 
public health issue. 

A number of risks are identified with ISL operations. The environmental impact of 
these risks can affect the soil, air and water of the region. Water contamination is the 
most serious risk posed by ISL operations. The probabilities of any of these risks at a 
proposed site in Colorado remain unknown. Without baseline information regarding the 
operation geology and water quality, the EAB is unable to determine the chances that 
Larimer County will be adversely affected by the operation. There is a probability that 
the quality of ground water which supplies rural residences and agricultural businesses 
can be adversely affected. Most municipal water supplies for Larimer County are derived 
from water sheds to the west in the mountains and thus would have a very low chance of 
being affected by ISL operations.  

Open pit mining operations present higher risks to the environment than ISL 
operations with the potential for serious land degradation and surface and ground water 
contamination as well as health impacts to mine workers, nearby residents and the 
ecosystem in whole. The minerals, such as selenium, released in such operations have 
been linked to deformities in birds.  

2 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

Although the current permitting and regulation processes are extensive and requires 
monies to be set aside for remediation of any environmental damage, the end result is that 
the risks to the mining operators are strictly financial while the risks to the community 
are potentially financial, health and environmental with costs that may exceed any 
capabilities of the operations to rectify. 

The effects of such operations, even if they have a relatively low risk of 
environmental degradation can damage the socioeconomic structure of the region. It is 
unclear what the short term or long term effects to the communities both socially and 
economically will be. Economic effects are not necessarily based on rational processes 
and can impact the region on a larger scale than the actual mining operations. 

It is often the standard that entities other than the principle operators must show that 
harm will result in order for permitting to be halted. Given the seriousness of the potential 
risks (many of which appear to have low probabilities of occurring), the board would 
expect that those proposing the mining operation, provide a reasoned and scientifically 
based risk assessment of the operations as well as the risks of not mining, making public 
all data collected. The risks and the ability of the mine operator and local governments to 
address these risks should be weighed against the benefits that may be derived. 

3 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

 
 

Introduction 
 

The Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) of Larimer County was tasked by the 
Board of County Commissioners to investigate the mining processes that may be used at 
a proposed uranium mine in Weld County near the border with Larimer County. The two 
forms of mining that are discussed with respect to the Powertech Centennial Project are 
In Situ Leaching (ISL) and open-pit mining. Although at the time of completion of this 
report, Powertech has begun the permitting process, no detailed documents regarding the 
specifics of the Centennial Project were made available to the EAB.  

This report is not exhaustive in nature. The EAB is a volunteer board and as such was 
limited in time and resources that could be devoted to the task. The board interviewed 
researchers with expertise in the subject, attended a symposium on the topic and read 
through a large body of primary literature on uranium mining in developing this report.  

The EAB decided to investigate the methods of uranium extraction and to focus on 
the potential impacts of the process on the environment. The board recognizes that there 
are three main areas of impact: water, air and soil. Each of these is subject to risks due to 
mining operations and this report describes the known effects.  

Although there has been much information presented regarding the proposed 
Centennial Project by a variety of interested parties, the EAB report is based on factual 
information. The scientific literature is somewhat limited in the analysis of ISL 
operations but a substantial literature of government reports provides a solid basis for 
understanding the issues regarding uranium mining and the impacts it may have to the 
environment of northern Colorado. 

 
A Brief History of Uranium Mining  
 

In Colorado, uranium was discovered in 1871 in Gilpin County and uranium oxide 
(later named carnotite) was discovered in Montrose County in 1881; but no major mining 
of uranium occurred in the 19th Century. Uranium was first actively sought in the 20th 
Century as a source of radium. Much of this mining occurred in the Uravan district in 
Montrose County. At about the same time production of vanadium started in Colorado 
and the carnotite ores also contained significant quantities of vanadium. 

Not until the 1940s were uranium bearing ores actively mined for uranium, first as a 
source for weapons and later as fuel for reactors. Mining continued in Uravan and new 
sites were discovered across Colorado with the largest uranium deposit mined in 
Jefferson County. During this period uranium was mined in Larimer County near Red 
Feather Lakes at the Copper King mine. The EPA lists at least 25 other mines or 
occurrences of uranium in Larimer County. A confluence of factors led to the steep 
decline in the price of uranium in the 1980s and 1990s and the concomitant cessation of 
most mining operations in the state. The major production of uranium in Colorado has 
been via open pit and underground mines. Currently underground mining continues at the 
Sunday Mine in Montrose County. In situ mining of uranium began in the 1960s in 
Eastern Europe. In situ mining is currently used in Europe, Australia and in the U.S. in 
Texas, Nebraska and Wyoming. ISL extraction was briefly conducted in northern 

4 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

Colorado near Grover, but the operation was halted apparently due to the low price of 
uranium at the time.  

 
Uranium Mining 

 
Uranium is extracted by three main processes, underground mining, open-pit mining 

and in situ leaching. Underground mining is not common currently. Underground mining 
prior to a complete understanding of the effects of radon, and improved techniques was 
associated with numerous cases of cancer in the miners. Underground mining would not 
be feasible for recovering uranium at the Centennial site. Both in situ and open-pit 
mining are apparently being considered for extracting uranium at the Centennial site and 
this report will describe both processes. 

 
In Situ Leaching  

The In-Situ Leaching (ISL) process involves the drilling of a series of wells into the 
aquifer containing the deposits.  Often the aquifer that contains the deposits is below the 
aquifer that is used as a source for domestic, industrial and agricultural needs. In such 
cases it is very important that a sufficient low-permeability zone, such as a layer of shale, 
separate the production and drinking water aquifers (See Figure 1). A concentrated 
leaching solution (oxygen rich) called the lixiviant, is then pumped into the aquifer 
containing the deposits to oxidize, dissolve and mobilize the uranium minerals from the 
surrounding rock, so that the uranium concentration in the water increases and thus more 
uranium can be pumped back to the surface for extraction at a processing plant.  The 
wells are divided into injection and extraction wells, and a number of extra wells are 
located outside the area where active pumping occurs to monitor any escape of the 
mining solutions.  There are a variety of leaching solutions that can be used to dissolve 
the uranium, as well as numerous configurations for pumping and monitoring wells.  
 

 
Figure 1: Schematic of ISL operations 

 

Production well: 
lixiviant, groundwater

and uranium out 
Injection well: 

lixiviant in  
Injection well: 

lixiviant in  

Aquifer for 
agriculture &
consumption

Uranium 
Ore Zone 

LLooww  PPeerrmmeeaabbiilliittyy  
ZZoonnee  

5 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

Currently in the United States, all ISL uranium production is with alkaline leaching 
chemistry using carbon dioxide or sodium-carbonate and oxygen (lixiviant).  The most 
common acid used in ISL is sulfuric acid. Acid leaching was only used once in the 
United States (in Wyoming) but is used in other countries. 

One of the critical operational principles of any ISL mine is to control both the 
horizontal and vertical movement of leaching solutions within the groundwater area 
being mined.  Not only is it important from an economic standpoint, but it is of 
importance for environmental protection so that the groundwater surrounding the mine 
site can continue to be used in the manner it was prior to ISL operations. An escape of 
leaching solutions, referred to as an excursion, and can result in contamination of soil, 
surface water or ground water. The main techniques used to prevent excursion are the 
engineering of groundwater bores to prevent leakage via the bore, and maintaining a 
negative pressure gradient on the injection wells relative to the production well. This 
means pumping out more water than the quantity of lixiviant injected into the ground. 

The configuration of injection and extraction wells is also quite important for the 
successful control of the mining solutions.  The main principle behind the patterns is that 
four (or six or twelve) injection wells surround one extraction well.  A 5-spot pattern is 
thus square shaped, while a 7-spot pattern is hexagonal shaped. 

ISL operations require a well designed groundwater monitoring system that can 
detect any excursion.  It is intended that the wells are closely spaced so that any 
excursion of lixiviant will be detected by a monitoring well, detected by routine sampling 
and remedial action can be planned and undertaken. Monitoring wells need to be located 
with the uranium ore zone on order to detect horizontal excursions, and within any 
drinking water aquifers to detect vertical excursions into the domestic use aquifer. 

After the pregnant (uranium rich) lixiviant is extracted from the ore zone, it is 
pumped to the processing plant, which is typically on the mine site.  Here the uranium is 
extracted from the solutions using standard metallurgical techniques.  The extracting 
solution is generally cycled through the well field, orebody and processing plant 
numerous times before being replaced by fresh lixiviant. The processing of pregnant 
lixiviant is very similar to standard uranium milling techniques. 

 
Waste Stream 

The ISL process leads to the formation of liquid and solid waste streams.  These are 
produced from the bleed solutions, waste processing solutions, solid residues that build 
up due to the precipitation of minerals from the highly concentrated solutions involved, 
solid waste from the processing plant (such as contaminated clothing and equipment), 
and other normal wastes from industrial facilities.  Due to the nature of ISL mining, quite 
large volumes of wastewater are created, which are often highly saline and contain toxic 
levels of heavy metals, process chemicals, and radionuclides.  Excess ISL process water 
that is not re-injected is typically either directed to an evaporation pond, or injected into a 
deep disposal well to an aquifer below the uranium deposit and domestic aquifers.  

Solid wastes are generally disposed of at an approved radioactive waste management 
site, or in an engineered facility on site.  Since the ore body itself is not extracted, there 
are no tailings or residual rock material remaining in a large tailings dam.  Treatment 
methods for the liquid waste incorporate strategies including biological treatment in 
wetlands, evaporation ponds, and reactive barriers. All of these strategies are designed to 

6 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

isolate the toxic waste into a solid sludge and to then dispose of the sludge recovered 
according to regulations. For the Centennial project, solar evaporation ponds would likely 
be used. These are shallow, lined ponds that allow for water to evaporate, condensing the 
waste. 

 
Restoration 

After the orebody has been mined, it is standard practice to restore the groundwater 
quality to pre-mining levels.  Restoration is required by state regulations.  There are 
several approaches to restoration, as seen in Table 1. 

 
Table 1: Methods for restoring aquifers after ISL operations 

Restoration 
Technique 

Process Impacts 

Groundwater 
Sweep 

Extraction of water from production 
wells to induce a flow of 
uncontaminated groundwater through 
the mined zone. Extracted water is 
treated the same as normal mining 
operations. Contaminated water is sent 
to evaporation ponds or is treated and 
discharged. 

Requires substantial use of 
ground water. Is effective 
when the confining 
substrate allows leakage, 
potentially drawing down 
useable water supplies. 

Forward 
Recirculation 

Water is withdrawn via production 
wells, treated so that it meets required 
water quality and is reinjected via the 
injection wells. 

Does not allow for 
removal of lixiviant or 
mobilized minerals that 
have escaped the mined 
aquifer (i.e. will not clean 
up an excusion). 

Reverse 
Circulation 

Treated water is injected via the 
production wells and extracted via the 
injection wells. 

Similar effects to the 
forward circulation 
method. 

Directional 
Groundwater 
Sweep 

Contaminated water is pumped from a 
specific set of wells while treated 
water is injected into the aquifer 
outside of the boundaries of the mined 
area. Clean water is thus drawn into 
the contaminated portions of the 
aquifer. 

While not requiring as 
much groundwater as the 
groundwater sweep 
method, additional 
groundwater is required 
for this technique. 

 
The net effect is stabilization of minerals back into the geology and restoration or 

improvement in the post –mining water quality of the aquifer. Baseline groundwater 
quality data that were collected prior to initiation of the ISL mining are used to determine 
restoration standards.  After an ISL mining project has been completed, the site is 
rehabilitated and returned to the former land use.  All infrastructures are removed, such as 
buildings, roads, pipes, processing equipment etc.  The remaining solid and liquid wastes 
are disposed of in radioactive waste facilities, and these sites are managed according to 
regulatory requirements. 

7 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

 
Open Pit Mining 
 

Open pit mining, also known as opencast or open-cut mining, is a type of surface 
mining that involves excavating earth, rock, and other material to uncover an orebody 
that lies close to the surface (typically such mines excavate to a depth of no more than 
550 feet).  The topsoil is removed and then the material between the topsoil and the 
orebody, the overburden, is removed. The overburden is generally low in radioactive 
elements, but is considered waste.  The ratio of overburden to ore for uranium open-pit 
mines is 30:1 on average. The excavation of the overburden is completed in rectangular 
blocks in plain view called pits or strips.  The pits are parallel and adjacent to each other 
with each strip of overburden and the mineral beneath extracted sequentially.  The mining 
process moves the overburden laterally to the adjacent empty pit where the mineral has 
been extracted.  This lateral movement is called casting or open-casting.  The overburden 
is moved by heavy equipment, with the use of explosives to sometimes loosen the 
overburden.  The uncovered mineral is excavated and hauled out of the pit to processing 
operations.  Filling the adjacent empty pits with the overburden is systemic to the process 
and therefore is the foundation of land reclamation.  The processed ore is known as 
tailings. Uranium strip-mine operations create large areas that require remediation. Large 
tailings ponds are created to contain the radioactive materials. Federal law requires the 
tailing ponds to be covered so that rainwater does not mix with the radioactive waste. 
These pond coverings may be eroded over time by water and wind, which could allow 
mobilization of radionuclides.  

 
Reclamation / Restoration 

Open pit mine reclamation and restoration begins prior to mining operations. Careful 
characterization of the surface slope, composition of the flora at the site and hydrological 
structure of the region is needed before operations begin. Often open pit waste rock and 
overburden is put back into the cut after mineral extraction. The decision to place 
overburden back into the mine is based on the presence of water and whether leaching 
will cause migration of radionuclides and heavy metals. 

Generally, not all overburden can be returned to the pit. The standard technique to 
address the issue of exposed overburden and waste rock is to dry-cover the overburden 
and recontour the material.  

The last steps for reclamation involve revegitation. The reseeding or replanting of the 
site helps control erosion and controls dust. Revegitation limits infiltration of 
precipitation into the disturbed rock and soil. 
 
Risks   
 

The question regarding environmental impacts largely hinges on the risks associated 
with the potential impacts and the probability of the impacts occurring. Some of the risks 
associated with these types of operations have been characterized and are discussed 
below. Some risks likely remain unknown. To determine the scale of potential impacts, a 
survey of the EPA list of superfund sites indicates that no ISL operations have yet 
generated problems that would require inclusion. A number of uranium milling 

8 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

operations, as a result of open-pit and hard rock mining, in New Mexico, Colorado and 
Utah have been declared superfund sites.  ISL operations and milling share similarities in 
the drying process but differ substantially in the processing of the orebody to generate the 
yellowcake. Clean up at the mill sites has involved soils, surface water and ground water. 
The EPA lists one open pit uranium mine as a superfund site with surface and ground 
water contamination. Thus, in a worst case scenario, the risks to the environment of 
northern Colorado are serious. The board was not able to quantify the likelihood of such 
risks, but merely identify them. Any risk assessment should be based on sound science. 

Waste production is directly linked to the risk of adverse environmental impacts in 
relation to both open pit and ISL uranium mining operations. Mining waste is regulated 
and management must comply with environmental laws. ISL mining has demonstrated to 
have far less waste production and risk than open pit operations. ISL mining is the 
operation of choice where feasible for extracting uranium. Human risks are greatest to 
miners in cave and open pit operations. Public risks are usually limited to affects of waste 
through contaminated water and/or soil and their propensity toward mobility and 
resulting exposure and uptake. Wastes associated with ISL operations include: drilling 
wastes, wastewater, wastewater sludge, lab wastes, produced water, leachate, liquids 
from the aquifer restoration, evaporates and refuse if radioactive. Radon levels increase 
where levels of radium 226 have become concentrated in solid wastes. Management 
strategies most frequently include solar evaporation or deep well injection for liquid 
wastes while solid materials may be buried onsite or transported to approved disposal 
sites/facilities. ISL operations minimize the production of all types of waste compared to 
open pit operations. 

Of concern is the risk of water contamination. It should be noted that the aquifers 
used for ISL mining are not suitable for drinking water. The location of mineralized soil 
will by its very nature be contaminated with heavy metals and uranium, and unfit for use 
regardless of if any mining takes place. Thus the concern is that the aquifers used to for 
domestic, industrial and agricultural will become contaminated during the mining 
operations. 

There are several ways that water can be contaminated. The first is when water 
migrates between aquifers. Communication and contamination can occur between 
aquifers above (shallow) or below (deep) the aquifer or site of interest and operation. 
Water (and contaminants) may migrate from one aquifer to another by damaged or 
disturbed geologic features, altered pressure gradients, advection, percolation, or 
intentional injection. Two of the most important variables to limit the risk of 
contamination between aquifers are ensuring that an adequate low-permeability zone 
separates the drinking water aquifer from the production aquifer, and that the injection 
and production wells are property sealed to prevent leakage between aquifers. 

Groundwater is a major source of water for human consumption in many rural 
locations. Groundwater chemical characteristics are established as baseline reference 
prior to ISL operations and become reclamation standards for post operations restoration. 
The law requires that mining companies cleanup groundwater to the same or similar 
quality established by the baseline contaminant levels so that the groundwater may be 
used as it was prior to operations. There exists no obligation to improve the quality 
beyond prior levels. Use practices vary from site to site. ISL aquifer sites commonly do 
not have quality drinking water prior to or following mining operations and are not used 

9 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

for primary human needs. Chemical characteristics of groundwater are commonly altered 
by ISL mining activities due to uranium and other elements becoming mobilized for 
extraction or waste production and contamination during or after the operations. Some 
elements have appeared in greater concentration following stabilization of aquifers while 
others have been reduced as a result of the reclamation process. Analysis of groundwater 
for quality assessment after stabilization from the Crow Butte, Wyoming ISL revealed 
minor to moderate increases in concentrations of 13 of 33 contaminants and parameters 
evaluated including: alkalinity, arsenic, bicarbonate, calcium, iron, magnesium, 
molybdenum, nitrate and nitrite, potassium, radium 226, uranium, and vanadium. 
However, the concentration of 16 of the 33 contaminants were reduced including those 
for ammonium, barium, boron, cadmium, carbonate, chloride, copper, fluoride, lead, 
manganese, nickel, selenium, silica, sodium, sulfate, total dissolved solids, and zinc. The 
remaining two contaminants evaluated, chromium and mercury, were essentially at the 
same concentration. The pH was slightly lower but essentially the same (8.5 prior to 8.18 
post - slightly basic) (NRC, 2007, Table 5). The same NRC report provides additional 
data from the Ruth, Wyoming Pilot R & D Study indicating similar effects to the 
groundwater quality when assessing 20 different contaminant levels and/or 
characteristics.  

Surface spills from mining operations may also be a source of contamination of 
groundwater. For example, in the period from December 1999 to August 2007, the Smith 
Ranch ISL in Wyoming reported 37 spills or leaks with an average spill volume of 6,040 
gallons. It may be possible that contaminated water is percolates downward and may 
contaminate groundwater in non-site shallow aquifers used for human consumption or 
food production. Percolation depth is a function of soil type and viscosity. For example 
clay soils are essentially impenetrable whereas, sandy-loamy soils percolate water 
downward very rapidly. Each site must be assessed for safety precautions to avoid and 
manage spills particularly if none minded aquifers are close to the surface.  
 
Consequences 

ISL operations can impact water, air and land resources. Research into the potential 
effects of excursions, surface spills, fugitive dust and other risks is not complete. Without 
scientific studies characterizing the scope of the impacts, a complete risk assessment is 
not available. The following sections discuss potential consequences of contamination 
from ISL operations. 

 
Water 
Potable water supplies derived from contaminated sources (aquifers or surface) pose 

threats to human and ecosystem health. The Safe Drinking Water Act establishes the 
Maximum Contaminate Levels (MCLs) for approximately 84 primary and 20 secondary 
contaminants. Sources used for municipal drinking water are monitored, evaluated, 
treated and quality is assured/required. Private wells that become contaminated may not 
be detected. Private citizens do not monitor and evaluate all water quality parameters, as 
do municipalities. Raw water commonly used in farming and agricultural production is 
not subject to the same evaluation, monitoring or standards as drinking water. 
Contaminants pose threats to health through increased concentration to dangerous levels. 
Exposure is through primary consumption of the contaminated water as well as secondary 

10 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

consumption through eating food stuffs / products exposed to contaminated water. The 
Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Control (ATSDR), reported that toxicological 
assessment has determined contaminant levels associated with ISL operations may pose 
health threats. For example, the ISL Crow Butte water quality assessment revealed 
arsenic levels ranging from 0.002 mg/L prior to mining increased to 0.017 mg/L 
following stabilization. Research suggests risks from arsenic levels 0.01 to 0.1mg/L are 
associated with possible hepatic (liver) injury whereas concentrations as low as 0.0037 
mg/L were associated with skin lesions. Pre and post selenium levels reduced from 0.003 
mg/L to 0.002 mg/L however, levels greater than 0.002 mg/L have been associated with 
liver damage. Background levels of uranium ranged from 0.092 mg/L prior to operations 
increased to 1.73 mg/L post mining; levels as low as 0.05 mg/L are associated with 
kidney damage.  

The ISL site evaluation must consider flora and fauna of the area and region, and both 
resident and migratory plant and animal species. Major impacts to ecosystems from ISL 
operations come from site disturbance via large ponds and/or pits onsite used to manage 
wastes as well as the solids produced from drilling and disturbing the geology related to 
operations. Management strategies inevitably concentrate contaminants that may become 
mobilized and adversely impact the ecosystems of the area. 

Crops can be impacted by the drying up of these ponds which can result in particulate 
contamination that can result in dispersion of radionuclides. These radioactive particles 
can be deposit on crops, and can be consumed by animals.  

Plants are impacted generally by the disturbance of operations such as in drilling 
aquifer access holes (hundreds or thousands), setting pipe, building structures, roadways, 
etc. ISL operations require large scale holding ponds for water that impact surface 
habitat. Flooding crop areas will destroy production and increase salinity of soils from 
solar evaporation of water.  This will impact plant growth and limit use in future times. 
Limiting plant growth has the potential to increase air contamination in the future. Plant 
contact with contaminated water may transfer contaminants to the plant by adsorption or 
absorption. Contaminant may either “stick” to the surface of plants or be taken-up into 
the plant.  

Domestic animals are impacted by operations as described above. Consumption of 
contaminated water can produce adverse health affects similar to those seen in other 
species including humans and are agent specific. Bioaccumulation or concentration of 
contaminants can also occur in disparate members of the local food web and this can 
affect species that are commonly consumed by humans thus imparting higher exposures 
of agents as in radionuclides concentrated by cattle and sheep.  

The ecosystem in and around the ISL operations can be influenced by contamination 
from the operations. As with the agricultural processes, bioaccumulation of contaminants 
can increase as the minerals and radionuclides move through the food web. The local 
ecosystem will experience such bioaccumulation, but the region is also in a flyway for 
many bird species so the potential to affect other ecosystems linked by the migration and 
dispersal of animals is also an issue. 

 
Air 
Dust is inevitable in mining operations due to disturbance of the geology. Fugitive 

dust emissions are considerably less in ISL operations when compared to open pit 

11 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

mining. Disturbance of the site results from the operations described above. Mobilization 
of solids is dependant on wind patterns, barriers and methods used to suppress dust. 

Radon levels have been increased where levels of radium 226 has become 
concentrated in solid wastes.  This is a much greater problem in cave and tunnel mining 
where air circulation is minimized. ISL pit bottoms are common places for 
sediment/precipitate to concentrate. As solar evaporation of water concentrates solid 
materials, radionuclides decay and produce higher levels of radon. This is released to the 
atmosphere. Radon is dispersed easily in the atmosphere (which is why home basement 
mitigation systems vent directly to the outside) and the risks for radon exposure are 
limited to the immediate area around the operation. 

Mining operations require the use of vehicles and other equipment that operates with 
fossil fuels. Increased traffic on rural roads could lead to congestion and further air 
pollution. Open-pit mining would require the use of heavy equipment, further increasing 
the local air pollution. This increase in air pollutants is not likely to be significant, 
although it should be noted that the proposed mining sites are within the EPA non-
attainment area for the Denver Metro area. 

 
Land / Soil 
Land disturbance is significant but far less in ISL operations compared to open pit 

mining. Disturbances are described above and usually affect a large surface area at the 
mine site. For example, thousands of holes may be drilled and hundreds of acres may be 
used for wastewater ponds and pits. Most ISL sites create buffer zones by acquiring 
thousands of acres around the site of interest. Excursions of lixiviant, pregnant lixiviant, 
or wastewater all pose a risk to the soil of the mining site. The use of the soil near the 
operations for agricultural purposes either during operations or after the operations are 
complete could be impacted by such excursions.  

Wildlife is impacted by site operations and disturbance of the ecosystem. The site 
evaluation must consider species that are both resident in the area and those that are 
migratory. It is suggested that most impacts are temporary and restoration permits a 
return and reestablishment of wildlife in time. Habitat fragmentation can occur with the 
construction of wellfields, roads constructed to support the mining and any fencing done 
during mining or during reclamation. This fragmentation affects the migration and 
dispersal of species. Of concern would be the impact on any endangered species (both 
plant and animal) that utilize the area affected by the mining. 

 
Open-pit mining 

ISL mining is considered to reduce environmental risks compared with open-pit 
mining. The wastes generated in open pit mining include protore, overburden, waste rock, 
drill cuttings and wastes, wastewater, treatment sludge, lab wastes, and pit water. Open 
pit mines may create increased runoff, wind and water erosion. Dewatering of the mine 
area can create groundwater depressions. 

Ground and surface water can be pumped out of the region of the open-pit mine to 
facilitate access to the ore. After the mining is complete, the pumping is stopped and the 
pit can refill with ground and surface water. The mine water can be contaminated with 
metals, radioactive elements and dissolved solids. In some instances, the ground water 

12 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

takes on the chemical characteristics of the mine dewatering effluent. Mine water 
pumped out of the mine can be high in radionuclides and other metals. 

The overburden and waste rock can become a source for acid runoff. This runoff can 
negatively impact surface and ground water downstream from the mine.  

Greater volumes of airborne contaminants can occur with open pit mines with respect 
to ISL operations. The excavation processes, movement of heavy equipment, wind 
dispersion of overburden can create fugitive dust. This dust can contain heavy metals and 
other toxics. Generally, during mine operations water is sprayed on waste and overburden 
piles to reduce dust. Overburden and waste rock can release higher amounts of radon gas. 
Although it disperses quickly, radon can be a health risk to workers. 

Clearly open-pit mining disturbs soils to a large extent. This type of mining operation 
can increase the radioactivity of the soil. Both radium and thorium concentrations have 
been shown to increase in some open-pit mines. 

 
Baseline Data 
 

It is important that any risk assessment be based on solid science, which in turn, must 
be grounded in data that describes the region. This information is also needed if ISl 
operations are conducted to determine the effectiveness of restoration and any 
remediation that would be necessary.  

Baseline assessments of the geology of the aquifer must be carried out prior to 
operations to establish baseline restoration goals. The ISL process is intended to mobilize 
minerals. Pre-mining mineral level concentrations in the water must be determined prior 
to disturbing the hydrogeology of the site. Assessment and validation is incumbent on the 
individuals/company seeking access for mining operations and the agencies providing 
permits. 

Likewise, water quality parameters must be established prior to disturbance of any 
aquifers to establish current quality and restoration goals. 

Soil analysis must be performed to establish constituent make-up for the detection of 
change and/or concentration of contaminants posing health risks to the ecosystem and 
necessary clean-up strategies, technologies, and goals. 

Evaluation of air quality and wind patterns must be performed to establish current 
quality and restoration goals and probabilities for offsite migration through fugitive dust 
emissions. 

 
Conclusions 
 

Mining operations carry with them the potential for significant environmental 
impacts. Water, soil and air contamination are all possible with the operations that may 
be conducted in Weld County. The probabilities associated with these impacts are not 
presently known. In the absence of sound scientific data, an acceptable risk assessment is 
not currently possible. Without a risk assessment, detailed project descriptions, or access 
to baseline data the EAB is unable to make recommendations regarding the Centennial 
Project at this time. 

The effects of the Centennial Project extend beyond environmental impacts. There are 
potential public health and economic impacts as well. The economic impacts of the 

13 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

project may not be tied to actual risks but perceptions. In this case, regardless of the risks, 
the project may have a negative impact to the region. Other economic impacts may 
include additional jobs and tax revenue for the duration of the mining operations.  

It is often the standard that entities other than the principle operators must show that 
harm will result in order for permitting to be halted. This approach, however, presupposes 
that the action is "innocent of harm until proven guilty" and places the burden of proof on 
those who usually have fewer resources to make their case.  Given the seriousness of the 
potential risks (many of which appear to have low probabilities of occurring), the board 
would expect that those proposing the mining operation will provide the public with all of 
the data which they possess that could have any relevancy to the matter at hand and then 
use these data to propose a reasoned and scientifically based risk assessment of the 
operations. Without meeting this standard, it is impossible for the Board or the public to 
provide their informed consent or for the outcome to represent a just resolution.  The 
risks (environmental, economic, health, and social) and the ability of the mine operator 
and local governments to avoid or mitigate these risks should be weighed against the 
benefits that may be derived from such an operation when determining whether the mine 
is acceptable for the region. 

 
Regulatory requirements 

 
Powertech is required to acquire federal, state and county permits on the Centennial 
Project in order to commence uranium mining activities.  The Colorado Department of 
Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) has identified the following State and Federal 
Permits, Authorizations and Requirements that may be required for an in-situ uranium 
mining and milling operation.  The list may change depending on the specific proposal 
for operation. 
 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment: 
Radiation Control: 

1) Radioactive materials/uranium mill license. C.R.S. §25-11-101 et seq., 6 CCR 
1007-1, Parts 1, 3, 4, 10, 17, 18.  Colorado’s radiation control regulations are 
authorized through agreement with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission.  In-
situ mining of uranium ore is subject to licensing requirements due to the 
byproduct materials produced.  The requirements include provisions regarding 
environmental assessment, financial assurance, operations, residuals 
management, worker and public safety and decommissioning.  

Water Quality: 
1) Surface water discharge permit (if there will be a discharge to surface water). 

C.R.S. §25-8-501; 5 CCR 1002-61.   
2) Storm water permit. 5 CCR 1002-61. 
3) Ground water discharge permit (if the Division of Reclamation and Mining 

Services {DRMS} fails to provide adequate ground water quality protection). 
C.R.S. § 25-8-202(7); 5 CCR 1002-61.14.  Any radioactive materials license 
issued by DRMS would require containment of contaminated solutions within a 
defined aquifer area.  If releases occur, a license requires corrective actions to be 
evaluated and implemented.  Decommissioning requirements include 

14 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

decontamination of the mined zone and return to conditions consistent with 
groundwater standards, or pre-mining conditions. 

Air Quality: 
1) Air quality permit if there will be air emissions. C.R.S. §25-7-101 et seq.  The 

requirements for air emissions permits are evaluated when an applicant submits 
an Air Pollution Emission Notice (APEN) the Air Quality Control Division for 
review. 

Hazardous Materials and Waste Management: 
1) Hazardous waste permit, if applicable. C.R.S. §25-15-101 et seq.  Permits are 

required if specified amounts of hazardous waste are generated or stored on the 
property. 

2) Solid waste certificate of designation, if applicable. C.R.S. §25-15-101 et seq.  A 
certificate of designation is required for onsite solid waste disposal activities. 

 
Department of Natural Resources 
Division of Reclamation and Mining Services: 

1) Reclamation permit. C.R.S. § 34-32-109.  The Rules and Regulations adopted by 
the Mined Land Reclamation Board contain performance standards for 
groundwater quality, drainage, post-mining use, wildlife and materials handling 
during the reclamation phase.   

2) Notice of Intent to Prospect. C.R.S. § 34-32-113. A notice is required for 
exploration to define ore bodies, characterize groundwater and determine 
possible mining and refining methods. 

State Engineer’s Office 
1) Ground water permit. C.R.S. Title 37, Article 90. 

 
US Environmental Protection Agency 

1) Class I or Class III Underground Injection Control Permit. 42 U.S.C. §300h; 40 
CFR §144.6, 147.301.  This program regulates waste disposal and injection wells 
used for in-situ uranium mining.  Standards for wells pertain to construction 
methods, operating parameters such as injection volume and pressure, 
monitoring and reporting, well closure and abandonment procedures, and 
financial responsibility.  Before injection can occur, an applicant must obtain an 
“aquifer exemption” from the EPA.  An exemption can be issued only if the 
aquifer under consideration does not serve as a source of drinking water and 
cannot become one in the future due to its mineral, hydrocarbon or geothermal 
energy content.  

 
Weld County 

1) Use by Special Review.  Weld County Code, Chapter 23 (Zoning), Article II, 
Division 4.  The standards for use by special review require County review 
and approval to address issues related to compatibility with existing and 
planned uses in the neighborhood.  The standards for approval include a 
requirement that adequate provisions for the protection of the health, safety 
and welfare of the neighborhood and County be made.  Public hearings 
before the Planning Commission and County Commissioners must be held in 

15 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

 
Future Statutory Requirements 

1) Bills Submitted for Consideration.  In January of 2008, a group of Northern 
Colorado lawmakers introduced two bills designed to protect public health 
and property values from uranium and other mining activities.  House Bill 
1161 would require mining companies to show they will restore groundwater 
aquifers to their pre-mining levels.  House Bill 1165 would require mining 
companies to inform residents of mining activity taking place near them, and 
require local governments to protect local water sources from mining 
activities.   

16 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

Glossary of Terms 
 
Aquifer – An aquifer is a geologic formation or a group of formations that contain 
sufficient water to permit extraction by wells or release through springs. Aquifer 
hydrogeology characteristics greatly affect water contaminant levels.  

Arsenic – Arsenic is a metalloid exhibiting properties of both metals and non-metals.  It 
may be present in combination with other compounds. Arsenic is present in nature and 
varies in concentration within the geology of soils. It is a known carcinogen and toxic 
agent. The primary target organs with chronic exposure include the skin, nervous system, 
liver and vascular system. High level ingestion (70 – 180 milligrams can be fatal to 
humans. Arsenic is found in our drinking water and food. It is estimated that the average 
daily intake (ADI) from food is 0.04 milligrams. For those with high seafood diets, the 
ADI may be as high as 0.02 milligrams. Current drinking water standards limit 
concentrations to 10 micrograms (.01 milligrams) per liter while most water sources are 
less than 5 micrograms (0.005 milligrams per liter in the US.  

Extraction Well – A bore hole or well in an in situ well field through which pregnant 
lixiviant and ground water are drawn to the surface. Also known as a production well. 
Typically, an extraction well is surrounded by a number of injection wells. 

Fold – Bending of rock layers due to slow sustained forces.   

Food web – An ecological concept that relates species by which species consume others. 
Plants, which make their own food do not consume other organisms. Often, food webs 
are represented as simple food chains with a hierarchy, plants consumed by herbivores, 
which are consumed by predators and so on. Actual food webs are highly reticulated with 
various loops. Food webs are important for understanding the movement of elements 
(nutrients or toxic substances) from one part of an ecosystem to another. 

Hard rock mining – Technique in which tunnels are dug and the ore is extracted from 
veins found underground. This technique generates less waste material but exposes 
miners to much higher radiation from the associated radon gas. The waste rock carries 
with it the possibility of subsequent leaching of toxic elements such as uranium, radium, 
selenium, or molybdenum into the groundwater. 

In situ mining leaching –  Mining technique, also known as in situ recovery or solution 
mining, in which holes are bored into the rock containing the mineral. Treated water is 
forced into a set of holes in order to dissolve the mineral. The water is treated either with 
sulfuric acid or sodium bicarbonate (sodium bicarbonate is currently used in the United 
States). The solution containing the mineral is brought to the surface via pumping from 
another set of holes. The dissolved mineral is then recovered from solution. The mineral-
depleted water is then re-injected into the boreholes.  This technique generates the least 
amount of rock waste but raises issues of contamination of useful aquifers by migration 
of water between aquifers from older drill holes. The region in Weld County where 
current mining interests are involved was explored in the 1970s with thousands of drill 
holes bored. Currently in situ mining is the main method used in the United States to 
extract uranium. 

17 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

Injection Well – A bore hold or well in an in situ well field through which lixiviant 
enters the aquifer containing the orebody. 

Isotope – An element can occur as different isotopes. The nucleus of an atom of a 
particular element contains the same number of protons but can contain different numbers 
of neutrons. These variants based on the number of neutrons are the isotopes of the 
element. The fewer the number of neutrons means the isotope is subject to more 
radioactive decay. 

Open pit mining – Technique involves the removal of the rock and soil overburden to 
allow for the extraction of the mineral ore. Generally, this process involves a large 
amount of dust and extensive use of water is used to mitigate the dust. After the mineral 
is extracted, generally the area undergoes reclamation. This method also carries with it 
the possibility of subsequent leaching of toxic elements such as uranium, radium, 
selenium, or molybdenum into the groundwater. 

Pregnant Solution - A solution containing lixiviant and the mineral targeted for 
extraction. Other minerals are often found in the solution having been mobilized by the 
lixiviant as well. 

Protore – A mineral deposit that could become economically viable if prices change or 
technology for extraction improves. 

Radiation – Energy in the form of waves or particles. It can be either ionizing or non-
ionizing (heat, light, microwaves, radio waves). Three forms of ionizing radiation are 
alpha, beta and gamma. Alpha radiation is easily blocked and only when the source is 
internal can cellular damage occur (such as when Radon is inhaled, or when ingested, 
such as Polonium-210 poisoning). Beta radiation can penetrate tissue farther and can 
cause skin lesions at high exposures, or increased risk of cancers at lower exposures.  
Gamma radiation has the highest energy and can penetrate tissue readily and can increase 
the risk of certain cancers. Gamma radiation can cause DNA damage resulting in 
hereditary changes (in mammals, but such changes have not been documented in 
humans). As a radioactive element decays it changes to isotopes of different elements 
each releasing radiation until a final resting state is achieved (non-radioactive isotope). 
This sequence is the decay chain and the uranium decay chain releases alpha, beta and 
gamma radiation at various steps. Uranium decay occurs regardless of its location or any 
physical properties. Radon is an important decay product in the uranium decay chain. 
Uranium is naturally present in soil and water.   

Radium – Radium is a naturally occurring radioactive element that assumes 16 different 
isotopes. The most common isotopes are radium 226, 224 and 228 used widely in 
medicine and industry. Radium forms when isotopes of uranium or thorium decay in the 
environment. Most radium (226) originates from the decay of the plentiful uranium (238). 
Radium 224 and 228 form when Thorium decays. Radium like uranium are naturally 
occuring and in the soil. Radium is a toxic element that targets the skeletal system 
causing bone cancer (osteogenic sarcoma).  

18 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

Radon – A radioactive noble gas. The EPA lists radon as the second leading cause of 
lung cancer. Radon is a daughter element of uranium, that is, when uranium decays one 
of the elements it becomes is radon. Radon occurs naturally as a gas and as such is 
generally quickly dispersed in open air. Radon poses a serious health risk when it is 
allowed to concentrate. Radon can collect in subterranean areas without proper 
ventilation (mine shafts, basements, etc). 

Reclamation –  Reclamation standards and practices address environmental protection 
and stability post-mining operations including topsoil salvage and storage, surface and 
groundwater protection, stability of acreage exposed to wind and water erosion. These 
standards are established by the permitting agency and are meant to ensure recovery of 
the site. Standards are focused at surface mining impacts such as in open pit coal mining. 
The Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 created the Office of Surface 
Mining Reclamation and Enforcement within the Department of the Interior administered 
by the State of Colorado.  

Remediation – Remediation is the cleanup or other methods used to remove or contain a 
toxic spill or hazardous materials from a Superfund site, or uranium mine or extraction 
facility, including those included under the Uranium Mill Tailings Radiation Control Act 
(UMTRCA).  

Selenium – Selenium is metal and an essential nutrient. It may be present in combination 
with other compounds. Selenium is present in nature and varies in concentration within 
the geology of soils. Deficiency causes cardiomyopathy (heart abnormality). The ADI is 
estimated at 0.02 milligram through food consumed. Selenium has low toxicity but may 
also be toxic at very high levels 100 – 100,000 times normal intake. Target organs 
include skin, hair, nails, and nervous system.  

Tailings – Tailing are the solid material wastes (waste rock) from mining operations. 
Tailings are formed when the ore is extracted from the substrate. Uranium mining 
tailings, while generally low in radioactive elements can contain higher concentrations of 
contaminants including heavy metals. Open pit and tunnel mining produce large amount 
of tailings. Tailings reclamation are usually required by the permit process.  

Uranium – Uranium is the heaviest naturally occurring element. It is found in low 
concentrations in water, rock and soil. Uranium is weakly radioactive, emitting alpha 
particles. Uranium occurs as several isotopes. The three most common are U-238 
(99.28% of all naturally occurring Uranium), U-235 (0.71%) and U-234 (0.0054%).  

Uranium is a heavy metal and as such is toxic to humans. The LD50 dosage for uranium 
is 29 grams in an average adult. Uranium, in large quantities, damages the kidneys. The 
CDC reports no radiological effects from naturally occurring uranium.  

Yellowcake - a processed oxide of uranium, U3O8, extracted and concentrated from 
uranium ore: used as the raw material for commercial nuclear materials, esp. fuel 
elements in nuclear reactors. 

 

19 



 In Situ Leaching and Open-pit Mining 
 

20 

References 
 
Anastasi, FS and RE Williams. 1984. Aquifer restoration at uranium in situ leach sites. 

International Journal of Mine Water 3(4):29-37. 

Au, WW, RG Lane, MS Legator, EB Whorton, GS Wilkinson, GJ Gabehart. 1995. 
Biomarker monitoring of a population residing near uranium mining activities. 
Environmental Health Perspectives 103: 466-470. 

Brunt, DA. 1998. ISL Uranium Mining - The Key Elements, 2ND Australian Uranium 
Summit, February 11-13, 1998, Adelaide, Australia. 

Cappa, J. 2006. Rock Talk. Colorado Geological Survey 9(2): 1-12. 

Charbeneau, RJ. 1984. Groundwater restoration with in situ uranium leach mining. In 
Groundwater Contamination, National Academy of Sciences. 

Gollier, C and N Treich. 2003. Decision-making under scientific uncertainty: The 
economics of the precautionary principle. Journal of Risk and Uncertainty. 27(1):77-
103. 

International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA). 2005. Guidebook on environmental impact 
assessment for in situ leach mining projects. IAEA-tecdoc-1428 

Klaassen, C. (Ed). 1996. Casarett and Doull’s Toxicology: The Basic Science of Poisons. 
(5th ed.) McGraw-Hill, NY, NY. 

Marlowe, J. 1984. Environmental Overview of Unconventional Extraction of Uranium. 
NTIS. US Department of Commerce. Report PB84-141167. EPA-600/7-84-006. 

US Department of Health and Human Services Public Health Service Agency for Toxic 
Substances and Disease Registry. 1999. Toxicological profile for uranium. Atlanta, 
Georgia. Pp 1-398 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Radiation Programs. 1983b. Report to 
Congress: Potential Health and Environmental Hazards of Uranium Mine Wastes. U.S. 
Government Printing Office, Washington, DC. 

US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 2007. Technical Report on technologically 
enhanced naturally occurring radioactive materials from uranium mining. EPA 402-
R-05-007. 

US Nuclear Regulatory Commission / US Geological Survey. 2007. Consideration of 
Geochemical Issues in Groundwater Restoration at Uranium In-Situ. Document: 
NUREG-CR-6870 

US Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC). 2003. Standard Review Plan for In Situ 
Leach Uranium Extraction License Applications. Office of Nuclear Material Safety 
and Safeguards Washington, DC 2055-0001. Document NUREG-1569. 

Voss, C, and D Gorski. 2007. Report on the Centennial Project Weld County, Colorado. 
Prepared for Powertech Uranium Corp. 1205-789 West Pender St, Vancouver, BC 
V6C 1H2 

 



From:  "Edquist, Jeff" <JEFF.EDQUIST@aei.com> 
To: <sullivcj@co.larimer.co.us>, <jbrinkhoff@msps.com> 
Date:  3/25/2008 11:28 PM 
Subject:  FW: Request for Information 
 
Hello, 
  
As discussed at tonight's Wellington Town council meeting, here is information regarding the clean up 
costs for the Atlas uranium mine site. This was a traditional mine, tunneled with a typical tailings pile. I 
learned of this site while researching Richard Blubaugh (senior managment at Powertech).  
reference: http://www.secinfo.com/dS9Jj.934.htm 
  
NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS  POSITION WITH ATLAS        PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION      
CITIZENSHIP 
                                                                                            
Philip R. Mengel           Director                   Chief Executive Officer   U.S.        
Corporate Office                                      and member of the Board,              
1166 Spring Street                                    Glen-Gery Corporation                 
P.O. Box 7001                                         (building materials                   
Wyomissing <https://webmail.aei.com/$/SEC/Registrants.asp?City=19610/Wyomissing> , PA 
<https://webmail.aei.com/$/SEC/Registrants.asp?State=PA>  19610-6001 
<https://webmail.aei.com/$/SEC/Registrants.asp?ZIP=19610>                              manufacturer)                         
 
Gary E. Davis              President                  Same                      U.S.        
 
Richard E. Blubaugh        Vice-President,            Same                      U.S.        
                           Environmental and                                                
                           Governmental Affairs                                             
 
Gregg B. Shafter           Vice-President,            Same                      U.S.        
                           Project Development                                              
 
James R. Jensen            Controller and Principal   Same                      U.S.        
                           Accounting Officer                                               
 
Jerome C. Cain <https://webmail.aei.com/$/SEC/Name.asp?S=jerome+c.+cain>              Secretary, Vice 
President  Same                      U.S.        
                           of Finance, and Treasurer                                        
 
  
Atlas Mine site - Moab UT 
Northern Arizona University 
http://www.cpluhna.nau.edu/Change/uranium.htm 
  
Please see the 4th paragraph below the heading - The first ghosts 
  
Mr. Blubaugh held a senior management position with Atlas corporation during it's years of operation. 
When the EPA stepped in to require a cleanup of the site, Atlas declared bankruptcy. This left the site 
cleaning to the Department of Energy.  
  
My inquiries to Utah State lead to the below email from the DOE contractor. 
My personal feeling is that this cleanup will continue to use taxpayer funds for many years before the site 
will be  
safe again. My concern regarding Powertech is that their senior management carries this legacy.  
  
Sincerely, 



  
Jeff Edquist 
 
________________________________ 
 
From: Wendee Ryan [mailto:Wendee.Ryan@gjemtac.doe.gov] 
Sent: Fri 12/21/2007 10:10 AM 
To: Edquist, Jeff 
Cc: Don Metzler; Gail Majors; Joel Berwick; Joe Ritchey; Kym Bevan; Cindy Smith; 'bobrien@utah.gov'; 
'Connie Nakahara (cnakahara@utah.gov)'; 'Loren Morton (lmorton@utah.gov)'; Taylor, William; 
'beverett@utah.gov'; 'jswanson@utah.gov' 
Subject: Request for Information 
 
 
 
Mr. Edquist, 
 
  
 
The Utah Department of Environmental Quality referred your request for information about the former 
Atlas millsite to the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE). Thank you for your interest in the Moab Uranium 
Mill Tailings Remedial Action (UMTRA) Project. DOE assumed ownership of the former Atlas millsite in 
October 2001. Since then, DOE has spent approximately 60 million dollars through fiscal year (FY) 2007. 
These costs have been paid for by the federal government; the State of Utah does not participate in cleanup 
costs associated with the Moab UMTRA Project. Anticipated FY 2008 funding is approximately $23 
million.  
 
  
 
Additional information about the Moab UMTRA Project can be found on our website at 
www.gjem.energy.gov/moab. The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission may have additional information 
about the site when it was owned by Atlas Minerals Corporation. 
 
  
 
Wendee Ryan 
 
Public Affairs Manager 
 
S&K Aerospace, Inc. 
 
contractor to DOE 
 
wryan@gjemtac.doe.gov 
 
  
 
  
 
 
This message, including any attachments, may contain  
information that is confidential and proprietary information  
of Advanced Energy Industries, Inc.  The dissemination, 
distribution, use or copying of this message or any of its 
attachments is strictly prohibited without the express  
written consent of Advanced Energy Industries, Inc. 



THE STATE OF TEXAS §     IN THE COMMISSIONER’S COURT 
 
COUNTY OF GOLIAD   §     OF GOLIAD COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION OPPOSING 
URANIUM MINING IN GOLIAD COUNTY 

 
 

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME: 

WHEREAS Goliad County, Texas (“Goliad County”) has a land area of 

approximately 859 square miles surrounded by Victoria County in the east, Refugio County 

in the south, Bee County in the west, and Dewitt County in the north; and 

WHEREAS groundwater is a precious commodity in Goliad County; and 

WHEREAS the primary source of drinking water in Goliad County is the Gulf Coast 

Aquifer; and 

WHEREAS the role of groundwater and surface water interaction in sustaining the 

fragile ecosystem within Goliad County is important; and 

WHEREAS it is generally recognized that eco-tourism, development of the airpark, 

spring water for ranching and hunting are seen as major drivers of the economy; and 

WHEREAS the future economic health of Goliad County is highly dependant upon a 

reliable source of groundwater; and 

WHEREAS groundwater must be managed on a “sustainable” basis; and 

WHEREAS uranium intrusion, uranium contamination and lowered water quality are 

a risk from in-situ uranium mining; and 

 WHEREAS the residents and property owners of Goliad County have expressed 

valid concerns regarding in-situ uranium mining in Goliad County.. 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Goliad County Commissioners Court 

hereby resolve and express its firm and absolute opposition to in-situ uranium mining in 

Goliad County.  Goliad County Commissioners Court supports the Goliad County 

Groundwater Conservation District’s mission and goal in protecting the groundwater 

resource in Goliad County, Texas. 

 

 



 

 Approved this _____________ day of October, 2006. 

  
 
______________________________ 
Harold Gleinser 
County Judge  
       
    
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Julian Flores, Precinct 1    Jerry Rodriguez, Precinct 2 
 
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 
Jim Kreneck, Precinct 3    Ted Long, Precinct 4 
 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Gail Turley, County Clerk 

 

     



Please see the attached file as was presented to the State of Virginia legislature. 
Author Elizabeth H. Haskell - reference: http://www.centerforpolitics.org/programs/govcon/wilder_bio-
ehaskell.htm
  
This link will take you to the Viginia state law banning uranium mining: 
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+45.1-283
  
  
This final letter delivers as promised the documents I spoke of this evening. I appreciate the 
council's time  
and thought on this matter. 
  
With regard to the lady who felt this was a waste of your time, I can only say this. I am a patriot 
and a citizen. 
I fought for my country as an Army National Guardsmen and then again as a Marine. I did this 
for my family and for people I do not know, to include the lady protesting our request for help. 
Please, Please consider our plight and take a stand for us. I trust your opinion counts highly with 
the Weld County Council as they will address the issue forthcoming. 
  
Sincerely,  
  
Jeff Edquist 
630 West 5th St Loveland CO 
11350 WCR 96 Nunn, CO 
  
This message, including any attachments, may contain information that is confidential and 
proprietary information of Advanced Energy Industries, Inc. The dissemination, distribution, use 
or copying of this message or any of its attachments is strictly prohibited without the express 
written consent of Advanced Energy Industries, Inc.  



Department of Environmental Quality

To protect, conserve and enhance the quality of Wyoming's
environment for the benefit of current and future generations.

Dave Freudenthal, Governor John Corra, Director

Match 10, 2008

CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED #7005 1820 0005 1478 8828

Mr. John McCarthy
Power Resources, Inc.
P.O. Box 1210
Glenrock WY 82637

RE: Insitu Uranium Permits 603 and 633, Notice of Violation, Docket No. 4231-08

Dear Mr. McCarthy:

Enclosed you will find a Notice of Violation issued under the provisions of W.S.§ 35-11-415(a) and (b)(ii).
The Notice of Violation is based on the investigation conducted Mr. Mark Moxley during the fall of 2007. The
investigation found that PRI failed to conduct concurrent reclamation which is a violation of Chapter 3, Section
2(k)(i)(D), and that PRI failed to follow the approved permits.

The Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality/Land Quality Division (LQD) is attempting to resolve
this issue without further enforcement action, and requires that you contact Mr. Donald R. McKenzie, LQD
Administrator at 307-777-7046 within fifteen (15) days of receipt of this letter to schedule a meeting to
resolve this enforcement action. Should resolution of this enforcement action be reached as a result of this
meeting, a Settlement Agreement including a penalty assessment will be signed by both parties.

Respectfully,

Jo•n V Corra
Dieer

Department of Environmental Quality

Enclosures: Notice of Violation
Investigation Report

cc: Lowell Spackman, District I w/attachments
Mark Moxley, District II w/attachments
Docket # 4231-08 w/attachments
Doug Mandeville, NRC w/attachments

Donald R. McKenzie
Administrator
Land Quality Division

Herschler Building
ADMIN/OUTREACH ABANDONED MINES
(307) 777-7758 (307) 777-6145
FAX 777-3610 FAX 777-6462

122 West 25th Street • Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 • http'//deq.state.wy.us
AIR QUALITY INDUSTRIAL SITING LAND QUALITY SOLID & HAZ. WASTE WATER QUALITY
(307) 777-7391 (307) 777-7368 (307) 777-7756 (307) 777-7752 (307) 777-7781
FAX 777-5616 FAX 777-6937 FAX 777-5864 FAX 777-5973 FAX 777-5973



DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
STATE OF WYOMING

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

IN THE MATTER OF THE NOTICE OF
VIOLATION ISSUED TO
POWER RESOURCES, INC. DOCKET NO. 4231-08
P.O. BOX 1219
GLENROCK, WY 82637
Re: Insitu Uranium Operation, Permit #603
Re: Insitu Uranium Operation, Permit #633

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

Notice of Violation is being sent to you pursuant to W.S. §35-11-701(q)•which
requires that a written notice shall be issued in the case of failure to correct or
remedy an alleged violation specifying the provision of the act, rule, regulation,
standard, permit, license, or variance alleged to be violated.

2. As a result of Land Quality Division (LQD) concerns over the slow pace of
groundwater restoration of wellfields at Power Resources, Inc. Permits 603 and
633 Insitu Uranium Mine, an investigation was conducted of the mine and
reclamation plans in the approved permits, plus information provided in annual
reports. This investigation was conducted by LQD staff during October and
November of 2007. In addition to the violations cited below, LQD identified
serious deficiencies' with both permits. The plans contained in the permit
documents are dated and incomplete in numerous ways: spill detection, reporting,
and follow-up protocols are not defined in the permit; groundwater restoration
procedures, necessary facilities, and time schedules for restoration must be
thoroughly described; waste disposal facilities and processes must be described
for all waste streams; all critical process installations need thorough construction
details and specifications; and topsoil protection procedures are not adequately
defined. As a consequence of the inadequacies of the permits, both operations are
seriously under-bonded.

•3. The investigation found that PRI failed to conduct concurrent reclamation which
is a violation of Chapter 3, Section 2(k)(i)(D) requiring concurrent reclamation;
and that PRI failed to follow the approved permits, which is a violation of W.S.
§35-11-415(a). The following lists the specific violations'

Permit 603

a. Wellfield C was in production for approximately ten years. The approved
Mine Plan states, "Once a wellfield is installed it takes approximately one
to three years to recover the leachable uranium from a production area."
Extending the production time period has become a routine practice and is
not in compliance with the approved permit or the requirement for
concurrent reclamation..

b. In addition to the production phase, Wellfield C has now been in
restoration for ten years. The 2007 Annual Report states that the ground
water quality is similar to "end of mining" wellfield conditions. The
permit states that restoration and stability are estimated to take
approximately five years. This restoration delay is not in compliance with
the approved permit or the requirement for concurrent reclamation.

c. Wellfield E has removed 100% of the leachable reserves, and in recent
years wellfield production has slowed to maintenance levels. This rate of
production delays completion of mining and restoration of this wellfield

I



unit. This is not in compliance with the approved permit, and is a violation
of Chapter 2, Section 2(b)(ii) which requires coordination of the Mine and
Reclamation Plans to facilitate orderly development and reclamation.

d. The timetable listing the schedule of mining-related activities in the permit
(Figure A, page OP-3A) and the timetable provided in the 2007 annual
report both indicate that PRI is not in compliance with their restoration
schedules for Wellfields C, D, and E. The schedule shows that Wellfield C
should be decommissioning instead of in restoration, and that Wellfieids D
and E should be in restoration instead of production.

Permit 633

a. The permit indicates that "An updated schedule will be supplied with the
annual report if the mining or restoration schedule varies from Table 3-1."
The timetable commitments in the permit are not consistent with wellfield
status. Therefore, the table in the annual report is the schedule that PRI is
committed to for wellfield status. Based on this table, PRI is rnot in
compliance with their restoration schedules for Wellfields 2, 3, and 4/4A.
The annual report text indicates that Wellfield 2 will continue to be in
production, while the annual report schedule referred to in the permit
shows that it will be in restoration in 2008. Wellfields 3 and 4/4a should
be in.restoration instead of production.

b. The permit states that it generally takes "three years for uranium
production, and three years for aquifer restoration." Actual times for
wellfield production and restoration are, thus far, 2-3 times longer than
permit commitments.

4. Wyoming Statute §35-11-901(a) provides that any person who violates any
provision of the Environmental Quality Act or any rule, standard, permit, license
or variance adopted hereunder is liable to a penalty of ten thousand dollars
($10,000.00) for each day of violation, which penalty may be recovered in a civil
action brought by the Attorney General in the name of the People of the State of
Wyoming.

NOTHING IN THIS NOTICE shall be interpreted to in any way, limit or contravene
any other remedy available under the Environmental Quality Act, nor shall this Order be
interpreted as being a condition precedent to any other enforcement action.

SIGNED this 77"/ day of /"-dci4- ,2008

Joh orra. Donald R. McKenzie
Dirtr Administrator
Department of Environmental Quality Land Quality Division

Please direct all inquiries regarding this Notice of Violation to Mr. Donald R. McKenzie,
Administrator, Land Quality Division, Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality,
122 West 25h Street, Cheyenne, WY 82002. Telephone No. (307) 777-7046.

ec: Lowell Spackman, District I
Mark Moxley, District II
Docket # 4231-08
Doug Mandeville, NRC

2



Report of Investigation

Operator Power Resources, Inc.

Facility Smith Ranch - Highland Uranium Project
Mine Permit #603 (Highland) and #633 (Smith Ranch)

Prepared By Mark Moxley, LQD District 2 Supervisor

Date, November 21, 2007

Background:

This investigation was conducted at the request of Rick Chancellor, LQD Administrator, in-
response to concerns over recent spills and the slow pace of groundwater restoration at the Smith
Ranch-Highland ISL operation. PRI's operation is located in Converse county in LQD District 1.
An investigator was brought in from LQD District 2 with the intention of having a fresh pair of
eyes look at the operation. The investigation was intended to identify and focus on "big picture"
issues, not specific details. The investigation proceeded as follows:

* Review of permit documehts and annual reports
* Interviews with LQD District 1 staff
* Site tour and interviews with PRI staff
* Interviews with LQD District 3 staff
* Follow-up reviews and discussions

PRI began producing in 1988 and is currently the only significant producer of uranium in
Wyoming. They are currently producing at capacity levels (2 million pounds of yellow-cake in
2006 and they are expecting similar production in 2007). PRI has applied for a mine permit
amendment to add the Reynolds Ranch property and they are also planning to consolidate the
Smith Ranch and Highland permits. This will result in a combined mine permit area some 41,000
acres in size. PRI is planning to increase their throughput capacity next year and add
approximately 30 people to their current staff of 100. They are also considering adding facilities
to provide toll milling services to process feedstock from other operators.

Given that PRI's operation has for many years been the major uranium producer in Wyoming,
there is an expectation that the operation might serve as a model for excellence in ISL mining.
Unfortunately, this is not the case. There are a number of major long-standing environmental
concerns at this operation that demand immediate attention. Recommendations are made as to
how to address these concerns.

Currently the uranium industry is experiencing a major boom. Drilling and pre-permitting
investigations are proceeding on many different properties around the state, including several
owned by PRI. The LQD is expecting numerous new ISL mine permit applications within the
coming 12-18 months. This increase in workload will be a major challenge for the LQD staff.
Achieving regulatory effectiveness and efficiency will be a high priority for LQD and it will
require the cooperation of the industry.



Major Regulatory Issues and Concerns with Permits 603 & 633:

1. Mine Permit:

The mine permit document is the primary regulatory mechanism governing the operation. The
mine and reclamation plan should describe in detail how the operation will be conducted so as to
comply with all of the major regulatory requirements. The mine and reclamation plans should be
updated and maintained so as to be a definitive reference for the operator, the regulatory agencies,
and also the public. Having a definitive mine and reclamation plan is particularly important for
new staff. In the case of the Smith Ranch - Highlands operation (mine permits #603 and #633),
the plans contained in the permit document are out of date and incomplete in several important
areas. The following major deficiencies were noted:

A. The approved mining and reclamation schedules are not being followed and are not,
current. PRI is not conducting contemporaneous restoration as required by their permit
and WDEQ-LQD regulations. See discussion under item 2, below.

B. Spill detection, reporting, delineation, remediation, follow-up and tracking protocols are
not defined in the permit and should be. PRI experiences spills on a routine basis. See
discussion under item 3 below.

C. Groundwater restoration processes, facilities and procedures (incorporating and defining
BPT), flow rates and time schedules should be thoroughly described in the permit so that
expectations are clear. This has implications for bonding also.

D. Waste disposal facilities and processes should be clearly defined for all waste streams.
One example of inaccurate information in permit #603 (on pages OP- 15 and 19) states that
byproduct solid W aste materials will be disposed at the ANC Gas Hills facility (which
closed in 1994). This waste actually goes to the Pathfinder Shirley Basin facility.

E. Construction details and specifications should be thoroughly described for critical process
installations, including wells, pipelines, header houses, ponds, etc. One example of
inaccurate information in permit #603 (on page OP-24)states that well casing joints are
fastened with screws. This practice is not consistent with the regulations and was
discontinued years ago.

F. Topsoil protection procedures are not adequately defined to assure that disturbance is
minimized and that the soil resource is protected. PRI's typical wellfield installation
procedures result in the near total disturbance of the native vegetation and soils. This is
not consistent with the regulation that allows for "minor disturbance" without topsoil
stripping. More definitive procedures should be implemented to restrict and consolidate
disturbance from roadways and pipelines and to insure careful topsoil salvage from well
sites, mud pits, pipelines, roadways, etc.

With the permit updates required by Chapter 11I and the proposed consolidation of the Highland
and Smith Ranch permits, now is an opportune time to correct permit deficiencies and construct a
permit that is informative and useful to all parties.



2. Contemporaneous Reclamation:

One of the fundamental requirements for any mining operation is that reclamation be conducted
concurrently with mining. Not only is this the most efficient operational strategy but it also
insures that the reclamation liability is kept at a reasonable and manageable level. This approach
ensures that the public is protected in the event of a forfeiture.

The schedule in permit #603, Highland, dates from 2005. An identical schedule was provided in
the July, 2007 annual report. That schedule shows that restoration of the C wellfield should have
been completed in 2006 and decommissioning should now be in progress. In actuality the
restoration of the C wellfield has been on-going for ten years and the RO treatment phase has only
just recently begun. According to the schedule, restoration of the D wellfield should have
commenced in 2006 and restoration of the E wellfield should have commenced in early 2007.
The annual report states that both the D and E wellfields are still in production. According to the
schedule there should now be five wellfields in production (D-ext, F, H, I & J), two in restoration
(D & E) and three restored (A, B & C). In fact there are currently 7 wellfields in production, one
in restoration (C), and only 2 restored (A & B) at Highland.

The schedule contained in permit #633, Smith Ranch, dates from 1998. A more current schedule
was provided in the July, 2007 annual report, yet even this recent schedule is not being followed.
According to that schedule, wellfields 1, 3 and 4/4A should now be in restoration. Production
from these wellfields was started in 1997, 1998 and 1999 respectively. Restoration of wellfield 1
is to be complete by mid 2008 and restoration in wellfield 2 is to commence in early 2008.
However, as reported in the annual report only wellfield 1 is in restoration (no completion date
stated) and no mention is made of any other planned restoration. In addition, a new wellfield (K)
went into'production this year and it does not even appear on the schedule. According to the
schedule there should now be three wellfields in production (2, 15 & 15A)and three in restoration
(1,3 & 4/4A). In fact there are currently five wellfields in production and only one in restoration.
No wellfields have been restored at Smith Ranch.

It is readily apparent that groundwater restoration is not a high priority for PRI. Reclamation is
not contemporaneous with mining. A total of 12 wellfields are now in production and restoration
is proceeding (slowly) in only 2 wellfields. Only 2 wellfields (A and B) have been restored in 20
years of operation. The permits project that production will typically last for 3-5 years per
wellfield and restoration will take 3-5 years per wellfield. It appears in reality that both
production and restoration timeframes have doubled or tripled and yet additional weilfields are
being brought into production.

It is recommended that a notice of violation be issued to PRI for failure to conduct concurrent
reclamation and failure to follow the approved schedules. A rigorous compliance schedule should
be implemented to accelerate restoration. A thorough re-evaluation of the operation schedules is
warranted. As pointed out below, new deep disposal wells (DDW's) and RO units will be
required to support restoration operations. LQD approval- of the Reynolds Ranch amendment as
well as any new wellfields should be contingent on installation of appropriate DDW's and RO
units and completion of restoration in existing wellfields.



3. Spills, Leaks and Excursions:

Over the years there have been an inordinate number of spills, leaks and other releases at this
operation. Some 80 spills have been reported, in addition to numerous pond leaks, well casing
failures and excursions. Unfortunately, it appears that such occurrences have become routine.
The LQD currently has two large three- ring binders full of spill reports from the Smith Ranch -
Highland operations.

Protocols for spill detection, reporting, control, delineation, remediation and tracking should be
defined in the mine plan to cover all potential fluid types (injection fluids, production fluids,
waste fluids, chemicals and petroleum products) and all potential sources (buried pipelines,
surface pipelines, wellhead fittings, headerhouses, ponds, well casing failures, etc.). Protocols
should include mapping and delineation of the extent of soil and/or groundwater contamination
associated with each occurrence. A GIS system should be developed to facilitate long term
tracking of all spills and releases. An updated cumulative spill map showing all historic spills and
releases should be presented in each annual report along with documentation of follow-up actions.
Excursion protocols are addressed in some detail in the permit, but excursions should be tracked
on a cumulative basis in the annual report.

Cumulative tracking of spills and releases is important to insure appropriate follow-up on every
incident. Some of the spills may have little impact individually, but cumulatively they might have
a significant effect on soils and/or groundwater. A cumulative record will also assist in
pinpointing potential problem areas and developing appropriate preventative measures. PRI
should develop and implement an inspection and maintenance program designed to prevent future
spills. Spills should not and need not be an accepted consequence of ISL mining.

4. Reclamation Cost/Bonding:

The reclamation cost estimates contained in PRI's annual reports assume completion of all
groundwater and surface reclamation in 4 years with a staff of 26 people (1/4 of current staff),
using the existing facilities with the addition of only 2 new 400gpm RO units. This scenario is
totally infeasible and unsupported by any critical path timeline or water balance. Rough
calculations based primarily on PRI's figures reveal an alarming scenario.

Adding the pore volumes for all of the existing wellfields gives a total pore volume (PV)
for the project (excluding restored wellfields A&B) of 5,133 Ac.Ft.

PRI's bond calculation includes only one PV of groundwater sweep, vs three PV's
specified in the permit. [Removal of this volume of water from the aquifer would be
problematic and warrants further evaluation.] PRI's four existing deep disposal wells
(DDW's) have a combined capacity of approximately 600gpm (@100% availability).
Disposal of one PV would take more than 5 years! This is not an acceptable schedule. -A
more reasonable scenario would require at least doubling the disposal capacity
(1,200gpm), which would require 4 or 5 new DDW's. These would also be needed for
disposal of RO brine and should be included in the bond.



* PRI's bond calculation includes only 3 pore volumes of RO treatment. The approved
reclamation plan specifies circulation of a total of 6 PV's (3 groundwater sweep and 3
RO). It is likely that at least 5 PV's of RO treatment would be required if only one PV of
groundwater sweep was completed. Using the five existing RO units on the site, plus two
new 400 gpm units included in the bond calculation, producing a combined total of
1,360gpm of permeate (@80/20 permeate to brine ratio @100% availability), it would
take 854 days (2.3 years) to treat one PV! It would take at least 11.5 years to treat 5 pore
volumes. This is a not an acceptable schedule. A more realistic reclamation scenario
would require increasing the RO capacity by 2-3 times (3,000 - 4,000 gpm permeate
production). The additional RO units, as well as the additional building space, ancillary
treatment facilities and piping, should be included in the bond.

Using the existing RO units (plus the two bonded RO units) and existing DDW's,
reclamation would take 20+ years, assuming groundwater restoration was achieved
without any problems. (5 years for one PV of GW sweep + 11.5 years for 5 PV's of RO
treatment + 1 year stability monitoring + 1 year decommissioning + 1 year of surface
reclamation). Clearly this is not an acceptable schedule, but it does point out the need for
reevaluation of the reclamation plan, restoration schedule and the bond calculation.

PRI's bond calculation includes minimal funds for new infrastructure, maintenance,
replacement and repair. Only two new 400 gpm RO units are included in the bond
estimate. The need for new wells, including DDW's,-water storage and treatment ponds,
additional RO units, membranes, pumps, piping and general wellfield renovation should
be anticipated and included in the bond calculation.

PRI's bond calculation assumes a staff of only 26 people, with 22 of them on a salary of,
only $34,000 per year! If their current operations require a staff of 100 people then it will
take at least 1/2 to 2/3 of that staff to conduct restoration. The restoration operations will
look very similar to production operations. Operation of RO units, in particular, is very
high maintenance and -labor intensive. Retaining competent staff will require that wages
and benefits be at least $50,000 per year.

Considering that reclamation will take several times longer, require at least twice the staff
with higher wages and require much greater investments in infrastructure than PRI has
estimated, a realistic reclamation cost estimate for this site would likely be on the order of
$150 million, as compared to PRI's current calculation of $38,772,800. PRI is presently
bonded for a total of only $38,416,500. No bond adjustments have been made since 2002.
Clearly the public is not protected. It is recommended that PRI's bond be immediately
raised to a level of $80 million until a thorough evaluation, including critical path
analysis, can be completed and an appropriate bonding level established. No permit
amendments should be approved or new wellfields authorized until the bonding situation.
is corrected.



5. Regulatory compliance:

Achieving environmental compliance at an operation of the size and complexity of PRI's Smith
Ranch - Highland Mine requires a high level of commitment from both the company and the
regulatory agency. PRI's environmental efforts have suffered from inadequate staffing, high
turnover, lack of institutional memory and a low level of corporate commitment. There has been
a lack of continuity and follow-through on many issues. At this point in time, overall
environmental compliance at this operation is poor. PRI should retain a full-time environmental
staff of 4-5 qualified people, including a groundwater hydrologist to manage the groundwater
restoration. It is recommended that LQD immediately assign a staff person full-time to manage
this project as their #1 priority, and that monthly inspections be conducted to get a handle on the
issues identified in this investigation.

End of Report



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
Town Board Meeting  -  April 8, 2008 

 
ITEM#: 6 
 
SUBJECT: Planning Commission Membership Vacancy 
 
After the resignation of Jim Flowers from the Planning Commission in January, 
staff advertised and posted the vacancy of a citizen Planning Commission 
member, asking for interested individuals to apply.  No applications were 
received.    In the past after an election, the Board has asked unsuccessful 
candidates if they would be willing to serve on any of the Advisory Boards which 
have vacancies.   

 
Section 1.13.105 (a) of the Wellington Land Use Code on membership states: 

“The Planning Commission shall consist of seven members, three ex-
officio members consisting of the Mayor, a Trustee selected by the Mayor  
a Trustee selected by the Board of Trustees and four citizens appointed 
by the Board of Trustees.  The terms of appointment shall be in 
accordance with Section 31-23-203(3), C.R.S.” (6 years) 

 
The only requirement for the eligibility is the citizen must be a Town Resident, but 
the Board has typically asked for a residency of at least one year.   
 
 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
Town Board Meeting  -  April 8, 2008 

 
ITEM#: 7 
 
SUBJECT: Contract for Fun Fest Inflatables 
 

Linda Kinzli for the CAC had requested the contract with the company 
supplying the inflatables for the Fourth of July be on the agenda.  The 
company was supposed to be faxing me the contract, but at packet time I had 
not received it and Linda was not able to contact  the individual at the 
company .  If the contract shows up prior to the meeting I will send it along.  



TOW:; OF WE LLI~ G TO ~ 

BU' 5fOB dPPROVdL 

" PRIL ' ,200' 

CITY OF FORT COLLINS 51 ,000, 00 

2 )AX SI,lJ 4.90 

) SPRINT $1,26 ),1 0 

4 HALL-I RWIN CORPORA TlON 51,31 0,80 

5 TEAM PETROLEUM SI,JS6.01 

6 CO MPLETE MAILING SOllJTlONS 51 .560.00 

7 DENVER INDUSTRIAL SALES & SERVICE S2,OQ4.75 

8 MARCH. OLIVE & PHARRIS, LLC SS ,I13.00 

9 WEllS FARGO, N.A. (COLO, WATER RESOURCES) 5)6.7.\7-29 

10 HOFFCO"';STRUcnON S5 1,86UO 

TOT" L $ 10) ,443.25 



--------------------------------------------

APR-OJ-11Xl1 rnu 09 '411'11 STREE1S OEPAAlJIEHT fAX til. 9701216170 P. 01101 

Transportation Service5 
Slut'b Dq.~1 

INVOICE DATE: O\-APR-200! 
CUE DATE: llH,IAY·200S 

REMIT TO:
TOWN OF WEU INGTON 

CITY OF FORT COLUNS 37:15 CLEVELAND 
FINANCE OEPARTMENT WEllINGTON CO 80549 
PO BOX 5801330 S COU EGE 

ATTN: DON DEGROOT FORT COLLI NS CO B0522-C5BO 
_ _ _ _ _ __,...._... ._cf\odl II I'D", ...... 

DESCRIPTIO N: VlN. 1D9PM246-6 -K1004190-TACK WAGON 

1.00 $1.000.00 $1,000 

l1 .coo·Oil41D-3501(l().366901 -Charge: '~i=1
"'1D-2J17 14-S8IeS TIIX: I I .oq

" 10.350101).36800 ' Tota l Amount Due: I 1,.000.og v-... , 1031-11 

I I 
~ e.~
 
~ p,,~ f ~_
 



Jax Outdoor Gear, 1200 N. College Ave. STATEMENT 
Ft CoIins co 80524 ' 970-221..Q5«
 

, W-. laxouldoor Com '
 JAX 
O~I OOO I vi '" 

Aoct , ;" 136383 
(9101~3381,_ ..... 

Town 01' Wellington Amounl eu. 1,t 34.11(1
P.O. BOX 127 
Wellington CO 8OS411 

~Endosed : _ 

• 

"W8"T1lI 7 

AX8&I1l 1 
CS8ll6853 

n.oxe No: 

AX899ll34 

. 'n""", 
AW101121 .s ...,"""" ...,~ 

EIl O:lI583 

.. """'". ..-.. ... 

...

"""

la>gnoI·LAK 

o 

119 ,95 

"0" 
" " 

." 
'" 

000 
0 00 
000 
e 

1I7.75 

"n 
"'''... 00 
14500 

j::No 501741 
"'«1 D!lyso,d 



YOUR SPRINT INVOICE NEXTEL r 
:> ACCOUNT INFORMATION :> CUSTOMER CARE > PAYMENTOPTlONS 

I

A CCOtl nl Na..,. Invoice Dele 
TOWN Of WEUII'KiTON Merd'l29.2OOll 

A ccount Numb« TIN Numt.. 
2 11623635 a..-1 116272 
In voice Mum ..... ASA NUntM ' l otil Amount 0.." 
2 1 1623635-026 11I-000-012 !!t16 3 ,1.0 
C u rren! P.O. C..rlmI P.O. D.nec tccce J........, 30. 2006 

> MONTHLY INVOICE SUMMARY 

I'ebfuary 26 - _ 25, 200S 

P"""""'8aIaJ'I<» 780.07 
~10~~ . "ll .W 
PeyrnerQ .. or O:1l26Ol!l • n- rou .780 .08 

Outstanding Ba....... •. ... ." 
1:"11 OOOt·-. and R......,.. ... 61 8 . • 2 

~ 0002~S-- 3.78 

E.J 0004-"'---.:1 ~ 2. SS 
if 0006-E~_ RMaiI Purc:!Ia-. ..71.It.2 

\ 000l-SptW~ tel. " . 

f To llil eu....., Ct>arll" 101211123&35. 026 0... 04I11.108 1 1. 313 . 08; _._- - 
To'. 1An oun t Due _ ' ! .26!~ 'l.-0-

_
H01l1. ... _ Logon 
........ .llP'inl.com
 
Call SprInt
 
l .f1n -l39 -S351
 

:> SPRINT NEWS 
AND NOTICES 

Thl ' _ lloneontaln, 
Important updat.. _bout YO'" 
Sprint s......,.., lneludl"ll 
ser.lcoo Of Rete ChII"gn. 

P romotlcm e end OIIe . .. 

Correspondence 
~ .-n<l all o:>mtspoMencoo 

incIuclingbill ..... inquir"'" to: 
5pinl en_ SeMce 
PO Bo>: tarr 
~. t(Y ~7.2 

00 nol-'oM your pay....nt 
oMlt1 .". COfl'Hpou""nct>, 
y"" may allO c:onIaCl Spnnl 
C<.l.,.". c.. at ...... I'IUII'lI:>oI< 
IilIIood on your"'- (It b)I 
gooing to .... i ..CQ!!.I. 

'- I ~l ' ! , 
: 
, 

::;~ II UU;I 
~ 

, 
~ 

~ To hoy You. Bill 0nIIn00 Go To 
r !.1 -, opml.~ 

Bor..... __ Ooode-o 

I~ To Poly y...... Bill B,_c.II 
...."""i: l~' ,I Of 

6 " rmm yru5pn pI>one 

~ To Poly y Bil B,_ 
~ See Ior~ ~ 

I 
- ~ 

~ 

'1-"" ~ § 

~ 

~ 
=~ 

,~ ~ -• : 
e = 

~;; - .. ! . . , i ~ 

http:11.313.08


HALL-IRWIN CORPORATION 
301 CENTENNiAl DRIVE 
PO BOX 309 HALL-XAWIN......." .. MILLIKEN. CO &0543
 
970352-6057 

.u. 
WEWNGTON. TOWN OF 
3735 Cl.EVELAND AVE 
PO BOX 127 
WELLI NGTON , CO &OS49 

tt... ''''''''' 
319831 FIRESTONE INFIELD WITH MVP 
319849 FIRESTONE INFIELD WITH MVP 
arseec FIRESTONE INFIELD WITH MVP 

Invoice 
LocatlQ/1 tI 200 
CuslomBf tI WELTQW 
,~-_. "" 3800 WILSON AVE 

WElliNGTON 
o..._JoO FIELDS 

PO Number 

Dilte 3f2112008 ,
'''' 

F""IlI'll ~.-Ril te Rale Total a, ,.,,, ""'""" 
12.15 43983 000 000 43963 -"' 
12 29 ""0 .~ '" 000 000 ~" 
1177 ae ac 426 01 000 000 426 01 

"" '00 $1,310.&0 $000 $1.31080 

IItYOlClI Total 362 1 Ton $1,31080 $0 00 $1,31080 

PLEASE PAY FROM THIS INVOICE A ~nance Subtol lll ; $1,310.60 

d>lIrge" o;:orTlputll<l on II peOo(llC ....te of 2 '" pet STA TE (0.00%): $0.00 
monI!l , wflich lS.n .nnUlIl tale of 24"'. on.ny 
~ b81ance not PIli<:! within 30 dlIya $1.31080 



•• 

- ------

TEAM PETROLEUM 
A LTD LIA8lUTV COt.I PANY 

-~ '" P O llOll 113' 
FOF!l' cccoe. COeor.22 

""~3lI '! 

CI TY OF ~LL ING TON 

P 0 SOX 12'7 
WELLINGTON. CO 80 5~9- ~1 2'7 

03 / 18 /1M]3079 OIL Si'lLES 
117:59 03/ 2'8/08 FUEL Si'lLES 

-'\~'\:'\~l"n'~l::l l:= . ll ::.1 l 

03 /31 /0 8 •• 03/ 3 1 /08 
~_. 

2" 
......... ,...,- -

'..-..-
...._-... .... .,.
" ---

I 

3 9 .90 3 9 . 9 0 3 30 79 39 . 9 0 
1 3 16. II 13:56.01 117:5'9 13 16 . 11 

.L... _ 

13'56 jill 
PLEASE 
~, rase, 0 ' I~=:,--:c===

TEAM PETROLEUM 
HAPPY SPRING' , 

http:13:56.01


Invoice
 

3001 S TIIIO"Street 
Englwtood. CO 80110-1316 
~( 888)8ol)-9937 - (J03)76 1~' 

h..(303)761.7837 

c.,. InYOoOt • 

)128'2008 20247 

M" ,,,,,,. 
Town of Wellington To wn of WeltingIon 
3735 Cleveland Avenue 3735 Cleveland Ave nue 
Wellington, CO 80549 Wellington, CO 80549 

PO NlIII\tItII 
'"~ ...... "''' v. 

Nel 30 412712008 312812008 Ground ....., It"'" CoOo - """, ....... 
SC-DS·70 Annllill lnountenance an I Folderllnserter IN/A 1,56000 1.560 00 

EflectJVfI 5I8IOa . sn,w 

S u b total $1 ,560.00 

_.oc:a:P'T V\$A . """rf.lItCARO Sale s Tu. (0 .0 % ) $0 ,00
_ID. ... '-.) DUN S-03-U:P'~.. __ .......,...,. _ ....... _ bo _ ..... _ OOWII ....... ., 100, '" _OlIO 
.... ......, ___""-" wtI be ••__ .... : ,•• _ . ~., ,"".. "

Total $1. 560.00 



ic
 

llington 
P 80 127 
\ lling t n 45 9 

Shipped To 

per w k Rental Crafco uper 0 
1 

o mpo unded 1	 % Annual Inter -I I - harged On 
P t lnvo ic Oat . 

YI075T I41 3 1 
ar h 10th - M r h 17th. 2 

ot 



n oi 

# 

Shipped To 

P. . o . 

en II I 12" 
Rcplacernen ts 
en BIT SR R rsib l ilicon rock Fitting 

queege Red) 
ea rafco ·0270 Duck Bill Tip 

2.4 0 Ib ra fco 34515 Ro d aver 15 Crac k ea lant 

44.35 

14.00 

133.05 

2 . 0 
1,202. 0 

r you r busin ss. 
al $ 1,394.75 



MARCH, OUVE & F>HARRIS, LLC 
Atromeyl And CO\lnselol's AI '--w 

110 East Oak St'eel Sill 200 
Fat Cc*1I. COlortdo 80524 

(IH O) 482-4322
 

If" ' i"lllm, Town at 
3135 CIeYftnd A..-nus 
P.O. eo_ 127
 
1i'.1iI¢ln, CO 80549
 

Our File> Number 9101 0003 Town of'Nellington/Getlefal8ullnell 

FOfSer\'bs Fl.. lller.cl 

,,,.,,.. J8M Prwpare and forward Sbpula60n lor vicious clDo;J 

E....... wChGodOn ~ COllui .WQO(l
 
~E-meiII.-.:llelephoo.. confeletlCll 
regarolng vIdou8 dog 

"""'" JeM	 

~-

M E..-naiI wiI!'l GalcISlNlI1llgAlding Daubert F.",."'".. " 

Attend ~ meelic'll , Fl....- PM=k_"""'" ,eM 

E-rrlll oll o.ggeu and lJley (-.-. d" onaoel . """"" '" 
MM IiI 'lI WI\II Slorm ~~ In oen--,"""" '" eon""......with lMly. **'- upe with ~ 

02127..	 E-melll wiI!'l Goddard rtl9l1rllin9 Cottonwood.'" 
0212_ ."	 Telephol.. COOIel.. 1Ce with COurl Clerk 

regarding '*'dee( ..., !nIIII, 

Tele"""" .. tOi '/el ..ocee WI\II Goddan:I , "".... .... 
.....,.~ 

0212... JeM	 Review .-.:l revise elIXm drwIage ~ II; 
RlN'iew lJnntzen IT'IllllifteMiO 

SHH Review docket Ta lephone coolerenee WJ\tl"""'" COu" CI8fk: Tel8pllOt'le COI1efenc:e wrtl'l KevlI1 
ueDon8Id r8g8rdin9 OJWIrom Feoruary 2001...... 
Telep/lclIW coo""'.",a wiI!'l Pill Hylllnd and"""'" J8M	 
lelIar 10 PMat CSU regarding Knolls~ 

M.-ch 21, 2008 

""'" ""'"" 
040 "" 
' '"' "" 
'20 ' e 
,,, 

e ~ OO 

0 ,20 "'" 
'" 150,00 

020 , e 
, <0 "" 
'50 75 ,00 

' ''' 45.00 

cee 51 .00 

'''' 45.00 



March 21, 2008 
1~115630 
91010003 Tewn of~ 8uslrell 

ca..... S'" 

"..... "'" 

"""'" '"" 
0,...... '" J

"""" ". 
oaccoe ". 
"""" ""
 ",,,.., '"" 
"""'" "" 

"""'" " " 

Onlll: show"c.llM ordet for Wyme~ Update 
riOlebook n docket lor COurt T.pllone 
COl ,r. ......-. Deputy ~ re;M'd"'ll 
teMC8d .... tubpoenn; E -maj ~ WJH 

rep'dirlll ~ Of'!:.uv-n" 
Ta leplloM OOl'Iterenee withGoddard. Loret1ZelI 
~ Col!Dowood. TeIwpIIolew,""etoc:e 
~ ao..rn..-t.l I.........nity clIoim; e........ 
Neman ~ Oaubert 

R_dOCket wi\I'l EQd; U~ dod<et 
~ t)eyn-entl; Ta..~e OOl'I"".a willi 
NorolIn ~ng~.. oI60g from 1DwlI. 

MeetingwilIl Daggett; R",,_ Bo>:eIoW 
""lee..lett. 

i'l:eviI!lw DtuWrtf""~.danee and notetI 

FoIcw up Iet\eI' Juhl and GarOa ~ 
n" ~ 

~' l ebi '9 'Mth HiIderman ~irlll-plant 

Ta lephol .. w,... ..-- WIllI TIIal__ and 
Oeputf wa..1do: reQltdng r"..; u~ dOCke! 
_ fIOOIllOOl<. 

Meeting 'Mth Lorenll:en ~ing code and 
other ma l:er1l: E-mail ~ regardirlll 
ao..o...... ~ I........n~ clam, 

r.. ~ ... for_ lo'.~.. C<>n'--__ 
'rIIitnNseI and attend Cou't. 

"""" '"" Taleplloi" COl tfeleltce WIfl Blaone Juhl 

"""" ""
 
"""'" .....
 

.e."""" 

~"",.. 

~ o»o'ouIiiioi' cI building; e..-Mil 
~ing _10 !..arTy Lorentzen. 

Telephone aII1letence WTf\ D8kn" ~ng.........
 
R........ J""I alatus
 

Ta lalll'O If w ,rwettce WTf\ Lorenaen; 'N:rlc 
~ng~pa::o:.m I _:R_
Sunclanc:e mIItoIriaIs . Coda _ KllT* ,lit; ~ 

"*TIO regarding Bo>:~ Plaza; eon""."ce 
WIllI Korb regardirlll Boxalje r Plaza. Bowl! _ . 
~"""-' M '~ P'"","11"""- " 
1l'IIll&r Ne-.t'MaIOl'l, 

"0 

0 50 

0>0 

0 50 

0 80 

0 20 

'00 

0 '"' 

'00 

'00 

0.30 

030 

020 

2.70 

0.20 

12750 

15.00 

"50 

"00 

120.00 

3000 

30000 

,,,.
 

150.00 

300 00 

' ''0 

4$ .00 

3000 

'"" 00 

20" 



Ml rch 21, 2008 
IrwoicII 11S630 
87010003 Town of~8u""'" 

03111108 "M Telepl'oOI .. confetIIIICll woth N ~; R..,.;ew Iett8f 
to Iitnry boIId malefials: R_ 1itnry d.stllCl 
I~"--. E-mail 10 Setter 

' " 3000 

03111108 JOM eo_ekler IGA ~ '''' 75.00 

03111108 "M Review packeterod Town Board ~ling '" 48000 

"'"... SHH T. Ie."IOI ........"".oce. wrth Terri Jay ~ong 
OM iI'l 2005; R_~ docket ..., ftles 
~rllI ftnI payment iI'l 2005 

'" 6800 

"'"... "M 

""''''' JOM 

""''''' " M 

"""" JOM 

""''''' JOM 

Clnory rwiIw of Seawo1h rnaterIM , 

Fobw up.-.gen:lng Resoervoir 4, Dlct.- lItter to 
H, .." 

e -m8111 ~ Ilbrary d ~ TI'IP"oOO " 
lXX".":::' wrth Hu. otlIee:lfld ~ 
lIngtrly lH'I'Iailto Ha.. e~ Iibfary tIoerd 
__. e-mail l'rom IibrlWy boIId e!bi OdY- ..-
Forwerd Se'Nann Ordere to JeIfef1I end HaM, 

Bolceldef Ilood INelXllI wrth DIggetI end 5molh; 
Review end I1IYiH ego _ It 

'" 
0,20 

,0> 

c.ac 

,." 

"00 

30.00 

120 00 

30.00 

180,00 

""'.... JBM 

"',.... JBM 

"',.... ' OM 

Telephal " COl r1el1!1OI with Se..lIorth 

E.mail regarding Su~IGA 
.....o:em.; Review eg _ ,t 

Tel. ptg ....... ,"'._wrth H.... regardll'lQ 
Librery dietrlct Research 

'" 
' .00 

' .30 

"00 

1S0 00 

45.00 

""''''' JBM 

,"'... SHH 

Revielor litter I'rom HorIZon Bank ~ 
Uf'• • llI'_1O non- LOC Bolc~ PINe. 

Tlilephone cooferenoe -. 0;.,. II Town Hell 
regarding OMPlJii.il end update docket 

'" 
0."0 

"00 

"00 

"""" JOM T&lepIIone conference en d .1l\Ii1 regarding 
DiCoIe end rNZ. I1IqIIeIl Pettereon " " Iel iele 
regerdlng Boxelder Plaza. 

'" 45.00 

"".... SHH T. lephal ll oonlerenoe wrth"'-- MemtI 
regarding 2002 OJW. T. I. pI1Oi ........"" .. oce 
WIlh Town Hell f'lV8'ding payment tI)' MerTltt in 
2002 ; E.mell to Cour't Clerk: Update notebook 
brApril ~ 

,., 11900 

""... SHH Telephol" .....i'" .101 with CeeiIiI JIfT"GOn 
regarding i'I'Iissed Court dill end OM I'ne 
peyn.c; E-mail to Town Hal end Court C..... 

,OO 51.00 



March 21,2008 
IIl'IOiee11563C1 . 
97010003 Town 01 wellingtolYGel'lefal BuslIless 

D3/2M)8 SHH TeIe9hone conle<ence with Carolregarding 
docl<eI; Update notebook and doeket 
Telephorle con/efeneewith JamlllOl'l regarding 
O-.PN p"yment 

0,70 5950 

Total Hourt and Fees 37.20 5,013,00 

Total This Invoice 
5,013,00 

Fn Sunynarx """ "'" Amount 

J, BIlIdIord Marth 
J . B.-.dfatd March 
Sand... Hoy Helzer 

29 00 
0,", 
7.80 

150.00 
0.00 

85,00 

4,350,00 
000 

663.00 

To<>' 37.20 5,013 00 

02121108 P"",iOull Balance 
03J05lO8 Payment 
03l2OJDll Payment 

Total \tlill Bill 
New BaIaI'lOl 

6,842.50 
-3,226,50 
-3,616.00 
5,013,00 
501300 

Aelxltmlll RiKleW3bIe Aging 
c_ 
30 0 .,. 
80 _,, 
120 Days 

5,013.00 
0.00 
0.00 
000 
000 

_. PAYMENT IS EXPECTE D WITHIN 20 DAYS AFTER STATEMENT IS MAILED, PLEASE INCLUDE FILE NO ON CHECK ·
 
- OUR BilliNG CYCLE IS FROM THE 20TH OF ONE MONTH UNTIL THE 20TH OF THE NEXT"'*"
 
-PLEASE COR RECT THE TAX IDENTIFICATIO N NUM8 ER FOR OUR FIRM TO 75-3152229



MARCH. ouve 80 PHARRIS. U C 
~ And eountelcn M.Law 

'1 Gbat o.k Slteet, S• . 200 
Fort Calm. ~ B052" 

(910) ..&2....322 

March 21. 2008 

WlIIng\Ol\, Town01 
3735CleYeIand ............ 
P.O, 80. 127 
W. " lgloli, CO ~9 

ll2I2ll1O& JBM	 Orlltt .....,11WlImnglon Point. : T••ptooooe 0.50 NC 
COl"l ~nc:e wIIh D8l<rl~. 

03107103 JBM	 WELLINGTON,TO'MlHOMES - TIIlepIlone 0.50 100.00 
QOf1I11o'eno11 with MI' hill. N. IIh. 

Total Hours . nd F_	 080 100,00 

Total Th ~ Involce	 100,00 

En Surmlll'X 

G.30 GOO 0.00 •
G,50 200 00 10000 

000	 100 00 

ll2I211O& Previou' Balance 100 ,00 
G3I2IY08	 P.yment -100 ,00 

Total INs 8 . 100,00 
New Balance 100 O!l 

100.00
 
000
 
0.00 
0.00
 
000
 

.- PAYMENT IS EXPECTED WITHIN 2G O"-YS AFTER STATEMENT IS MAlLEO. PLEASE INCl..UOE FilE 00, ON CHECK ·
 
- OUR BIW NG CYCLE IS FROM TliE 20TH OFONE MONTli UNTll THE 20TH OF THE N~
 
-F'LEASE CQflRECT THE TAX lOENTlFICATlON NUMBER FOR OlIR FIRM TO 750-3152229



COLORADO WATER RESOURCES &
 
POWER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
 
Logan Tower Bldg. - Suite 620. 1580 Logan Street, Denver, Colorado 80203-19 2 

303/830-1550 • Fax 3031832·8205 • Info cwrpda.com 

April 1, 2008 

Larry Lor ntzen
 
To n of We llington
 
3735 Cleveland Ave.
 
P.O. Box 127
 
Wellington. CO 80549
 

RE:	 Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority
 
Drinking Water Revolving Fund Direc Loan Program
 

De r Larry Lorentzen 

Below is a breakdown of your loan repayment due: y 1, 2008 

Loan Number	 Principal In erest Total 

D01F116	 $20,692.85 16,054.44 $36 ,7 7.29 

Tota l amount due	 $20,692.85 16,054.44 $36,747 .29 

Payment instructions for wire transfer, ACH transfer or by mail are as follows : 

Wire Instructions ACH Instructions By ail
 
W lis Fargo Ban , NA We lls Far 0 Bank, NA Wells Fargo, .A.
 
ABA: 121000248 ABA: 091000019 A n: Sandra Shupe
 
Ace No. 0001038377 Accl No. 0001038377 AC 7300-107
 
BNF: Corp. Trust Clearing BNF: Corp. Trust Clearing 1740 Broadway
 
OBI: 14878100 OBI: 14878100 Denver, CO 80274
 

If you have any further questions , or you are unab e to comply with this procedure, please call me
 
prior to the payment date at (303) 830-1550 extens ion 19. Addi ionally, please notify me of any
 
address changes by a-mail at jnoll@cwrpda.com or by phone at the number listed above .
 

Thank you for your assistance. 

Sncerely, ~ If paying by check: 
Please make checks payabl to 

~ W llsFargo, N.A. 
Senlor Accountant	 Do send checks to e Authority 

Cc: Sandy Shupe, Trust Officer, We lls Fargo 

FDL 



April 03, 2008 

Mr. Larry Lorentzen - Town Administrator 
ELLINGTO , TOWN OF 

3735 Cleveland Avenue, P.O. Box 127 
Wellington. CO 80549 

RE: WELLI GTO BATTING CAGES - PAY APPLIC TION : 7297 -1 

Dear Larry: 

Attached is a copy of Ho Construe 'on's application for payment We have revie ed the quantltfes and 
unit prices submi ed. Bid Item No, 5 appears to be a overeslimation of the work done since they have 
not installed th flap gate and riprap (estimated at $500 to $700). But they have not requ sted payment 
for the foo inqs, foundat on walls and oar slab for Bid Item No. 18 - Concession Shed (estimated at 

1,000) w ich have completed. In light of he relatively close value of these i ems and the fac that this is 
the Irst applica Ion submitted and only 24% of the total projec ameun e recommend that in lieu of 
requesting revIsions to the pay application the Town accept the application as submitted . Therefore, we 
recommend approval of the application by the Town and payment of the amount of $5 ,863.40 to Hoff 
Construct ion. 

Should you have any quest ens andlor concerns , please feel free to contact us. 

Sincerely, 

Attachmen t Pay Application 1 (2 pages) 

c. 187310055 I 822 



Hoff Conalruchon Unit Billing 
",~_ ,:w._ 

A,ppk- loon INI 11'0 .... , .... 
~OOIOl3' 

I.::: .~-
~ ,- -

Mo If Constructi on -"""'.~ T-.. ot Ir'•••• •' ••b~' "lob loullo.. ' ~ 8Mbroll e.g. 
llufl-'OCrwlc P"".y & ~ 

'I'd ..,10"00 

Application Fo r Payment On Contract
 

Canlliel Sum 10 [)al l ..... .. ..... .... .... .. .... ... . 

l otll Complete to Oat l 

1lS.1l1e 50 

S7,82e 00 

Total Reta lnltd 

Total Earnltd l Re tained 

" VU.N 

51,1lG3 .0 
~ 

................ .. 0 'Xl 

Contractor's Certificat ion of Work 

The unclerltgned con lJaclOl CIIf1lliei tna\. to the best 0' !he conlritClOf"5 
knowledge. the work on the abOYft named JOb hal been completed In 
accordance WIth the plana . r'lCI apeohcatlQf1s to the level of compIehon 
Ir'lCIlCl lecl on the attached Khedule of com pletion 

Con!rae\or~ •.t4 .: J'4~i.' Date _~ _ -<6 _C'--..s' 

,.J - .,.~ ,.,.a..'<" 

Te"", "'_,ot1I dvtJ ..apey~ 200" "",.,,,,. ore 0/ IO\OICI AM __ lmo;>INItl .... rr. d'IItpIIlIl ~ dI"'9'I ot 
18 OIl "'" -... PfttlfH _".. "-All Plrlblllo Ho'l Con&lrua

1'IIIfnl< "",lot 'fOUr ptompll>lr......t 



• • 

• • 

•• 
• •• 

I
0I

-

J
 

I
 
i•
jI 

•0 
~ 

1'"" s s
 
I "B ~
 
•

" ~U i i H'····
 .. Cl ..... ~ 

P·" ··
 , U i U 
U <lic; ..... -' 

p 
H8 es s s 
IA oou -
• 

H 8 e a 8 • 
o o w 

IA 
u 

IIJ 

'r·j ~m~
 
! B S S B 8 

P'""i2'" 

0 

0 

··· 8. 

a
0 - •• • " 

o. ~ • 
• 

"

• s , 
•" - Il. Il
• ,;

•- •" 

• • •Il •a•• ,; • • 

0- • 
0 •0 •0 "0 

.0 
- 0 

'i::i 

·0 
0 ~ -~=~~~~~::l. ... .::3"'S'"' ;!;i!:: 

i 

• 
0 0 "0 

888888888i 
~- § ~ i! ~ ~ S';!; j;j",Iii; , -.. 0 , . ~ "'• • 
....... ClO .. ;!; ~
" " 

888888888Sl" . 

•"•". • 

•
•
~ • 

8•••"

•0 

i 

, 0 • 
i 

I
 
8 ! 

1"I: ,-
" 

•;I ~
 
" 

f 0"1• J I . j~~ f i 
lill~~!r !!j{jji IBi~


II ! i ~ l ~ ~ ! J j ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ i¥ll
 
_ ..... ........ ~ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ "N
J O_ ..... ... ~ .... "'~ _N 

..
 
I! 

" 
~ 


	Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes 3-25-08

	New Business
	#2 - Oath of Office for new Trustees
	#3 Resolution 12-2008 Appointing Mayor Pro-tem
	Staff Report
	Resolution 12-2008

	#4 Bid Award - 4th Street Improvments and 6th Street Sewer
	Staff Report
	Stantec Recommendation
	Bid Tabulation
	Schmidt Bid

	#5-Resolution 14-2008 Concerning Uranium Mining.pdf
	Staff Report
	Resolution 14-2008 Version Opposing Uranium Mining
	Resolution 14-2008 Version Supporting State Legislation
	House Bill 1161
	House Bill 1165
	Fort Collins Resolution
	Larimer County Enivironmnetal Advisory Board Report
	Information from Jeff Edquist

	#6 Planning Commission Vacancy
	#7 Contract for Fun Fest Inflatables
	#8 Bills for Approval




